
Council

Date: Tuesday, 4th December, 2018
Time: 7.30 pm
Venue: Council Chamber - Council Offices, London Road, Saffron Walden, 

CB11 4ER

Chairman: Councillor L Wells
Members: Councillors K Artus, H Asker, G Barker (Vice-Chair), S Barker, 

R Chambers, J Davey, P Davies, A Dean, P Fairhurst, T Farthing, 
M Felton, M Foley, J Freeman, R Freeman, A Gerard, T Goddard, 
J Gordon, N Hargreaves, S Harris, E Hicks, S Howell, D Jones, 
T Knight, G LeCount, P Lees, M Lemon, B Light, J Lodge, 
J Loughlin, A Mills, S Morris, E Oliver, V Ranger, J Redfern, H Rolfe, 
H Ryles and G Sell

Public Speaking

At the start of the meeting there will be an opportunity of up to 15 minutes for 
members of the public to ask questions and make statements subject to having 
given notice by 12 noon two working days before the meeting. A time limit of 3 
minutes is allowed for each speaker. Please refer to further information overleaf.

AGENDA
PART 1

Open to Public and Press

1 Apologies for Absence and Declarations of Interest

To receive any apologies and declarations of interest.

2 Proposals for Members’ Scheme of Allowances 2019/20 7 - 22

Public Document Pack



To consider the proposals for the Members’ Scheme of Allowances 
2019/20.

3 Minutes of the previous meeting 23 - 38

To receive the minutes of the previous meeting. 

4 Chairman's Announcements

To receive any announcements from the Chairman.

5 Report of the Leader of the Council 39 - 42

To receive the report of the Leader of the Council.

6 Report of the Portfolio Holder for Environmental Services 43 - 44

To receive a report from the Portfolio Holder for Environmental 
Services.

7 Report of the Portfolio Holder for Communities and 
Partnerships

45 - 50

To receive the report of the Portfolio Holder for Communities and 
Partnerships.

8 Report of the Portfolio Holder for Economic Development 51 - 52

To receive the report of the Portfolio Holder for Economic 
Development.

9 Report of the Portfolio Holder for Finance & Administration 53 - 56

To receive the report from the Portfolio Holder for Finance and 
Administration.

10 Report of the Portfolio Holder for Housing 57 - 60

To receive the report of the Porfolio Holder for Housing.

11 Questions to the Leader, Members of the Executive and 
Committee Chairmen (up to 15 minutes)

To receive questions from members for the Executive and 
committee chairmen.

12 Matters referred from the Executive and the Council's 
committees



To consider any reports referred from the Executive and the 
Council’s committees and receive questions and answers on any of 
those reports.

13 Matters received about joint arrangements and external 
organisations

To consider matters concerning joint arrangements and external 
organisations.

14 LCTS Scheme Proposals - 2019/20 61 - 94

To consider the report on the LCTS Scheme Proposals 2019/20.

15 Review of Returning Officer's Fees and Expenses 95 - 102

To consider the report on the review of the Returning Officer’s Fees 
and Expenses.

16 Gambling Policy – Statement of Principles 103 - 136

To consider the report on the Gambling Policy – Statement of 
Principles.

17 Walden Place, Saffron Walden 137 - 152

To consider the report on Walden Place, Saffron Walden.

18 Councillor Knight - Approval of Absence from Meetings

Cllr Knight is at present unable to attend Council meetings by 
reason of ill-health.  If a member of the Council fails to attend a 
qualifying meeting throughout a period of six consecutive months, 
they will be automatically disqualified from office, unless the reason 
for their absence is approved by the Council before the expiry of the 
six month period. It is possible that Cllr Knight will not be able to 
resume attendance at meetings within the six month statutory 
period. Council is therefore asked to approve her absence by 
reason of ill-health for the purposes of section 85(1), Local 
Government Act, 1972.

19 Notice of Motion Received from Councillor Dean: Exit from 
the European Union



Council recognises that there is continued uncertainty over the UK’s 
future economic and social relationship with the Continental 
members of the European Union. It does not wish to see economic 
harm being caused to businesses and their employees in the 
Uttlesford district, such as those at Chesterford Research Park and 
those at Stansted Airport. 

Council wishes no harm to be caused to residents, especially those 
of younger generations, who wish to maintain their ability to visit, 
study and work in this and neighbouring countries.

Council calls upon the Saffron Walden Member of Parliament, Mrs 
Kemi Badenoch, to take responsibility for the future wellbeing of the 
people of this district by striving at Westminster to find a way 
through the current uncertainties over Brexit to ensure that local 
people’s futures will not be harmed.

Council also notes that recent polls suggest that public opinion in 
this district, as well as nationally, is shifting away from leaving the 
EU towards a majority of people favouring the UK retaining its 
membership of the European Union.

Therefore, in the event that Parliament cannot reach an outcome 
from its current and forthcoming deliberations that will give a high 
confidence of maintaining or improving the wellbeing of local people, 
Council calls on Parliament to check again the will of the people by 
conducting what has become known as a People’s Vote to confirm 
the present will of the people.  

20 Notice of Motion Received from Councillor Sell: Library 
Services in Uttlesford

This Council asks the Cabinet member for communities and 
partnerships to work with Essex County Council, parish/town 
councils, voluntary organisations and residents to explore ways in 
which the library service in Uttlesford is maintained and enhanced, 
in light of the county council’s major consultation on the proposed 
future strategy for the county’s libraries.

21 Notice of Motion Received from Councillor Ranger: DEFRA's 
response to Uttlesford District Council's Air Quality Annual 
Status report

153 - 200



DEFRA’s response to UDC’s Air Quality Annual Status report 
 highlights that, “after distance correction, there are now no 
exceedances of the annual mean objective for Nitrogen Dioxide 
within the Saffron Walden AQMA, or any results within 10% of 
objective levels at positions of relevant exposure” and goes on to 
state that “The recent monitoring results are extremely encouraging, 
and the Council should maintain the strategy outlined within the 
Action Plan”.

This council welcomes this response and will continue its work to 
improve further the air quality in our District.

PART 2

Exclusion of Public and Press

22 Aspire (CRP) Ltd Request for Funding To Follow

To consider the report on the Aspire (CRP) Ltd request for funding.



MEETINGS AND THE PUBLIC

Members of the public are welcome to attend any of the Council’s Cabinet or 
Committee meetings and listen to the debate.  All agendas, reports and minutes can 
be viewed on the Council’s website www.uttlesford.gov.uk. For background papers in 
relation to this meeting please contact committee@uttlesford.gov.uk or phone 01799 
510433/369.

Members of the public and representatives of parish and town councils are permitted 
to speak or ask questions at any of these meetings.  You will need to register with 
the Democratic Services Officer by midday two working days before the meeting.

The agenda is split into two parts.  Most of the business is dealt with in Part I which 
is open to the public.  Part II includes items which may be discussed in the absence 
of the press or public, as they deal with information which is personal or sensitive for 
some other reason.  You will be asked to leave the meeting before Part II items are 
discussed.

Agenda and Minutes are available in alternative formats and/or languages.  For more 
information please call 01799 510510.

Facilities for people with disabilities 
The Council Offices has facilities for wheelchair users, including lifts and toilets.  The 
Council Chamber has an induction loop so that those who have hearing difficulties 
can hear the debate.

If you are deaf or have impaired hearing and would like a signer available at a 
meeting, please contact committee@uttlesford.gov.uk or phone 01799 510430/433 
as soon as possible prior to the meeting.

Fire/emergency evacuation procedure 
If the fire alarm sounds continuously, or if you are instructed to do so, you must leave 
the building by the nearest designated fire exit.  You will be directed to the nearest 
exit by a designated officer.  It is vital you follow their instructions.

For information about this meeting please contact Democratic Services
Telephone: 01799 510433, 510369 or 510548 

Email: Committee@uttlesford.gov.uk

General Enquiries
Council Offices, London Road, Saffron Walden, CB11 4ER

Telephone: 01799 510510
Fax: 01799 510550

Email: uconnect@uttlesford.gov.uk
Website: www.uttlesford.gov.uk

http://www.uttlesford.gov.uk/
mailto:committee@uttlesford.gov.uk
mailto:committee@uttlesford.gov.uk
mailto:Committee@uttlesford.gov.uk
mailto:uconnect@uttlesford.gov.uk
http://www.uttlesford.gov.uk/


Committee: Council

Title: Proposals for Members’ Scheme of 
Allowances 2019/20

Report 
Author:

Officer 
Contact:

Stephanie Grace (Chairman), David Brunwin 
and Melissa Challinor, assisted by Rebecca 
Dobson and Alistair Bochel
Diane Drury participated in the review as a 
shadow panel member and will replace David 
Brunwin in April 2018
Rebecca Dobson (Democratic and Electoral 
Services Manager), 
rdobson@uttlesford.gov.uk

Date:
Tuesday, 4 
December 2018

Summary

1. This report sets out the recommendations of the Independent Remuneration   
Panel for the Members’ Scheme of Allowances for the year 2019/20. 

2. In making a scheme of allowances, the Council is required to have regard to 
the recommendations of an independent panel but is not bound by them.

Recommendations

3. That the Council adopts:

a. the recommended scheme of allowances for the year 2019/20 as set 
out in Appendix 1 to the report, effectively increasing the current level of 
basic allowance and all existing special responsibility allowances 
(SRAs) by 1%. 

b. an additional SRA for Planning Committee substitute members who 
attend at least 25% of Planning Committee meetings in that capacity 
throughout the municipal year.

c. a revised scheme of expenses for the Carer’s Allowance which 
abolishes the maximum rate that can be claimed for care costs.

Financial Implications

4. There would be additional cost to the Council due to the 1% increase in the 
level of the basic and special responsibility allowances. The estimated cost of 
implementing this rise is an increase of £3061.59. This has been included 
within the General Fund budget subject to Council approval in February 2019.

5. There may be a small additional cost to the Council to cover the introduction 
of a new SRA for Planning Committee substitutes. The maximum spend on 

Page 7

Agenda Item 2



this new SRA would equal £600.32. However in practice it would probably cost 
less, because it is unlikely that every substitute will attend at least 25% of 
Planning Committee meetings. 

6. Overall, the proposed rise in the basic allowance and SRAs and the 
introduction of a new SRA for Planning Committee substitutes would be an 
increase of £3661.91 on the 2018/19 budget of £280,195.23, making a total 
cost of £283,857.14 for 2019/20.

7. There may also be a small cost on an intermittent basis to cover the 
proposed revised Carer’s Allowance.

Background Papers

8. Members’ Allowance Scheme 2018/19

Impact 

9.

Communication/Consultation All district councillors were invited to give 
their views and four members addressed 
the Panel.

Community Safety None

Equalities The increased claim rate for the carer’s 
allowance is intended to ensure that those 
who have dependents who require a carer 
are not deterred from standing to be a 
councillor.

Health and Safety None

Human Rights/Legal 
Implications

None

Sustainability None

Ward-specific impacts All wards

Workforce/Workplace None

Situation

Page 8

https://uttlesford.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=476&MId=4124&bcr=1
https://uttlesford.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=476&MId=4124&bcr=1


The Independent Remuneration Panel
10. The Panel this year consists of Stephanie Grace (Chairman), David Brunwin 

and Melissa Challinor.  Diane Drury has been acting as a shadow member of 
the Panel in preparation for the formal commencement of her term of office in 
April 2019.  

The General Position 
11. As this year is the fourth of the ordinary term of office of Members, and 

district elections will take place in May 2019, this year’s review provided us 
with an opportunity to ask councillors, particularly those who are retiring, to 
reflect on the operation of the allowances system.  We therefore extended an 
invitation to all councillors to address us at our meeting on 26 September 
2018. We were interested to hear Members’ views on how the scheme of 
allowances has operated over the last four years. 

12. We met with Councillors R Freeman, Gerard, Mills and Rolfe, who wished to 
express their views on various aspects of Members’ remuneration. The topics 
which we discussed with those Members, and our conclusions, are set out 
below.  We thank these Members for their time in speaking with us. Their 
thoughts helped to shape our recommendations this year. 

13. In conducting its review this year, the Panel had regard to the fact that the 
governance and structure of the Council has not changed substantially.  We 
noted the substitute member scheme is in its second year of operation.  We 
also noted that this is the first year of the payment of the new Special 
Responsibility Allowance (SRA) for members of the Licensing and 
Environmental Health Committee, upon reaching a threshold of attendance at 
extraordinary meetings of that Committee.  

14. Our report includes recommendations to:  1) make a 1% increase to the 
basic allowance and therefore to the SRAs which are calculated 
proportionately using the basic allowance; 2) introduce a new SRA for 
payment to substitute members of Planning Committee; and 3) abolish a 
maximum rate for the scheme of expenses with regard to the carers’ 
allowance.   

Discussions with Members
15. We heard from Councillor R Freeman regarding the role of serving as a 

councillor.  He said he had no issue with public service being unpaid, despite 
loss of pensionable pay for those who took time off work to undertake duties 
as a councillor.  His concern was more that the public profile of councillors 
meant their names were in the public domain, and that councillors were 
therefore potentially open to attack. He felt it was difficult finding people to 
stand as councillors, and that, as it was not possible to pay full compensation 
for time spent away from paid work, it would be preferable if councillors were 
not remunerated at all.  Whilst he agreed that it was an option for any Member 
to forego their allowance, he considered doing so would make little difference.  

Page 9



16. As Councillor Freeman noted, the scheme of allowances cannot 
recompense for loss of earnings on the part of any councillor in carrying out 
their duties. 

17. We also note that from 1 April 2014, the Local Government Pension Scheme 
(Transitional Provisions, Savings and Amendment) Regulations removed 
access to the pension scheme for councillors in England. The Panel therefore 
does not have any authority to make decisions on pensions for Members.

18. Last year we heard from Councillor Gerard on the issue of recognition for 
substitute members taking on significant amounts of work when acting in the 
capacity of a substitute member. Councillor Gerard took the trouble to speak 
to the Panel on this matter again this year. In particular, he spoke about the 
demands of acting in place of a full committee member on the Planning 
Committee, and asked whether an additional SRA could be introduced to 
recognise the work of substitute members of the Committee. Councillor Gerard 
said acting in this capacity necessitated significant work on the part of the 
substitute member. In one exceptional circumstance, acting as a substitute at 
the meeting to determine the Stansted Airport expansion application, he had 
read around 4000 pages worth of material in approximately 4 weeks.

19. Councillor Gerard made it clear that money was not the reason for 
suggesting this additional SRA. Instead, it was important for substitute 
members of the Planning Committee to receive recognition for their work. We 
have made recommendations on this matter below.

20. We heard from Councillor Mills, the Chairman of the Planning Committee, on 
issues that had arisen throughout his time as a Member. He said he felt there 
should be better communication between officers and members regarding 
Schedule 2 of the Members’ Allowances Scheme, which covers travel, 
mileage, meals, refreshments and care costs. Because of such problems with 
communication, some Members could be unaware of the expenses they could 
be reimbursed for. He had also found the Council’s “self-service” payments 
system to be a difficult system to use, and pointed out that Members typically 
submit their claims while working from outside the Council Offices which 
meant that IT support was not as accessible for them.

21. We also heard from Councillor Mills regarding training for Planning 
Committee members. He said that training was often only provided when 
Members pushed for it, and that a more regular timetable of training should be 
in place to keep Members fully informed of developments relating to their 
committee work. Councillor Mills also spoke briefly about the work of substitute 
members of the Planning Committee. He reinforced Councillor Gerard’s point 
that those who attended a significant amount of Planning Committee meetings 
as substitute members found that responsibility to be a substantial amount of 
work.

22. While we do not have any remit to make recommendations regarding the 
practical operation of  the Council’s payment arrangements, we understand 
that training and guidance for Members were issued when the system was 
introduced in 2017, and consider that it will be important during induction of 
any new councillors after May 2019, that they should receive appropriate 
training and support in order to submit expenses claims effectively.  We 
understand that an induction programme for councillors is being planned and 

Page 10



will be delivered at the start of the next municipal year, to include training on 
how to claim for expenses. We also support the low environmental impact of a 
system which does not require paper forms to be posted into the Council’s 
officers. 

23. We heard from the Leader, Councillor Rolfe. Councillor Rolfe said the 
Council tended to accept the recommendations of the Panel regarding the 
scheme of allowances, where it was reasonable to do so. He referred to the 
Panel’s recommendations made in their last report to Council, whereby the 
Panel had proposed regular modest increases in the level of the basic 
allowance, as this was seen by the Panel at that time as preferable to 
proposing larger increases less often.  Councillor Rolfe cautioned against 
making a recommendation which led to a departure from the way in which 
increments in the level of the basic allowance kept pace with increases in staff 
pay, if that were to then result in extraordinary steps being required to address 
a future shortfall.  He said in his view the allowance should be kept in line with 
that of other authorities.

24. We also heard from Councillor Rolfe about whether there would be a 
possibility of linking the allowance to attendance at Member training and 
briefings. We have looked into this matter and discuss it further below.

Basic Allowance
25. The aim of the payment of the basic allowance is that some element of the 

work of members continues to be voluntary but that financial recompense is 
available to elected members to avoid a disincentive for anyone wishing to 
come forward to serve their local community.

26. The basic allowance takes account of the duties and responsibilities of a 
member of the Council.  It also acts as the starting point for the calculation of 
all SRAs as these are expressed as multipliers of the basic allowance.  The 
rate has, in the same way as in previous years, been calculated with reference 
to assumptions based on responses of councillors to the national census of 
councillors, and previous surveys regarding the time commitment for 
undertaking the duties of a district councillor, to which a public sector discount 
of 35% was applied.  

27. We will be interested to view the results of the ongoing national census of 
councillors, organised by the Local Government Association, which will be 
made available in early 2019. This information will provide an updated 
estimate of the average time commitment required to carry out the duties of a 
district councillor. 

28. In the meantime, we consider it appropriate to continue to rely on 
assumptions previously made about the time commitment required to carry out 
the duties of a district councillor in determining the rate of the basic allowance 
for the upcoming year. 

29.In response to the question the Leader asked us to examine, whether there is 
a means of benchmarking the rate of the basic allowance paid locally, we have 
obtained such data, but would comment that there is no definite means of 
indexing such rates. At Uttlesford, the basic allowance has in the past been 

Page 11



calculated by reference to the Local Government Association daily 
recommended rate. However, that rate was discontinued some years ago. The 
Council’s basic allowance was subsequently calculated with reference to the 
Annual Survey for Hours and Earnings index.  However, application of that 
index led to the basic allowance and the ASHE rate falling out of close 
alignment, in a way which indicated the ASHE rate is not a valid index for 
remuneration of councillors.  The basic allowance paid by other councils will 
have been calculated in a variety of ways, so comparative data does not 
necessarily reflect a local “going rate”.

30. The Panel has in recent years recommended increases which reflect the 
local government staff pay award.  Rather than index-linking the basic 
allowance to such a rate, the Panel has continued to make recommendations 
on a year-by-year basis.  The Panel has chosen not to recommend formally 
linking the pay award and the basic allowance. For our review of the scheme 
of allowances this year, we again considered whether to make a 
recommendation to commence linking the basic allowance to future local 
government pay awards. We have decided against making this 
recommendation as we wish to maintain flexibility in determining the 
appropriate level of basic allowance. 

31. In following up the request of Councillor Rolfe to assess what rates were 
paid in comparable authorities, we undertook a comparison with neighbouring 
authorities, and other comparable authorities with an executive system and a 
similar number of members, and found the Council’s basic allowance to be 
roughly the average of that which was offered at the other authorities 
examined. As noted above, the way in which such basic allowances are 
calculated is no longer according to a commonly used daily rate. The rates 
which are payable may be increased in line with indices and of these 
authorities a number linked the basic allowance to the Local Government Pay 
Settlement. The completed comparison is available at Appendix 2. 

32. In respect of the calculation of the rate of basic allowance, we are minded to 
recommend that the allowance be increased by 1% for the upcoming 
municipal year, thereby increasing the rate of all SRAs by 1% as well. 

33. Our reasoning is that a 1% rise will maintain our recent pattern of modest 
rises in the level of the basic allowance. Regular modest increases are seen 
as preferable to proposing larger increases less often, as they are easier to 
forecast and to prepare for in budget work.

34. As noted above, we do consider it important to ensure the basic allowance 
remains a valid indicator of the time commitment needed to carry out the 
duties of a district councillor.  The results of the Local Government Association 
national census of councillors will be released next year, and will provide us 
with an updated indication of the average amount of work that a councillor puts 
into their duties per week. In the meantime, the Panel notes that 
benchmarking has established the Council’s basic allowance is a rough 
average of neighbouring and other comparable authorities and should 
therefore continue to function adequately as financial recompense available to 
elected members to ensure that finance is not a disincentive not to stand for 
election. The Panel also encourages Members to make use of Schedule 2, the 

Page 12



Scheme of Expenses, to ensure they are not losing out through the cost of 
fuel, care or other valid claims.

35. In the Panel’s report to Council last year, mention was made of the 
possibility of linking the allowances scheme to attendance at member training 
and briefing events. The Leader also asked that consideration be given to this 
possibility. However, not only would such a link be impractical for the Council 
to administer, but The Local Authorities (Members’ Allowances) (England) 
Regulations 2003 do not provide scope for payment of an attendance 
allowance. We consider it to be unfeasible to adapt the scheme on this basis.

36. We understand that an expanded members’ development and training 
programme will be implemented in the forthcoming municipal year. We 
welcome the Council’s plans to have in place a schedule of training dates 
provided for members to enable them to schedule such commitments in 
advance, so that they are able to make the most of the training that the 
Council offers. 

37. Rather than introduce what would be in effect an attendance allowance 
which would be impractical to administer, we consider that the expectation that 
Members should attend training programmes will be best served by scheduling 
a fixed programme of training events so that Members have due notice of the 
dates when their attendance is required.  We welcome the plans for an 
expanded members’ development and training programme, and encourage 
officers to make suitable training available for all those members sitting on 
committees and to make councillors aware of these dates far in advance.

Introduction of a Special Responsibility Allowance for Planning Committee 
Substitutes
38. We note the introduction in 2017/18 of a scheme of substitutes for the 

Council’s committees. This scheme allows each party group to nominate up to 
two substitutes per committee. Any of those substitutes can then be 
nominated by a committee member unable to attend a particular meeting.  
Once nominated, the substitute assumes full rights of attendance and voting at 
that meeting and cannot be replaced.

39. The scheme of substitutes is still comparatively new. However, after one and 
a half years in practice, it is clear that the scheme is most often used by 
members of the Council’s Planning Committee. Substitute members have 
stepped in to act on the Planning Committee eight times since the beginning of 
this municipal year.

40. On the suggestion of Councillor Gerard, we considered whether it would be 
appropriate to introduce an SRA in order to recognise and recompense 
substitute members of the Planning Committee for their additional 
commitment. The demands of acting in place of a full committee member on 
this committee outweigh those of acting in place of a full member of one of the 
Council’s other committees, such as attending site visits in the morning and 
the afternoon meeting itself, as well as consideration of all relevant 
documentation.

Page 13



41. Over the past three years, the Panel have been particularly conscious of the 
disparity of the workload of Members on different committees, and highlighted 
this last year, when it recommended the introduction of an SRA for members 
who attended 50% of at least 10 extraordinary Licensing and Environmental 
Health Committee meetings. 

42. The Local Authorities (Members’ Allowances) (England) Regulations 2003 
do not permit the Council to vary an SRA rate by the amount of meetings 
attended. However, it does give the Council the capacity to award an SRA if a 
Member attends a certain threshold of meetings.  

43. Our recommendation is therefore to introduce a modest SRA for substitute 
members of the Planning Committee to reflect the time commitment and 
responsibility involved, provided that they have attended 25% of all Planning 
Committee meetings throughout the municipal year. We propose that this SRA 
will be the equivalent of 25% of the allowance for full Planning Committee 
members, and will provide both some financial recompense, and well-earned 
recognition, for those substitute members who attend a significant number of 
committee meetings throughout the municipal year. 

44. Section 1.2 of the Members’ Allowances Scheme states that ‘only one SRA 
is payable to a member at any one time, and will be the higher of the two or 
more allowances to which a member is entitled’. However we propose that 
substitute members of the Planning Committee should be able to claim this 
SRA on top of another SRA which they receive. This is because as substitute 
members of the Committee, they are not fulfilling a duty which they have 
agreed to take on as a permanent role, but are instead filling in for other 
members of their party as and when it is necessary.

45. The Panel would like to emphasise the importance of party leaders selecting 
committee membership in part by having regard to the availability of Members 
to on a regular basis to sit on daytime meetings of the Planning and Licensing 
and Environmental Health Committees. Member availability for such meetings 
has been problematic over the past three years.

46. We acknowledge that the introduction of this SRA could come at an 
additional cost to the Council. The Planning Committee’s quorum is 3 out of its 
10 members. Therefore any substitute member attending Planning Committee 
meetings when quorate had already been reached could be doing so at an 
unnecessary cost to the Council.

Increase of the Carer’s Allowance
47.  We note that the Carer’s Allowance is one of a number of expenses that 

councillors can be reimbursed for upon submission of an appropriate receipt. It 
is intended to cover the cost of payments for the care of children or of sick or 
dependent relatives ordinarily resident at a member’s home, when the 
member is engaged on one of the approved duties. 

48. The current maximum hourly claim for the Carer’s Allowance is set at £15. 
However, upon research, we have found that the hourly cost of home care is 
likely to be higher than this figure. We also note that it may be the case that a 

Page 14



Member or prospective Member might have more than one dependent who 
requires care, and that the current rate is unlikely to cover the cost of this.

49. We therefore propose to abolish a maximum hourly claim rate as it exists at 
present. The Carer’s Allowance would still be payable where expenditure is 
exclusively incurred in arranging for care of children or dependent relatives 
while the Member is engaged in carrying out their Approved Duties, as listed in 
Schedule 3 of the Members’ Allowance Scheme. Appropriate receipts will 
need to be provided before a claim is approved.

Risk Analysis

50.

Risk Likelihood Impact Mitigating 
actions

That member 
allowances do 
not continue to 
be set at a 
realistic level 
reflecting 
duties 
undertaken, 
which may 
deter future 
prospective 
councillors

2 – allowances 
paid to elected 
members do 
not reflect the 
time 
commitment 
and level of 
responsibility 
demanded

3 – the Council 
may not be able 
to attract a 
diverse range of 
councillors that 
reflect the 
makeup of the 
community they 
serve.

Adoption of 
suitable levels of 
allowances 
taking account of 
relevant 
commitment and 
responsibility of 
members

1 = Little or no risk or impact
2 = Some risk or impact – action may be necessary.
3 = Significant risk or impact – action required
4 = Near certainty of risk occurring, catastrophic effect or failure of project.

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



MEMBERS’ ALLOWANCE SCHEME COMPARISON 

The table below lists each allowance which Uttlesford District Council provides for 
members. The second column shows the current rate of each of these allowances, 
while the third column displays the proposed rate for 2019/20. The fourth column 
shows the maximum cost of paying out each allowance in 2019/20, which, for 
comparison purposes, is shown calculated on an assumption that the number of 
portfolio holders and committee chairmen does not change.  For instance the 
maximum cost of the basic allowance is the proposed 2019/20 rate multiplied by all 
39 members.

In practice, the maximum cost is likely to be less than that displayed in the table, 
because many members have multiple SRAs, but can only be awarded one of these. 
Section 1.2 of the Members’ Allowance Scheme states that ‘only one SRA is payable 
to a member at any one time, and will be the higher of the two or more allowances to 
which a member is entitled.

Allowance 2018/19 Proposed 2019/20  Maximum Cost of  
2019/20 Scheme

Basic Allowance £5151 £5202.51 £202897.89

Chairman of the 
Council

£4,121 + civic 
expenses

£4162.01 + civic 
expenses

£4162.01 + civic 
expenses

Vice Chairman of 
the Council

£2,060 £2081 £2081

Leader of the 
Council

£12,620 £12746.15 £12746.15

Deputy Leader of 
the Council

£6,696 £6763.26 £6763.26

Portfolio Holders £6,181 £6243.01 £24972.05

Overview/Scrutiny 
and Ordinary 
Committee 
Chairmen

£3,606 £3641.76 £7283.51

Chairman of 
Licensing and 
Environmental 
Health Committee

£3,863 £3901.88 £3901.88

Page 17



Members of 
Licensing and 
Environmenta
l Health 
Committee

£237.75 (to be paid 
in a municipal year 
when at least ten 
meetings of the 
Committee take 
place in a purely 
regulatory 
capacity; a 
payment will be 
made to members 
attending at least 
50% of those 
meetings).

£240.13 (to be paid 
in a municipal year 
when at least ten 
meetings of the 
Committee take 
place in a purely 
regulatory 
capacity; a 
payment will be 
made to members 
attending at least 
50% of those 
meetings).

£2161.15

Chairman of 
Planning Committee

£3,863 £3901.88 £3901.88

Members of Planning 
Committee

£475.50 £480.26 £4322.08

Substitute members 
of the Planning 
Committee

N/A £120.06 (to be paid 
in a municipal year 
when a substitute 
member of the 
Planning 
Committee has 
attended at least 
25% of meetings of 
that committee).

£600.32

Chairman of 
Standards Committee

£2,060 £2081 £2081

Main opposition 
group leader

£3,606 £3641.76 £3641.76

Other opposition 
group leader

£2,060 £2081 £2081

Independent 
representatives 
on the 
Standards 
Committee

£515 £520.15 £1560.75

Panel members of 
Independent 
Remuneration 
Panel

£515 £520.15 £1820.88

All Allowances £286978.58

Page 18



Explanatory notes about how the Special Responsibility 
Allowances are calculated:

Chairman of the Council - 80% of the basic allowance

Vice-Chairman of the Council - 40% of the basic allowance

Leader of the Council - 245% of the basic allowance

Deputy Leader of the Council - 130% of the basic allowance

Members of the Executive - 120% of the basic allowance

Chairmen of overview, scrutiny and ordinary committees - 70% of the 
basic allowance

Chairman of Licensing and Environmental Health Committee - 75% of 
the basic allowance

Members of the Licensing and Environmental Health Committee - 3, 8-
hour days at the daily rate (calculated by dividing the basic allowance 
by 65, 8 hour days, equivalent to 520 hours per annum)

Chairman of Planning Committee - 75% of basic allowance

Members of the Planning Committee - 6, 8-hour days at the daily rate 
(calculated by dividing the basic allowance by 65, 8 hour days, 
equivalent to 520 hours per annum)

Substitute members of the Planning Committee – 25 % of the special 
responsibility allowance for members of the Planning Committee

Chairman of the Standards Committee - 40% of the basic allowance

Leader of the largest opposition group - 70% of the basic allowance 

Leader of all other opposition groups - 40% of the basic allowance

Independent members of the Standards Committee - benchmarked to 
10% of the basic allowance

Members of the Independent Remuneration Panel - benchmarked to 
10% of the basic allowance (although this allowance is not reviewed by 
the Panel and is agreed independently by the Council)

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



Benchmarking the Basic Allowance

Authority Amount
Stevenage* £7651
Hertsmere* £5810
Chelmsford £5760
East Herts £5375
Uttlesford £5151
South Cambridgeshire* £4767
Braintree £4635
Epping Forest £4300

Hertsmere, Chelmsford and Braintree all index their basic allowances to the Local 
Government pay awards.

Please note, authorities labelled with an * have been selected for comparison 
because they are most similar to UDC in terms of number of Members and 
committee structure.

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank



COUNCIL held at COUNCIL CHAMBER - COUNCIL OFFICES, LONDON 
ROAD, SAFFRON WALDEN, CB11 4ER, on TUESDAY, 9 OCTOBER 2018 at 
7.30 pm

Present: Councillor L Wells (Chairman)
Councillors K Artus, H Asker, G Barker, S Barker, R Chambers, 
J Davey, P Davies, A Dean, P Fairhurst, T Farthing, M Felton, 
M Foley, R Freeman, A Gerard, T Goddard, J Gordon, 
N Hargreaves, E Hicks, S Howell, D Jones, G LeCount, P Lees, 
M Lemon, B Light, A Mills, S Morris, E Oliver, V Ranger, 
H Rolfe, H Ryles and G Sell

Officers in 
attendance:

Dawn French (Chief Executive), Rebecca Dobson (Democratic 
and Electoral Services Manager), Gordon Glenday (Assistant 
Director Planning and Building Control), Roger Harborough 
(Director – Public Services), Simon Pugh (Assistant Director – 
Governance and Legal), Stephen Miles (Planning Project Team 
Leader) and John Starr (Community Safety Officer).

Also present:  Millicent Wolter (Chairman of Uttlesford Youth Council) and Tom    
Birkbeck (Youth Councillor).

C27  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Anjum, Knight, Lodge, 
Loughlin and Redfern.

Public speaking

Statements were made by Sandi Merifield and Mike Young.  Summaries of their 
representations are appended to these Minutes. 

Councillor Artus declared a personal interest as Chairman of the Strategic 
Aviation Special Interest Group in relation to the Stansted Airport planning 
application.  

Councillor R Freeman declared a personal interest as a member of Saffron 
Walden Town Council.

Councillor Gerard declared a personal interest as a Substitute Member of the 
Planning Committee.

Councillor Dean declared a personal interest as a member of Stop Stansted 
Expansion.

Councillor Foley declared a personal interest in that he had applied for 
membership of Stop Stansted Expansion.

Page 23

Agenda Item 3



Councillor Lemon declared a personal interest in that he was a member of 
Hatfield Heath Parish Council.  

The Assistant Director – Governance and Legal reminded members there was 
no need to declare as an interest membership of a town or parish council. 
 
Councillor S Barker declared a personal interest as a Member of Essex County 
Council.  

C28  CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS 

The Chairman paid tribute to the late David Westcott.  She said he had been 
widely liked and respected, and that he had in 1990-1991 been Leader of this 
Council.  She was sure all Members would join her in sending their condolences 
to his widow.  

The Chairman said she also wished to express condolences to Councillor Oliver, 
whose wife had very recently died.  

In accordance with a request from Councillor Chambers, a minute’s silence was 
observed.  

C29  MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 

The Minutes of the meeting held on 19 July 2018 were received and signed by 
the Chairman as a correct record.  

C30  REPORTS OF LEADER AND MEMBERS OF THE EXECUTIVE 

a Report of the Leader of the Council

The Leader offered his condolences to Councillor Oliver and to 
former Councillor Westcott’s family.

He said his report was included in the agenda papers this evening, 
but that since the report had been written he had attended with the 
Chief Executive a meeting with the new Chief Inspector, Chief 
Inspector Rawlingson, and that there would be a public meeting of 
the Police, Fire and Crime Commissioner in November.

He apologised that there had been no explanation given for the 
withdrawal of the motion regarding the payback clause for the 
investment in a running track at Carver Barracks.  The motion had 
sought the removal of the clause requiring a refund from the 
allocation of the approved sum of £500,000. The reasons for the 
withdrawal of the motion were that a communication had now been 
received from the MOD estates surveyor in response to queries the 
Council had raised, to the effect that whilst removal of the contingent
liability (payback clause) was helpful, it was not the main issue 
causing delay.

Page 24



The MOD had stated that a national review was being undertaken 
which included Carver Barracks within its scope.  Following the 
review, a plan would be formulated which required ministerial 
approval to implement, which was anticipated next year.  It was 
considered imprudent to embark upon the project immediately prior to 
a strategic level decision.  The Army had indicated it hoped the 
Council could continue to be patient whilst a ministerial 
announcement was awaited.

The Leader said he had attended the Conservative Party conference.  
The news that the Housing Revenue Account borrowing cap for 
councils had been lifted was good news for Uttlesford.  He had had a 
meeting with the Housing Minister and would, with East Hertfordshire, 
be inviting the Minister for Transport to attend a meeting in the area.

 
b  Report of the Portfolio Holder for Environmental Services

Councillor S Barker said her report as Deputy Leader and Portfolio 
Holder for the Environment was included in the agenda papers.  She 
would welcome any questions.

She said the late David Westcott had been her predecessor in 
serving the community of Dunmow, and had taught her a great deal 
about the role.  She had been saddened to learn of his death, and 
sent her condolences and best wishes to his widow.  

c  Report of the Portfolio Holder for Finance and Administration

Councillor Howell referred Members to his report within the agenda 
papers as the Portfolio Holder for Finance & Administration.   

Councillor Morris asked whether Councillor Howell was aware that 
that some claimants of Universal Credit had to wait eight months 
before receiving the benefit.  

Councillor Howell said there were no cases of such delays for any 
claimants of Universal Credit in Uttlesford.  Whilst there were 
challenges, the Council was managing those challenges by ensuring 
new claimants were supported by provision of appropriate advice and 
information.  Any concerns could be raised directly with officers.  

Page 25



d  Report of the Portfolio Holder for Housing

In the absence of Councillor Redfern, Councillor Felton presented the 
report of the Portfolio Holder for Housing, referring to the successful 
redevelopment of Reynolds Court sheltered housing scheme, and 
forthcoming developments in respect of Frambury Lane in Newport 
and in Great Dunmow. 

Councillor Dean said, in relation to David Westcott, that he had been 
a great individual, tolerant towards those from other political groups.  

Councillor Dean said he had been impressed by his visit to Reynolds 
Court, and congratulated all those who had participated in the 
redevelopment.  

e  Report of the Portfolio Holder for Communities and Partnerships

Councillor Ranger referred Council to his report as Portfolio Holder 
for Communities.  As an update, he said he had attended a very 
productive meeting with the West Essex Clinical Commissioning 
Group; that plans were being put forward to provide primary care 
plans across the District, and that he would be attending the Health 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee in Chelmsford later this month to 
consider Winter pressures.  

Councillor Davies joined the meeting at 7.50pm. 

f  Report of the Portfolio Holder for Economic Development

Councillor Ryles presented his report as Portfolio Holder for 
Economic Development, highlighting various points, in particular the 
updates provided in the report on Saffron Walden Business 
Improvement District, a car park work plan to ensure the ticket 
machines were fit for purpose and the roll out programme for 
superfast broadband. 

C31  QUESTIONS TO THE LEADER, MEMBERS OF THE EXECUTIVE AND 
COMMITTEE CHAIRMEN (UP TO 15 MINUTES) 

Councillor Dean said there had been discussion at Scrutiny Committee regarding 
the potential impact of the UK’s exit from the EU on the expansion to the 
Wellcome Trust at Hinxton Hall.  He referred to press reports questioning how 
the Council would deal with the possible impact.  

Councillor Howell said he was disappointed that this matter had been raised.  
The Council had set up arm’s length governance arrangements via the company 
Aspire (CRP) Ltd regarding its investment in Chesterford Research Park.  The 

Page 26



matter had been debated at length by Scrutiny Committee and at other 
meetings, and he was aware that Councillor Dean had taken account of some of 
the points which had been raised.  It was wrong to grandstand on this matter. 

Councillor Howell said the press release referred to was speculative.  Science 
business in the District brought in much employment.  Chesterford Research 
Park competed with other science parks and it was wrong for the Council as 
landlord to undermine the businesses at CRP.  The Council had undertaken the 
investment for good reason.  Without the investment in Aspire there would be 
serious cuts to the Council’s services.

Councillor Dean said reports of economic implications for the Chesterford 
Research Park were a matter of public interest, and he was disappointed to have 
had what he considered to be a defensive reaction.  

Councillor Howell said the directors of Aspire had attended the meetings of the 
Scrutiny and Governance, Audit and Performance Committees and answered 
questions.  There were other avenues to discuss such matters, rather than at 
Council.  

Councillor Sell referred to recent ram raids in the District.  He was aware that 
Broadland District Council had invited senior police officers to give a 
presentation on crime to their Members.  He asked whether such an invitation 
could be extended to the Police in Uttlesford to enable Members to ask 
questions. 

The Leader said this suggestion was an excellent one, and that he would invite 
the new Chief Inspector to arrange to meet Members to give an overview of the 
work of the Police in this area.  

Councillor Light asked the Leader for information on the bid that was being 
prepared for the support package for the Garden Communities.  

The Chief Executive said no figure for financial support was yet available, and 
officers were working on the bid.  The Director of Public Services was arranging 
briefing meetings with Homes England to explore how funding to increase the 
capacity of the organisation could be obtained and for feasibility studies.   
Members would be kept informed.  

C32  ADDRESS FROM MEMBERS OF THE YOUTH COUNCIL 

The Chairman of the Uttlesford Youth Council, Councillor Wolter addressed the 
meeting.  She said the Youth Council was holding a seminar on 1 December to 
engage young people in the crucial topic of housing.  The Youth Council would 
report back.  The Youth Council was working on its constitution and was holding 
elections in schools across the District this month to increase the number of 
youth councillors.  The elections process had been redesigned, and members 
were looking forward to working with new Youth Councillors, whom it was hoped 
would take an active role.  Next year the Youth Council intended to work on 
plastic, mental health, school links and providing green spaces for young people.  

Page 27



The Chairman thanked Councillor Wolter for her address.  Members showed 
their appreciation of the attendance of Youth Council representatives with a 
round of applause. 

C33  REPORT FROM THE PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT WORKING GROUP 

Councillor Lemon referred members to a report from the Public Engagement 
Working Group.  He identified key areas for note, such as members’ training and 
citizens’ access.  He said he was amazed at the good level of public 
engagement, but that the report identified areas where improvements could be 
made.  The Working Group had endorsed the actions set out in the report for the 
Council to focus its efforts to better engage with the public.  

C34  ADDENDUM OF FOCUSSED CHANGES TO THE LOCAL PLAN REGULATION 
19 PRE-SUBMISSION DOCUMENT 

At the request of the Chairman, the Planning Policy Team Leader gave a briefing 
to set out the reasons for the report and recommendations to Council on an 
Addendum of Focussed Changes to the Local Plan.  He said the report reflected 
the elevated level of risk around the West of Braintree Garden Community as a 
consequence of the examination into the North Essex Authorities’ local plans 
including West of Braintree and the fact that the examiner had asked the three 
authorities to consider three options.  Braintree District Council was now 
proceeding with option two, to obtain evidence to satisfy the Inspector’s 
concerns.  Uttlesford had had legal advice that Uttlesford needed to reflect this 
elevated level of risk within the Local Plan and to set out what it would do if West 
of Braintree was not deliverable.  

The report also set out other changes in the Plan including the identification of 
the strategic policies for the purposes of neighbourhood planning and 
clarification of the policy relating to impacts on internationally protected sites 
such as Epping Forest.  

The Planning Policy Team Leader referred to the 2016 based household 
projections published last month, compared to the 2014 based projections.  He 
said if these new projections were to be incorporated, the work would need to be 
commissioned with the SHMA partners, and in a fair and transparent way.  There 
would be a need for a consultation period with submission on or by 24 January 
to the Secretary of State.  There was not time to do this.  If submission were to 
be after 24 Janaury then the standardised methodology would need to be used, 
however the Government had said it would consider reviewing that methodology 
if the new household projections would result in the Government’s national 
delivery target of 300,000 homes year not being met..  Legal advice had been 
obtained, and in short, there was not sufficient time.  

Other evidence-based updates which were now published were the spatial 
strategy background paper and the review of employment policies.  The review 
suggested changes to the Plan, however officers were not recommending 

Page 28



changes as they considered such changes did not go to the soundness of the 
Plan and would dilute the focus of the document.  

The Planning Policy Team Leader set out next steps if the Addendum were to be 
agreed.  

The Planning Policy Team Leader addressed questions raised by the first public 
speaker, regarding the possibility that a pause at the time the regulation 19 plan 
was considered could have allowed for it to be fixed at that point in time.  The 
Council had made the decision on the advice before them at that point, when the 
first letter from the North Essex Authorities inspector had been published, which 
was on 15 June, four days prior to the full Council meeting.  Officers from 
Braintree District Council had indicated they would select option 2, which had 
then been confirmed.  The decision of this Council to issue an Addendum related 
to the third letter of the North Essex Authority Inspector on 2 August, in which the 
Inspector set out more details on the options before the Councils.  

In relation to the question on the 5 year housing land supply, papers at the 
meeting of the Planning Policy Working Group had set out the Council’s 5 year 
housing land supply position.  The Council had, for Development Management 
purposes, approximately 3.5 years without taking account of the draft allocations 
in the Local Plan, 4.5 taking into account the allocations in the draft Local Plan 
and with the Local plan allocations, 5.1 years.  He outlined the difference 
between the 5 year housing land supply calculation in the Local Plan, and that 
used for development management purposes with the allocations in the draft 
Local Plan, which was the stepped trajectory in the Local Plan.   
In relation to the question on determining the delivery model, the Planning Policy 
Team Leader said at this point officers were not advising any particular model, 
as a separate process had to be concluded first.  

Regarding the points raised by the second speaker, the Planning Policy Team 
Leader said that at East Hertfordshire it was correct that communal 
establishments were not included in the overall figure, however they had a 
separate target and therefore had to have identified a supply to meet that 
requirement.  For this Council, this approach was not advised, as the Council did 
not have an identified supply to meet such a requirement, so it was included in 
the overall figure.

On the question as to the use of the most up to date household projections being 
used, he had explained there was not time to take these into account with the 
Council’s partners in a fair and transparent manner, and legal advice had been 
obtained on this point.  As it was a lower requirement, it was not something 
which had to be taken into account in the Local Plan.  

Councillor S Barker then presented the report, which set out further detail around 
an Addendum of Focussed Changes to the Regulation 19 Local Plan.  She 
referred to the additional recommendation which had now been tabled in relation 
to SP5 Garden Community Principles, and drew members’ attention to the fact 
that legal advice indicated that not proceeding with the Addendum could cost the 
Council more money and time than the costs associated with printing the 
Addendum and engaging consultants to undertake sustainability appraisal and 

Page 29



habitats regulation assessment.  There were two updates to the evidence base, 
and the Planning Policy Team Leader had explained that there was not enough 
time to update and re-submit the Local Plan before 24 January.  She proposed 
the recommendations.  

The Leader seconded the proposal. 

Members debated the proposal.  Councillor R Freeman asked that the 
recommendations be taken one at a time.  He expressed concern that it was 
proposed to give authority to individuals to take various actions such as 
submission of proposed modifications.  

Councillor Hargreaves questioned the arguments put forward regarding the 
housing numbers, as he considered it likely the Government’s housing 
requirement was coming down.  He was not convinced by assertions that care 
homes should not be treated in a different category.  

Councillor Light said the report indicated there was a continuing lack of sufficient 
evidence, and that last June she had proposed postponing the Plan to resolve 
various issues.  

Councillor Gerard questioned whether appropriate analysis of risks had taken 
place. He questioned whether a  comparison had been made as to which was a 
more significant risk: not submitting the plan before 24 January because the 
timetable was too tight, or the risk of submitting a Plan that was not right.  

Councillor S Barker said in response to Councillor R Freeman’s question, that 
the submission of a schedule of proposed main modifications of the submitted 
Local plan to address any issues relating to soundness and legal compliance 
was looking ahead to the examination to enable officers to respond to requests 
from the Inspector for modifications to address soundness matters.  

The Leader said the date of 24 January was set by the National Planning Policy 
Framework.  He did not understand the desire for delay, as the evidence to 
support the plan was significant, and it would only cost more, and would risk 
more unwarranted development without a Plan. The Inspector in relation to North 
Essex was looking at three different Garden Communities, and the Council had 
taken legal advice to progress the plan, which was to submit the Addendum of 
Focussed Changes.  He urged Council to sign off on the Addendum. 

Councillor Fairhurst said the Addendum was a Band-Aid, and that the Council 
had pushed on regardless.  There was no sports strategy, or air quality strategy, 
and it was important to get the Local Plan right.  

Councillor Dean said he would support the proposals.  The Council should 
continue on the trajectory it started on in June, there was no substantial change 
to the plan and he recommended Members should support the proposal.  

Councillor Chambers said he was opposed to the Local Plan, and Members still 
had the opportunity to fight their own corners, but it was time for the Plan to be 
submitted and he proposed it was now put to the vote.  

Page 30



The Chairman said she would take the recommendations as one item.  A vote 
being taken, the recommendations were approved with 24 votes in favour, four 
against and two abstentions.  

RESOLVED that 

1  Council being satisfied that the preparation of the Local Plan, as
amended by the Addendum of Focussed Changes, has complied with the
relevant regulatory requirements and being of the view that the Regulation 19
Pre-Submission Local Plan document is ready for submission to government
for independent examination, approves the Regulation 19 Pre-Submission
Local Plan for publication in accordance with the Town and Country Planning
(Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012;

2  following the conclusion of the Regulation 19 publication period on the
Addendum of Focussed Changes, the Local Plan be submitted to the
Secretary of State for Independent Examination under section 20 of the
Planning Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 (as amended) ("the 2004 Act"),
together with the submission documents prescribed by Regulation 22 of the
2012 Regulations before 31 March 2018;

3 the Director of Public Services, in consultation with the Environmental
Services Portfolio Holder, be authorised to make non-material typographical,
formatting, mapping and other minor amendments to the Plan prior to the
submission of the Plan to the Secretary of State;

4 the Director of Public Services be authorised to write to the Local Plan
Inspector appointed to carry out the Examination of the submitted Local Plan
("the Local Plan Inspector") asking him/her to recommend such modifications
of the submitted Local Plan as may be necessary to make the Plan sound and
legally compliant, in accordance with section 20(7C) of the 2004 Act;

5 the Director of Public Services, in consultation with the Environmental
Services Portfolio Holder, be authorised to submit a schedule of proposed
main modifications of the submitted Local Plan to address any issues relating
to soundness and legal compliance identified by the Local Plan Inspector; and

6 the Local Plan Submission Version 2018 be endorsed as a material
consideration to be used in the determination of planning applications and
enforcement decisions to be given appropriate weight in accordance with
paragraph 216 of the National Planning Policy Framework.

C35  VOTING BY BALLOT AT COUNCIL MEETINGS 

Councillor Oliver presented a report which had been considered by the 
Governance, Audit and Performance Committee on voting by ballot at Council 
meetings.  The report recommended that the Council adopt changes to the 
Constitution to provide for contested appointments made by the Council to be 
decided by way of ballot.  

Page 31



Councillor Sell said he could not support the proposals as he believed in 
transparency.  

Councillor Chambers said he had openness was important, and he was against 
the secrecy of a private ballot.  

Councillor Hargreaves said the ballot only related to the election of Chairmen 
and Vice Chairmen where there was a contested vote.  This approach was taken 
at national level for Members of Parliament and the Welsh Assembly, and the 
Scottish Parliament.  The role of Chairman was impartial and non-political, and in 
May 2017 there had been a contested vote, at which there had been a ballot.  At 
the meeting there was a request for a recorded vote, which trumped a ballot, at 
which he had heard a comment indicating that a member then felt obliged to vote 
with their political Group.  The vote then became a political vote for a non-
political position.  These were only internal elections, in which the public had little 
interest.  The proposal only related to ballots for appointments.  

Councillor R Freeman said he agreed with Councillor Chambers that 
transparency was important, but he considered it was hard to vote against one’s 
own party.  This method was good enough for national Government, so should 
be adopted.  The Council would in future be a different political make-up and 
there was a need for a secret ballot in what could be a fractured council.  

Councillor LeCount said he had heard the arguments at the meetings of the 
Governance, Audit and Performance Committee and he was in favour of the 
proposal.  

Councillor Dean said he was against the proposal, and did not wish to adopt an 
antediluvian practice of Westminster.   Members should be open and 
transparent, and grown up enough to vote for whoever they thought best for the 
appointment.  

Councillor Rolfe said, speaking as an individual, he respected colleagues on the 
Governance, Audit and Performance Committee, but this was a retrograde step 
and the example set by other places was not necessarily relevant.  Members 
should do what they considered right.  

Councillor Light said she would vote for the proposal, as in this case it was right 
that people should have a free and fair vote, and not be influenced by others. 

Councillor Howell said everything the Council did should be transparent, and he 
did not support the proposal. 

Councillor Foley said he understood the reason behind the proposal, but people 
should not be afraid to speak their mind, and transparency was key. 

Councillor Ranger said it should be borne in mind that the aim was to select 
someone who would be the best candidate to be the public face of the Council, 
so it was fair that this process was open and transparent.

Page 32



Councillor Asker said she did not see a problem with voting by means of a piece 
of paper, in the same way that the public had elected Members.  

The recommendation being put to the vote, it was lost by 23 votes against to 8 
votes in favour.  

C36  CLLR ANJUM - APPROVAL OF ABSENCE FROM MEETINGS 

RESOLVED to approve the absence of Councillor Anjum from meetings by 
reason of ill-health for the purposes of section 85(1) of the Local Government Act 
1972.  

C37  NOTICE OF MOTION RECEIVED FROM COUNCILLOR FOLEY: STANSTED 
AIRPORT PLANNING APPLICATION - PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT SESSIONS 

Members considered a motion on notice received from Councillor Foley, as set 
out on the agenda.  

Councillor Foley asked for the meeting’s consent to alter the motion.  Such 
consent being granted, he read out the altered motion.  

Councillor Farthing said Councillor Foley was a supporter of Stop Stansted 
Expansion, which many regarded as a pressure group.  This motion was an 
advertorial for Stop Stansted Expansion.  

Councillor Asker said she was happy with the proposal.  

Councillor Mills said he supported the motion, which had been superseded by 
events, however, Members of Planning Committee should be wary of expressing 
support for Stop Stansted Expansion.  

Councillor Lemon said the Stansted Airport application affected a lot of people, 
and whilst he was not a member of Stop Stansted Expansion, he felt the group 
did represent the point of view of many people.  

Councillor Hicks said he found the motion very difficult to support because it did 
not specify any details as to time to be allocated.  

Councillor Fairhurst said he was a member of the Planning Committee and the 
question of what was adequate time for representations to be made was a 
matter for the Chairman.  He was not a member of Stop Stansted Expansion, 
and he considered Councillor Farthing’s statement prejudiced his role as a 
member of the Committee.  He would like the statement withdrawn. 

Councillor Mills said everyone was entitled to his or her opinion.  

The Leader said members should stay closely to the motion which was about 
process.  

Page 33



The Assistant Director – Governance and Legal said nothing had been said that 
would prejudice the Planning Committee’s consideration of the application, and it 
was not a matter for the full Council to debate.  

The motion being put, it was carried with 24 votes in favour, three against and 
with three abstentions.  

RESOLVED  The local community group Stop Stansted Expansion 
deserves this Council’s respect for championing democratic 
accountability, transparency and public representation over many 
years with technical professionalism on matters such as the 
environment and health and other impacts on the local community 
associated with the London Stansted Airport.

The Council also recognises the employment and other economic 
benefits that the Manchester Airport Group-owned local airport 
brings to this district and to the adjacent sub-region.

 
In forthcoming public engagement sessions, the Council welcomes 
that Stop Stansted Expansion will be given adequate facilities and 
time in its role as community champion and representative of many 
residents and parish councils to explain its interpretation of the 
airport’s current growth proposals.

Furthermore, the Council considers that the Manchester Airport 
Group should be afforded commensurate facilities and time to 
explain its proposals, if it so desires.

The meeting having continued for two hours, under procedure rule 8, the 
Chairman sought the view of the meeting.  It was confirmed the meeting should 
continue.

C38  NOTICE OF MOTION RECEIVED BY COUNCILLOR SELL: REDUCING 
PLASTIC WASTE 

Councillor Sell said he was grateful to the Portfolio Holder for Environmental 
Services for her suggestions regarding this motion.  He therefore now sought to 
make an alteration, to propose that the existing Waste Strategy Panel be asked 
to carry out the work proposed, rather than establishing a new working group to 
do so.   Members consented to this alteration. 

Councillor Sell read out the altered motion as follows: 

“The council notes that the prime minister has declared war on plastic, with an 
announcement that the government hopes to “eliminate all avoidable plastic 
waste” within 25 years.  This council therefore resolves to play its part locally and 
lead by example in helping to reduce plastic waste. To this end the Council will 
ask the Waste Strategy Panel to consider:

Page 34



i. ways in which single issue plastics used by the Council can be 
replaced with sustainable or reusable alternatives where 
practicable

ii. How the Council can play its role in helping to educate members of 
the public about plastic waste,  

iii. The provision of public drinking fountains across Uttlesford and 
encouraging a culture of refillable bottles, to promote health, 
reduce litter and cut the use of plastic an

iv. How to use the links we have with businesses in Uttlesford to 
encourage them to reduce the amount of plastic waste produced 
and encourage participation in refill schemes in town centres

v. Lobbying for a plastic bottle deposit return scheme and support for 
the campaigns from Keep Britain Tidy, the Marine Conservation 
Society, Campaign to Protect Rural England and Reloop.

Councillor Sell said the motion attempted to ensure that this Council led by 
example on a very serious issue, given the inordinate amount of plastic which 
was sent to landfill and which was in the wider environment.  Unless the situation 
changed, there would be more plastic in the oceans than fish.  This motion was 
not intended to be prescriptive, but was to look at ways to tackle plastic waste.  
He proposed the motion. 

Councillor Fairhurst seconded the motion.  

Councillor S Barker thanked Councillor Sell for accepting her suggestions for 
changing the motion.  The proposed work should be focussed and should be 
reported to Council in December.  The Secretary of State was expected to 
produce a report on the use of plastics, consideration of which should be 
incorporated into the review.  

Councillor Fairhurst said it was good to lead, and to encourage people to take 
small actions themselves, as if everyone did so it would make a difference. 

Councillor Hargreaves asked whether the working party could look at collections 
out of street bins.  

Councillor S Barker said the County Council had a Materials Recovery Facility 
for black bin waste, which did reduce residual waste.  Regarding street bins, the 
suggested advice to the public was to take recyclables home for disposal.  

The motion was put to the vote and carried. 

RESOLVED  The council notes that the prime minister has declared war 
on plastic, with an announcement that the government hopes to “eliminate 
all avoidable plastic waste” within 25 years.  This council therefore 
resolves to play its part locally and lead by example in helping to reduce 
plastic waste. To this end the Council will ask the Waste Strategy Panel to 
consider:
i. ways in which single issue plastics used by the Council can be 

replaced with sustainable or reusable alternatives where 
practicable

Page 35



ii. How the Council can play its role in helping to educate members of 
the public about plastic waste,  

iii. The provision of public drinking fountains across Uttlesford and 
encouraging a culture of refillable bottles, to promote health, 
reduce litter and cut the use of plastic an

iv. How to use the links we have with businesses in Uttlesford to 
encourage them to reduce the amount of plastic waste produced 
and encourage participation in refill schemes in town centres

v. Lobbying for a plastic bottle deposit return scheme and support for 
the campaigns from Keep Britain Tidy, the Marine Conservation 
Society, Campaign to Protect Rural England and Reloop.

The meeting ended at 9.35pm.

Summaries of Public SpeakingStatements

Statement of Sandi Merifield

Please note the minutes of the meeting of the Planning Policy Working Group 
held on 4 October 2018 are incorrect in that the representatives of Stebbing 
Parish Council only met with officers, not with the Council’s barrister.  

Stebbing Parish Council feels it is meant to feel grateful to officers for sharing 
with us the advice of the Council’s QC, but we do not.  The District Council is 
simply protecting itself.  Stebbing feels let down by the District Council.  Land 
West of Braintree featured in all of the scenarios in the Regulation 18 
sustainability appraisal.  It is clear that this option is a risk, but the Council is 
ploughing on regardless.  Stebbing Parish Council does not believe the Inspector 
will be satisfied, and is worried that if the Garden Community is sited at West of 
Braintree that the area would face the threat of 1500 to 2000 homes.  If it does 
not go ahead then I am sure the District Council’s planners would look for the 
rest of the requirement elsewhere in the District.  

Is there a five year housing supply?  Has the District Council been seeking to fill 
the gap the loss of land West of Braintree would leave?  How many planning 
applications are there at present?  It is left to the development plan to test the 
delivery model.  We have no experience of how collaboration works so how can 
the Council make comments?  

Statement of Mike Young

I wish to make three points concerning housing need:  

First, the present calculation is illogical, as it principally affects Epping and 
Uttlesford; secondly, the addition for communal establishments is incorrect, as 
rooms in care homes should be deducted as they are not classified as 
properties, but more importantly, they should not be included, as was accepted 
by the East Herts examination.  

Page 36



Third, from 24 January, housing need will be based on a new government 
forumula.  Government advice is to use the most up to date figures, which 
means the household projections issued in September should be used.  
Methodology of leading consultants which has been accepted by the Planning 
Inspectorate shows a housing need figure of 3,000 less than that proposed.  The 
changes could be recalculated, but there is time, with will and determination.  

Page 37



This page is intentionally left blank



Committee: Council

Title: Leader's Report to Council

Report 
Author:

Councillor Howard Rolfe, Leader of the Council 
and Lead for Strategy, Partnerships and the 
Local Plan

Date:
Tuesday, 4 
December 2018

Summary

1. This report summarises the Leader’s activities on behalf of the Council.

Recommendations

2. None.

Financial Implications

3. None.

Background Papers

4. None.

Situation
5. Since the last Council meeting there have been a number of key 

events/meetings:

6. Meeting with the MP and the new Police Chief Inspector. 

 UDC updated Kemi Badenoch on current events and activities in 
Uttlesford.

 The new CI Janette Rawlingson (responsible for Braintree and 
Uttlesford) outlined how she is creating a separate team for the two 
Districts and when the new officers will be deployed.

7. Support for Saffron Hall with sponsorship for a performance by the Halle 
orchestra.

 UDC hosted a reception and invited local businesses to attend the 
concert to draw attention to the excellence of the facility and the need 
for financial support.

8. I met the Head Teacher at Ashdon school.

 The school is an excellent facility but faces the challenge of falling 
numbers. This highlights the need for community facilities whether 
schools, pubs or shops.

Page 39

Agenda Item 5



9. There was a further meeting of the Essex Partners Board on October 23.

 I have outlined the Essex vision and the work of this group before but it 
is important there are outcomes that benefit all our communities. One 
project is to get behind the Essex and Proud strap line. 

10. I visited Reynolds Court. 

 This is an outstanding facility and typifies the Administration’s 
determination to care for the elderly, the frail and those with financial 
challenges.

11.   Local Strategic Partnership Annual Assembly, November 1

 A number of Members were in attendance to listen and take part in 
sessions on the role that technology can play in community care and 
how we must continue to work in a joined up system.

12.Sport in Saffron Walden.

 Two potential schemes have been lost but a further meeting was held 
on November 2 to explore options and a group was established to take 
this forward.

13.Locality Board, County Hall, November 5.

 ECC and UDC meet quarterly to drive common initiatives. This meeting 
focussed on Public Health and special needs education.

14.  Visit to Eddington, November 6

 Cambridge University have built a new community on the west side of 
Cambridge and a group of UDC Members and officers visited on 
November 7. The group learned a number of important lessons with the 
most striking feature being that there were no wheelie bins.

15.  Meeting with ECC Chief Executive, November 7

 Dawn French and I meet with Gavin Jones on a quarterly basis. This 
time we discussed Highways, Garden Communities, Stansted, LEP 
structures and Public Health.

16.Uttlesford Business breakfast, November 15

 On November 15 about 80 attendees from business and UDC attended 
an important networking event. The two main external speakers 
covered Digital and Clean Tech. The latter was a fascinating 
presentation from Martin Garrett, the CE of Cambridge CleanTech, 
outling the opportunities that now exist.

17.  Essex Health and Well Being Board, November 21

Page 40



 The agenda this time included how Town and Parish Councils can best 
work with H&WB; Alcohol/Drugs,; STP plans.

18.  TCPA Annual Conference, November 22.

 I met the Minister for Housing, Kit Malthouse, when he spoke at the 
conference. Amongst his comments he reconfirmed the Government’s 
commitment to building 300,000 houses pa. There are 100 applications 
for Garden Communities for over half a million homes. The Minister 
wants more, better and faster homes and said we must change the 
mindset from NIMBYS to SLIMBYS – something lovely in my back yard! 
I have invited Kit to visit Uttlesford and the surrounding areas to discuss 
our Local Plan and he has accepted.

19. I will update Council on how UDC can support Thaxted and Stansted libraries 
after I have met with the respective PCs.

Page 41



This page is intentionally left blank



Committee: Council

Title: Report from the Portfolio Holder for 
Environmental Services

Report 
Author:

Councillor Susan Barker, Portfolio Holder for 
Environmental Services

Date:
Tuesday 4 
December 2018

Summary

1. This report summarises the activities of the Portfolio Holder for Environmental 
Services on behalf of the Council.

Recommendations

2. That Council notes this report.

Financial Implications

3. None.

Background Papers

4. None.

Situation

5. A meeting of the Council’s Waste Strategy Panel was called to consider the 
Motion on Plastics as agreed at the last Council meeting.  The meeting 
considered the Council’s current approach to minimising the impact of plastics 
waste and found that a number of initiatives were already underway to recycle 
plastic waste.  The new Waste Awareness and Education Plan focuses on 
reaching schools across the district to improve pupil’s knowledge on a variety 
of subjects including the impact of plastics on the environment. There are 
opportunities to improve the amount of plastics that is recycled through 
commercial waste and to take a leading role in reducing the amount of single 
use plastics used by the Council.  The Panel will prepare a report for 
consideration by Cabinet in the New Year and will meet again to monitor 
progress.    

6. From 1 October, all houses in multiple occupancy (HMOs) occupied by 5 or 
more people need to be licensed. Cabinet has agreed a set of minimum 
standards which must be met for a licence to be issued. These standards are 
for the protection of tenants in shared houses or bed sit type accommodation 
with sheltered facilities. They include minimum room sizes, kitchen facilities, 
bath/shower room and WC compartments.

7. Cabinet has also reviewed the licensing fees for kennels, catteries, dog 
breeding and riding establishments. Of the 48 premises of this type currently 

Page 43

Agenda Item 6



licensed in Uttlesford, 24 are due to be licensed under the new regime that 
has come into force.

8. Cabinet agreed to publish a Local Heritage List. The list identifies heritage 
assets across the district that re not designated as ancient monuments or 
listed buildings. The list is a rolling document that is updated periodically. 
Although not providing specific protection, local listing will be taken into 
account in planning decisions. 

9. The use of Claypits Plantation on the southern edge of Saffron Walden, land 
leased by the council from the Audley End Estate, has, in principle, been 
agreed as a “forest school”.

10.Christmas parking promotion proposals have also been agreed for Dunmow, 
Saffron Walden and Stansted.        

Page 44



Committee: Council

Title: Report of the Portfolio Holder for Communities 
and Partnerships

Report 
Author:

Richard Auty, Assistant Director - Corporate 
Services
rauty@uttlesford.gov.uk

Date:
Tuesday, 4 
December 2018

Summary

1. This report summarises key activity in the Communities and Partnerships 
portfolio.

Recommendations

2. None, this report is to note only.

Financial Implications

3. None

Background Papers

4. None

Situation

Health and Wellbeing

5. The Health and Wellbeing Team continues to support a range of programmes 
in the district.

6. A weight management programme (supported by Anglian Community 
Enterprise) offers weekly weigh-ins in various community settings across the 
district, including the council offices. The programme is currently supported by 
the Health and Wellbeing Officer and volunteers. The aim is to build a strong 
volunteer base to support the programme going forward.

7. A number of activities have been funded by the Active Uttlesford Network to 
commence soon, including a festival for women and girls in February 2019 
offering taster classes in activities including netball, yoga, Pilates, karate, 
bowls and badminton. The Network is funding other projects, including a 
CVSU gardening project for people with slight to moderate special needs, a 

Page 45

Agenda Item 7



women’s tennis coaching course in Thaxted, an equipment ‘library’ at 
Radwinter recreation ground, an active musical theatre workshop for women 
and girls, netball training courses and a walking activity for people with 
sensory loss and their carers.

8. Uttlesford Dementia Action Alliance launched Dunmow dementia café in May 
this year. It is going well and there are plans to launch another one in the near 
future in Saffron Walden. The Alliance is also supporting Volunteer Uttlesford 
with a bid to the Health and Wellbeing Board of the Local Strategic Partnership 
for support with an intergenerational art project involving people with dementia 
and their carers. 

9. Winter warmth work this year focuses on a more targeted approach. Uttlesford 
CAB is working with partners to offer support to households that may be at risk 
of fuel poverty and cold homes to discuss the current offers and grants 
available from the council’s Environmental Health department.

10.The council signed up to the Time to Change campaign in October. One 
session of mental health first aid training for managers has already been 
delivered and a second is being planned. In addition, a 2-hour ‘mental health 
at work’ session will be offered to all staff.

Community Safety

11.The Community Safety Hub, which provides a drop-in point in the council 
offices for partner agencies including the police and Essex social care, 
continues to be well-used. Agencies are using the hub regularly as a base 
whilst in the district which enhances partnership working. Hub meetings are 
well attended where a multi-agency approach is given to low level crime and 
ASB issues.

12.The Communities Team supported the High Sheriff of Essex in a door 
knocking exercise in Saffron Walden called #safewellsecure. He was 
complementary of the partnership working in the district and was keen to be 
able to pass on to the PFCC how well agencies worked together in the district 
and that the partnership was much wider than just the fire/police collaboration.

13.Safer Streets projects are underway throughout the district assisted by 
partners internally and externally. The latest project took place on 23 
November in Stansted Mountfitchet, focusing on speeding enforcement, 
issuing community protection warning, licensing visits and talking to local 
businesses regarding child sexual exploitation and human trafficking.

Page 46



14.The council-funded PCSOs are working across the district resolving low level 
crime and anti-social behaviour. They are also conducting high visibility patrols 
to help alleviate the fear of crime. The PCSOs are involved in partnership 
operations alongside the council’s Community Safety Officer and 
Safeguarding Officer around human trafficking and child sexual exploitation, 
particularly with regard to hotels and food outlets around Stansted Airport.

15.Working in partnership with town and parish councils, the district council is 
match funding two new PCSOs. One PCSO will be working in the parishes of 
Stansted, Henham and Elsenham and the other will be working across the 
Saffron Walden town wards. The PCSOs will be based at the Lodge in Saffron 
Walden for start and finish of duty, but will otherwise be patrolling out in their 
areas. 

Engagement
16.The Youth Council is currently recruiting in schools and across the locality. 

Recruitment is also taking place in the new Stansted Harlow College and it is 
planned to contact nearby out-of-locality schools and colleges whose 
catchment areas include parts of Uttlesford. Young people from the Youth 
Council gave a brief report to the October Full Council meeting and attended a 
visit to the garden community in Eddington. Further work is scheduled with the 
council’s Planning department to better include young people in the planning 
process.

17.As part of that programme, the Youth Council was hosting a Housing Seminar 
on 1 December including presentations from senior council Planning officers.

Partnerships

18.The Local Strategic Partnership Annual Assembly took place on 1 November. 
It provided an opportunity for delegates from more than 25 organisations to 
come together to contribute to the cross-cutting theme “21st Century Living”. 
After hearing from four key note speakers those in attendance were asked to 
consider their own and/or agency’s views and aspirations for the next 25 years 
on the development of four topics; Housing, Health & Wellbeing, Digital 
Technology and Infrastructure.

19.Partners’ views were captured and general themes which emerged included:

 Ensuring cohesion/alignment between existing communities with those being 
developed, with particular consideration around housing for older people, 
ideally in the centre of a location

Page 47



 The importance of a community hub; this could be purpose-built in a central 
location with a new development, or utilise existing buildings within 
communities eg schools/churches with safe secure WIFI access

 There was some suggestion that co-housing could be a solution, especially 
around the introduction of intergenerational living. This would need to be fit for 
purpose and future proofed housing for young and old

 The importance of connectivity was seen as vital. Good affordable WIFI 
availability to ensure people were not isolated and could work from home, but 
this was not to be seen as a replacement for physical interaction

 It was agreed access to health services needed to accommodate those who 
worked by either extending the hours services were open or use alternative 
virtual GP appointments via Skype or Facetime

 Emotional and physical wellbeing was a common theme and was seen as 
equally important for a healthy community. This included the protection of 
green open spaces

Saffron Walden Museum

20.The museum service is awaiting news from the Arts Council England about 
the timetable for its mid-term Accreditation review. With the return to a full 
team of staff in the Autumn, the Curator will be moving forward with 
discussions with the Heritage Lottery Fund about grant applications for future 
museum development.

21.The museum now ranks number 2 out of 19 things to do in Saffron Walden on 
Trip Advisor.

22.The current exhibition Collections: Re-Crafted launched in October and 
features 40 textile art works by 30 artists, inspired by Saffron Walden and 
museum’s outstanding collections.

23.Work is continuing to promote full learning and outreach service to local 
schools. Since the Learning and Outreach Officer post was re-established the 
museum has seen a steady increase in school engagement and officers are 
focusing their efforts on taking the museum’s varied collections out to schools 
as well as continuing to welcome schools to the museum itself.

24.The museum formally launched its new display of the Piano Hoard on 30 
November. In 2017, some 913 gold sovereign and half-sovereign coins were 
discovered in Shropshire, hidden inside a piano. The piano was originally 
supplied by Beaven & Mothersole Piano Tuners, who were based in West 
Road, Saffron Walden. Receipts show the company had purchased the piano 
direct from the London manufacturers, Broadwood & Sons Ltd in 1906.

25.  It was only when the piano was professionally tuned that the coins were finally 
discovered, nestled between the keys and the keyboard.

26. In 1983, the piano was bought by the Hemmings family, residents of Saffron 
Walden. They owned the piano for 33 years before moving to Shropshire and 

Page 48



gifting it to their local college, The Community College, Bishop’s Castle, 
completely unaware of what was hidden inside.

27.Research shows that the coins found date to between 1847 and 1915 – so 
they originate from the reigns of Queen Victoria, King Edward VII and King 
George V.

28.Now the piano and a representative sample of 12 of the gold coins are 
permanently on display at the museum.

Looking Forward
29.A course will be held in January to enable further staff to become trained to be 

able to handle queries of hate crime and to be able to signpost victims for 
help. This will then reinforce the Hate Incident Reporting Centre (HIRC) status 
of the district.

30.The council’s Health and Wellbeing Strategy is being refreshed along with the 
LSP’s Sustainable Communities Strategy.

Page 49



This page is intentionally left blank



Committee: Council

Title: Report of the Portfolio Holder for Economic 
Development

Report 
Author:

Councillor Howard Ryles, Portfolio Holder for 
Economic Development

Date:
Tuesday 4 June 
2018

Summary

1. This report provides an update on all the ongoing key economic development 
activities.

Recommendations

2. That Council note the Economic Development update and comment as 
considered appropriate.

Financial Implications

3. Included in the report below.

Background Papers

4. None.

Situation

5 The economic development update is provided below under the key project 
headings

6. Saffron Walden Business Improvement District

 Saffron Walden BID company (limited by guarantee) has been registered with 
Companies House.

 To date of the £94k per annum total BID levy being collected by the Council’s 
Business Rate Team on behalf of the BID £80.1k has been collected leaving 
£13.9k still to be collected. The amount remaining equates to some 54 
businesses out of the total in the BID area of 278 liable to pay the BID levy.

 An extensive marketing campaign is being delivered by the BID including 
utilising a vintage bus to bring those people visiting the miniature railway and 
Audley End House up into the centre of town.  

7. Broadband

 Superfast Essex has advised the Council that the Gigaclear delivery of Phase 
3 of superfast broadband in Uttlesford is approximately 6 months behind 
schedule with a completion date now of July 2020. The delay is national and 
Gigaclear report that this is due to the complexity of the installation of fibre in 

Page 51

Agenda Item 8



rural locations and that they have been successful in winning a number of 
contracts resulting in their resources being overstretched. They have and are 
adding to their resources as quickly as possible.     

 The draft of the Essex-Herts Digital Innovation Zone (DIZ) “a local strategy to 
secure future prosperity and health” is now available and being circulated.

8. Uttlesford Business Breakfast

 The annual business breakfast was held on November 15th at Chesterford 
Research Park with the theme of “Digital Innovation” and was attended by 
over 80 local businesses and organisations. Key note speakers were Dean 
Russell of Epifny Consulting who spoke on “smart business” and Martin 
Garratt of Cambridge CleanTech who spoke on “smart places.”   

9. Uttlesford Business Awards

 The Business Awards Gala Dinner was held on 14th June 2018

 The 2019 business awards commence in October this year 

10.Business Website

 The Economic Development team have worked closely with Bruce Tice, other 
council departments and external agencies on a draft business focused 
website. The aim of the website is to provide a one-stop-shop for local 
businesses who are looking for advice and/or support for their business or 
business idea.

Page 52



Committee: Council

Title: Report of the Portfolio Holder for Finance and 
Administration

Portfolio 
Holder:

Councillor Simon Howell, 
Portfolio Holder for Finance and Administration 

Date:  
4 December 2018

Report 
Author:

Angela Knight, Assistant Director – Resources 
aknight@uttlesford.gov.uk

Key decision:  
No

Summary

1. This report summarises key activity in the finance and administration portfolio.

Recommendations

2. None, this report is to note only

Financial Implications

3. None

Background Papers

4. None

Impact 

5.  

Communication/Consultation

Community Safety

Equalities

Health and Safety

Human Rights/Legal 
Implications

Sustainability

Ward-specific impacts

Workforce/Workplace

Page 53

Agenda Item 9



Budget Setting 2019/20

6. The key activity for the current period is setting the council’s budget for 
2019/20; a consultation has been carried out asking residents and businesses 
to rank their priorities on the council’s services and what they would like them 
to focus on in the medium term. This year we saw the highest response to 
date with nearly 2,500 responses.

7. The responses are consistent with previous years where the main priority is to 
empty bins and keep the district clean and tidy. The second priority was to 
work with the Police and other organisations to keep the district safe.

8. The consultation responses have been reviewed by the Scrutiny Committee 
and the Cabinet at their November meetings.

9. The final budget proposals will be reviewed by Scrutiny on 31 January, 
Cabinet on 12 February and finally Council, along with the Council Tax 
Resolution, for full member approval on the 21 February 2019.

Financial Position

10.The finance settlement is due to be announced on Thursday the 6 December 
and this is the final year of a 4 year settlement.

11.Uttlesford is part of an Essex wide (excluding Thurrock) bid to become a pilot 
area for 75% Business Rates Retention in 2019/20. It is hoped that the 
successful bids will be announced as part of the Finance Settlement.

12.The Government is carrying out significant reviews on how Local Authorities 
funding will be allocated in future years, the main area of work is around the 
Fair Funding Review. This review will encompass all aspects of funding, 
Business Rates Retention, New Homes Bonus and other smaller grants, e.g. 
Rural Services Delivery Grant.

13.The implications of the Fair Funding Review are due to be announced 
sometime in 2019 and could have a significant impact on the Medium Term 
Financial Strategy from 2020/21; I along with the S151 Officer are monitoring 
this closely and will brief members as soon as we have any information. 

14.The New Homes Bonus has seen some changes in the last 2 years were we 
have moved from a 6 year to a 4 year scheme and the introduction of a 0.4% 
deadweight factor, both these factors have contributed to a reduction in our 
funding. There is further consultation ongoing with regard to the 2019/20 
allocation with a major question mark over whether the deadweight % will be 
increased from 0.4% any increase in this will reduce the councils allocation 
further.

Local Council Tax Support Scheme (LCTS) 2019/20

15.The Cabinet proposals to set the LCTS scheme for the next financial year 
were presented to Scrutiny in November and are on tonight’s agenda for full 
member approval.

Page 54



16.The proposals are to maintain the contribution rate at 12.5%, maintaining our 
position as the council with lowest rate in Essex and to continue to provide 
protection for the vulnerable and disabled.

17. Included in these proposals is the option to increase the premium on 
properties that have been empty for longer than 2 years. To assist in the 
housing shortage and encourage home owners to bring their properties back 
into use, government has given Local Authorities the option to increase the 
council tax premium from 50% to 100%. 

18.The proposals were subject to a full consultation over the summer alongside 
the Budget consultation and this consultation received its highest response to 
date and nearly doubled the amount of the last year.

Benefits Subsidy Audit 2017/18

19.The Benefits Subsidy audit was completed ahead of the 30 November 
deadline, and only one financial error of £980 was found from a total value of 
£16.24 million.

20.5 years ago the council was in the position of having to repay the DWP 
£192,000, this repayment has decreased year on year. The measures put in 
place to reduce errors have been so successful that last year the council was 
able to recover funding of £25,887 and this year the expected sum to be 
recovered is £54,162.

Aspire (CRP) Ltd

21.The accounts for the financial year were audited by BDO and published on the 
Companies House website ahead of the September deadline.  The Directors 
presented an annual report to the Governance, Audit and Performance 
Committee in September. This confirmed income levels at those forecast at 
the time of purchase. Later, on tonight’s agenda there is a request for 
additional financial support for a fit out of the Newnham Building. 

Information Technology

22.The council successful completed its Public Sector Network (PSN) compliance 
review. This is an annual process and requires the council to demonstrate that 
the digital infrastructure is secure.

Page 55



This page is intentionally left blank



Committee: Council

Title: Report from the Portfolio Holder for Housing

Report 
Author:

Councillor Julie Redfern, Portfolio Holder for 
Housing

Date:
Tuesday, 4 
December 2018

Summary

1. This report summarises the Portfolio Holder for Housing’s activities on behalf 
of the Council.

Recommendations

2. None.

Financial Implications

3. None.

Background Papers

4. None.

Situation

5. Housing Strategy and Enabling

 In the process of reviewing and updating Housing Strategy in line with the 
Local Plan. The new strategy will be an important element of the Council’s 
Local Plan that proposes new garden communities.

 The Homelessness Strategy and Housing Allocations Policy have been 
reviewed and updated to take account of new Homelessness Reduction Act 
which was implemented in April 2018.

 Bid prepared for additional Housing Revenue Account borrowing headroom to 
fund an increase in the Council’s Housebuilding Programme – Government 
has since announced plans to remove the debt cap.

 157 affordable homes delivered in 2017/18. The number of affordable homes 
delivered this year up to 31/10/2018 is 165, consisting of 116 affordable rented 
and 49 shared ownership. 

 Working with registered provider and ECC for the successful delivery of 
district’s first Independent Living Scheme in Saffron Walden. The scheme will 
provide 71 units of accommodation and is due for completion in February 
2019. 

Page 57

Agenda Item 10



 Working with registered provider and ECC for the successful delivery of new 
learning disabilities scheme in Saffron Walden. The scheme completed in 
November 2018 and is ready for occupation. Residents will be moving in over 
the next month. 

 Two council owned houses have been converted into shared houses for 
people with learning difficulties. The properties have now been leased to 
Family Mosaic who will be providing the support. 

 Criteria and application process approved for Community Housing Fund Small 
Grant Allocations.

6. Housing Options and Homelessness

 The Housing Options Team has been fully trained in how to deliver the 
requirements of the new Homelessness Reduction Act and the Homelessness 
Strategy and Allocations Policy have been reviewed and updated. New 
systems in place to record all homelessness prevention work and generate 
personalised housing plans as well as provide direct H-Click data to 
government

 Homelessness Partnership meetings held quarterly to enable cross 
organisational homelessness prevention work to be carried out in the district

 Received a visit from a MHCLG specialist advisor who expressed satisfaction 
with how the authority was working within the new Act, particularly impressed 
by commitment shown by members of The Homelessness Partnership

 Another Syrian Refugee family accommodated by council

 Essex Trailblazer homelessness reduction project working well with some 
successes recorded in preventing homelessness within Uttlesford

 Council Housing Development Programme

 The councils own housing development programme has now delivered a total 
of 100 properties to date

 Reynolds Court was completed ahead of schedule in September 2018 
delivering a total of 41 new high quality supported homes and communal 
areas. From the outset this has been a collaborative project. Planners, 
architects, the Parish Council, Homes England, the community and other key 
stakeholders have helped shape this stunning building

 The re-modelling of Hatherley Court in Saffron Walden commenced in May 
2017 and is taking shape. The scheme is being modernised to a high standard 

Page 58



and when complete will provide 26 spacious flats suitable for modern living. 
There will also be two new one-bed flats added to the scheme, a new ground-
floor day room with a conservatory overlooking the Common, and a new 
entrance area. The first phase of works is due to complete in December 2018, 
with the second phase due to be completed by August 2019

 Options for Walden Place in Saffron Walden have been explored and have 
been reported to Housing Board and Cabinet for a decision on the way 
forward. Planning drawings are being progressed, along with associated 
surveys and reports

 A new build development at Sheds Lane in Saffron Walden completed on time 
and on budget in July 2018. 2 x 2 bed houses and 1 x 3 bed bungalow. 
Officers worked with Occupational Therapy professionals to ensure that the 
bungalow would meet the needs of a local family 

 Planning approval gained for 2 x 2 bed houses and 2 x 1 bed flats and 
provision of new parking court for adjacent Council owned flats at Newton 
Grove in Great Dunmow. The scheme has been out to tender, contractor 
appointed and work on the construction has started on site 

 Planning approval gained for 4 x 2 bed houses, and associated parking at 
Frambury Lane in Newport. The scheme has been out to tender, contractor 
appointed and work on the construction has started on site 

 A pre-application submission for 16 properties at The Moors in Little Dunmow 
has been made, and planners’ responses received. Surveys have been 
undertaken and the Parish Council and local residents have been consulted. 
Planning drawings are being finalised so that an application can be submitted 
in Autumn 2018

7. Private Sector Housing

 Both the Private Sector Housing Strategy and Homes Repairs Assistance 
Policy were approved by Cabinet last year. Work has now commenced to 
deliver on the key priorities of the strategy as outlined within the action plan 
and working with partners to target assistance to those in greatest need

 A Well Homes initiative is being developed to improve housing conditions and 
the health and wellbeing of residents living in private properties. Vulnerable 
groups in poor housing are to be targeted for help using stock profiling data

 The Council are now in complete control of the DFG process since the 
previous long-term arrangements with The Papworth Trust Home 
Improvement Agency ended in April 2017. Since bringing the services in 

Page 59



house processes have been streamlined which has already shown a 
significant improvement in response times. An information pack has also been 
developed to aid customers with the process. Reductions in waiting times will 
reduce further complications and ongoing care costs.

 Developed and implemented a new civil penalty policy for Housing Act 
offences

 Developed and implemented a new fee structure and council guidance for 
amenity standards for Houses in Multiple Occupation (HMOs) that require 
Mandatory Licensing under new HMO regulations

Page 60



Committee: Council

Title: Local Council Tax Support Scheme and 
Consultation Responses 2019/20

Portfolio 
Holder:

Councillor Simon Howell, 
Portfolio Holder for Finance and Administration 

Date:  
4 December 2018

Report 
Author:

Angela Knight, Assistant Director – Resources 
aknight@uttlesford.gov.uk

Key decision:  
Yes

Summary

1. There is a requirement to annually review the Local Council Tax Support 
(LCTS) Scheme, and propose changes to the scheme for the following 
financial year. The decisions made, even if no change is proposed, must then 
be consulted upon before a decision is taken on the final scheme for the 
following financial year. 

2. A consultation was carried out during the summer on the Cabinet’s proposals 
for the 2019/20 LCTS scheme and the level of premium to be applied to 
properties empty for more than 2 years.

3. In 2013/14 when the original scheme was introduced the contribution rate was set at 
8.5%. This increased in 2014/15 to 12.5% and it has remained at this rate for each 
subsequent year.

4. As can be seen from the table in paragraph 12 Uttlesford has the lowest percentage 
contribution requirement of any authority in Essex. This demonstrates that whilst the 
council has had sufficient funds to support the scheme it has done so.

5. The Cabinet agreed their draft proposals for the 2018/19 LCTS Scheme at the 12 July 
Cabinet and these proposals along with the consultation responses were reviewed by 
Scrutiny at their meeting on the 20 November. 

6. The Cabinet will review the draft proposals alongside the consultation responses and 
comments from Scrutiny at their meeting on the 29 November, should a decision be 
made to amend the scheme proposals from the recommendations below a 
supplementary paper will be presented to Council.

Recommendations

7. That the Council approve the Local Council Tax Support scheme for 2019/20 and the 
empty homes premium as recommended at Cabinet on 29 November 2018 and set 
out in this report.

I. The 2019/20 LCTS scheme is set on the same basis as the 2018/19 scheme 
and therefore the contribution rate is frozen for the fifth consecutive year.

II. The Council continues to protect Vulnerable and Disabled Residents and 
Carer’s on a low income.

III. The premium applied to properties empty for a period of more than 2 years is 
increased from 50% to 100%.

Page 61

Agenda Item 14

mailto:aknight@uttlesford.gov.uk


Financial Implications

8. Detailed in the main body of this report.

Background Papers

9. None.

Impact 

Communication/Consultation Proposals to be subject to public consultation and 
discussions with major preceptors

Community Safety None.

Equalities An equalities impact assessment has been 
completed

Health and Safety None.

Human Rights/Legal Implications Compliance with relevant legislation.

Sustainability The objective is to achieve a financially sustainable 
set of arrangements.

Ward-specific impacts None.

Workforce/Workplace Ongoing demands on the Revenues & Benefits, 
Housing and Customer Service teams

Local Council Tax Support (LCTS)

10. LCTS replaced Council Tax Benefit (CTB) from 1 April 2013. The Council has 
adopted a scheme which has the following key elements:

a) Pensioners on low income protected from adverse changes (as required by 
Government)

b) Disabled people, carers and blind people on a low income receive discretionary 
protection from adverse changes

c) Working age people pay no more than 12.5% of the council tax bill

d) £25 per week of earned wages income disregarded from assessment (to provide 
a work incentive)

e) Child Benefit and Child Maintenance disregarded from assessment (to minimise 
exacerbation of child poverty, or accusations of same)

f) Hardship Policy to enable additional support for cases of extreme hardship

Page 62



11. In 2017/18 it was agreed that the LCTS scheme would adopt the following principals 
in line with Housing Benefit legislation;

i. Removal of the family premium for all new working age claimants
ii. Reduction of backdating of a claim from 6 months to 1 month
iii. Removal of the element of the work related work activity component in 

the calculation of the current scheme for new employment and support 
allowance applicants

iv. Period of absence from Great Britain reduced from 13 weeks to 4 
weeks whilst still being able to claim benefits

Contribution Rates across Essex

12.The council has the lowest percentage liability cap within Essex.

Contribution Rate (%)

2013/14
2014/15 

& 
2015/16

2016/17
2017/18 

& 
2018/19

Basildon 15 25 25 25
Braintree 20 20 20 24
Brentwood 20 20 20 20
Castle Point 30 30 30 30
Chelmsford 20 23 23 23
Colchester 20 20 20 20
Epping Forest 20 20 25 25
Harlow 24 24 26 24
Maldon 20 20 20 20
Rochford 20 20 20 28
Southend-on-Sea 25 25 25 25
Tendring 15 15 20 20
Thurrock 25 25 25 25
Uttlesford 8.5 12.5 12.5 12.5

LCTS Claimant Caseload

13.The following table shows the caseload as at 1 April for each year and shows 
a significant drop in the number of Working Age claimants through the life of 
the scheme. Although there is an increase in the number of vulnerable and 
disabled claimants since the introduction of the scheme, the caseload has 
been consistent since 2015 with only marginal increases.

1st April 2013 1st April 2014 1st April 2015 1st April 2016 1st April 2017 1st April 2018
Pensionable 2,093 1,984 1,881 1,807 1,735 1,621
Vulnerable 522 582 651 653 667 651
Working Age Employed 508 470 406 359 334 341
Working Age Other 752 612 498 417 419 400
Working Age Total 1,260 1,082 904 776 753 741
Overall Total 3,875 3,648 3,436 3,236 3,155 3,013

Page 63



14.Whilst the decrease in working age claimants is positive it does mean any 
future changes to the scheme are directly impacting on a much smaller group 
of people. In addition, as the group is smaller the revenue raised from 
increasing the contribution rate has also decreased. 

15.The charts below give a breakdown of caseload by total claimants and then by 
category of claimants.

Total Caseload

LCTS Claimants by category

Page 64



Increasing the Contribution Rate

16. If the contribution cap is increased from 12.5% the scheme would generate 
more income. However as the Working Age group is reducing in size the 
amount of additional income per percentage point is also decreasing.

17.For each increase of 2.5% in the contribution rate it would generate additional 
council tax income of £31,409 across all the major preceptors.  The council tax 
distribution between the precepting authorities is shown in the following table.

Precepting Authority £
Essex County Council 72% 22,614
Police, Fire and Crime Commisioner
Policing and Community Safety 10% 3,141
Fire and Rescue Authority 4% 1,256
Town and Parish Councils 5% 1,570
Uttlesford District Council 9% 2,827

100% 31,409

Council Tax share

18.The impact of each 2.5% increase on a Working Age claimant who receives 
the maximum LCTS award would be an additional 81p per week to pay, 
equating to £42.39 for a full year.

19.The financial gain and the claimant impact are detailed in the table below; the 
costings are based on all working age claimants paying the full contribution 
and uses the average band D equivalent for calculation. It is impossible to 
identify and calculate precise figures as the contribution level and council tax 
band varies dependant on the claimant’s circumstances.

Contribution 
Rate

Average 
total liability 
income due

Increase @ 
2.5% 

increments

Cost per 
year to 

claimant

Cost per 
week to 
claimant

% £ £ £ £

12.50 157,045 0 211.94 4.08
15.00 188,454 31,409 254.32 4.89
17.50 219,863 62,818 296.71 5.71
20.00 251,272 94,227 339.10 6.52

20. If the contribution rate is increased then we would risk a reduction in the 
amount of income collected.

Income Sharing Agreement

21.An Essex wide income sharing agreement was entered into with all billing 
authorities and major preceptors at the time of implementation of the new 
LCTS scheme.  

Page 65



22.The main principles of the agreement are to ensure a joint approach in 
maximising income collection, reduce fraud and ensure compliance.  

23.By working proactively on fraud and compliance this ensures that our Taxbase 
is maintained at the maximum level to generate extra revenue for both the 
major preceptors and billing authorities.

24.Preceptors receive a share of all income generated for Council Tax and this is 
allocated through the Collection Fund at year end. 

25.The increased income generated specifically from these activities and internal 
decisions by UDC each year is monitored by Essex County Council and the 
preceptors have agreed to share an element of their extra income with the 
Local Authorities.

26.We are currently working with Essex County and other Local Authorities on the 
‘Next Steps for the Sharing Agreement’. The original agreement was for a 3 
year period, but in 2018/19 only a further one year was agreed by Essex 
County Council. Further discussions have taken place and we hoped to secure 
a further 3 year agreement for 2019/20 but this has now been offered for a 1 
year only and the share back percentage reducing from 16% to 14%. The 2% 
saving has been ring-fenced for investment to increase taxbase income and 
options on how best to use these funds are yet to be agreed. 

27. In addition to the share back income, two dedicated Fraud and Compliance 
Officers are also being funded through this agreement and the funding for 
these posts is protected. 

28.As part of the scheme the major preceptors (County, Fire and Police) provide 
funding of £34,000 per annum to employ an officer to ensure the efficient 
administration of the LCTS scheme. The officer also works with those people 
affected by the scheme to provide support in managing their payments and 
thereby avoid costly recovery action being taken. 

29.Essex County Council contributes £7,000 per annum towards the running of 
the hardship scheme which has a £15,000 annual budget (£8,000 UDC 
element). 

Cost of LCTS scheme

30. In 2013 when the LCTS scheme was introduced the cost of providing this 
benefit was added to Local Authorities Revenue Support Grant (RSG), this 
grant has since been reducing year on year and in 2018/19 the council no 
longer received any RSG. 

31.To account for this funding reduction government adjusted the Business Rates 
baselines through the tariffs and top-ups, but due to complexity of the 
calculation it is impossible to identify how much we actually retain in real 
monetary terms regarding the LCTS scheme. In total the council has seen 
funding reductions over the previous 4 years including the adjusted baselines 
of over £2.5m.

Page 66



32.The table below shows the predicted financial impact of the scheme for 
2019/20, using a mix of current and previous year data. 

£ '000

LCTS 
Expenditure 

2018/19

County, 
Fire and 

Police 
Share

UDC 
Share 

2018/19

LCTS Discounts 3,177 2,732 445
Major Preceptors - Sharing Agreement (16%) 0 108 (108)
Net of LCTS Scheme & Discounts 3,177 2,840 337
Major Preceptor LCTS Funding (Admin & Recovery) 0 34 (34)
LCTS Hardship Scheme 15 7 8
ECC Funding of Hardship Scheme 0 5 (5)
Total Net Cost 3,192 2,886 306

Consultation responses

33.The consultation for the LCTS scheme was included in the Budget 
consultation. The total number of responses was nearly double that of last 
year with 1,713 responses received; the full report is attached as Appendix A.

34.A multi directional approach was taken using the following methods:

 Paper questionnaire in Uttlesford Life
 Online via the Council website
 Telephone Survey
 Survey included in the summer Citizens Panel questionnaire
 A dedicated survey was sent to the Key Preceptors, Town and Parish 

Councils with an extended deadline to allow time to present the survey 
at their committees

35.The LCTS element of the questionnaire asked residents whether we should 
continue to provide full protection to vulnerable and disabled people 
(pensioners on low income automatically receive full protection as part of the 
central government scheme legislation). It also asked if we should maintain the 
current contribution rate of 12.5% that non protected resident’s that are out of 
work or on a low income are required to pay. 

 94.5% of responses agreed that we should continue to protect vulnerable 
and disabled as part of our local scheme

 68.09% of responses agreed that the current contribution rate should be 
kept at 12.5%

36.The Council currently charges a 50% premium on Empty Homes that have 
been unoccupied for longer than 2 years (exceptions apply, e.g. Armed 
Forces, special circumstances). This means that owners of empty properties 
currently pay the normal full council tax liability and after the 2 year period an 
additional 50% premium is applied. 

Page 67



37. In the summer Government announced a new scheme giving Local Authorities 
the discretionary power to increase the premium from 50% to 100% if a 
property is left empty for a period of 2 years or more. The new bill became an 
act of Parliament on the 1 November and is a key driver for the Governments 
initiative in bringing empty properties back into use and help reduce the 
housing shortages. 

38.The will mean that residents with an empty property for more than a 2 year 
period will be required to pay double the council tax on the property. 

 83.59% agreed that the premium applied should be increased to 100%

39.The 4 responses received from the key preceptors, including Town and Parish 
Councils is shown below:

 100% of responses agreed that we should continue to protect vulnerable 
and disabled as part of our local scheme

 100% of responses disagreed that the current contribution rate should be 
kept at 12.5%. The survey provided the option to agree or disagree with 
the current contribution rate

 1 of the 4 respondees agreed that the premium applied should be 
increased to 100%

Risk Analysis

Risk Likelihood Impact Mitigating actions

Assumptions 
about costs and 
income levels are 
incorrect 

2 (a high 
degree of 
variability and 
estimation is 
involved)

2 (adverse or 
favourable  cost 
affecting the council 
budget/collection fund)

Monitor trends 
closely and review 
scheme each year 
to make necessary 
adjustments. 

1 = Little or no risk or impact
2 = Some risk or impact – action may be necessary.
3 = Significant risk or impact – action required
4 = Near certainty of risk occurring, catastrophic effect or failure of project.

Page 68



Uttlesford District Council October 2018

Local Council Tax Support (LCTS) and Empty 
Homes Survey
A summary report on the public survey about Local Council Tax Support (LCTS) 
provision in Uttlesford and the Council Tax premium charged for empty homes for 
the financial year 2019-2020.

Uttlesford District Council has been consulting local residents regarding the Local Council Tax Support Scheme since 
2012 during which time the Scheme has undergone various changes. 

Questions regarding the Scheme were included in the Council Spending questionnaire which was distributed district wide 
in 16 July to 6 August 2018 as an insert in the Summer Edition of the council’s newsletter Uttlesford Life. Residents who 
preferred to participate electronically were provided with a link to an online version of this section of the questionnaire. In 
Appendix 2 a direct comparison can be seen between the responses from this year’s survey and those from the 2017 
survey. Overall the results show that the views of residents have changed little in the last twelve months.

Feedback was also sought from residents regarding a proposed amendment to the Council Tax premium charged on 
properties within the district which have been empty and unfurnished for two years or more. The results tabulated below 
show a distinct appetite from respondents to adopt the imposition of an increased premium.

P
age 69



Results 
Questionnaire Responses 

Overall submissions Result counts (percentage)
Total number of paper submissions:
Total number of web submissions: 
Total number of submissions:
Postcodes data entered: 

1696 (99.01%)                      
17 (0.99%)                                  
1713 (100%)
1544

Headline question Result (percentage)
Q3a The Government has said pensioners on low income must be given full 
protection from the implications of the Local Council Tax Support (LCTS) scheme. 
Uttlesford’s current scheme also protects disabled people on a low income and 
carers on a low income.
Do you agree with this?

Yes  (94.50%)

No  (5.50%)

Q3b In the past few years the level that working age recipients in Uttlesford 
contribute towards their Council Tax bill has been set at 12.5%. This is the lowest 
contribution of any council in Essex.
For each 2.5% of increase the LCTS recipient(s) will need to pay, on average, an 
additional £38 of Council Tax each year.
The cost to the council of keeping the rate at 12.5% would be approximately 
£204,000. For each 2.5% increase recipients have to pay, the cost of the scheme 
for the council would reduce by approximately £3,958.
Should the council keep the rate at 12.5%?

Yes (68.09%)

No  (31.91%)

P
age 70



Headline question Result (percentage)

Q3c Since 1 April 2013, councils have been allowed to charge a 50% premium on 
properties that have been empty and unfurnished for two years or more. The 
purpose of this is to bring empty homes back into use and help address the housing 
shortfall. Uttlesford District Council already charges the maximum premium allowed.
From 1 April 2019, councils will be allowed to increase the premium to 100% – this 
means homeowners will be paying double Council Tax on a property if it is left 
empty after two years rather than one and a half times Council Tax as they have to 
at the moment.
Should the council increase the premium on properties that have been empty and 
unfurnished for 2 years or more to 100% of the council tax?

Yes  (83.59%)

No  (16.41%)

In summary, response to the Local Council Tax Support Scheme questions indicates a majority view that the current 
scheme should remain unchanged but that the Council Tax premium on properties which have been empty and 
unfurnished for two years or more should be increased from 50% to 100% in the financial year 2019-2020.

More detail regarding the questionnaire, postcode profiling, comparative data from the previous year’s LCTS survey and 
charts to illustrate response may be viewed in the accompanying Appendices.

P
age 71



T
his page is intentionally left blank



LCTS (2019-20) and Empty Homes Survey
Appendix 1 - Charts to show resident response 

Consultees were asked three questions: 

The government has said pensioners on a low income must be given full protection 
from the implications of the Local Council Tax Support (LCTS) scheme. Uttlesford's 
current scheme also protects vulnerable and disabled people on a low income and 
carers on a low income. Do you agree with this?

Yes No
0.00%

20.00%

40.00%

60.00%

80.00%

100.00%

Percentage response

Q3a.Protection for vulnerable and disabled people 
and carers on a low income

P
age 73



In the past few years the level that working age recipients in Uttlesford contribute towards their Council Tax bill has been 
set at 12.5%. This is the lowest contribution of any council in Essex.
For each 2.5% of increase the LCTS recipient(s) will need to pay, on average, an additional £38 of Council Tax each year. 
The cost to the council of keeping the rate at 12.5% would be approximately £204,000. For each 2.5% increase recipients 
have to pay, the cost of the scheme for the council would reduce by approximately £3,958. 
Should the council keep the rate at 12.5%?

Yes No
0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

70.00%

80.00%

Percentage response

Q3b. Keeping the contribution rate for 
working age recipients at 12.5%

P
age 74



Since 1 April 2013, councils have been allowed to charge a 50% premium on properties that have been empty and 
unfurnished for two years or more. The purpose of this is to bring empty homes back into use and help address the 
housing shortfall. Uttlesford District Council already charges the maximum premium allowed.
From 1 April 2019, councils will be allowed to increase the premium to 100% – this means homeowners will be paying 
double Council Tax on a property if it is left empty after two years rather than one and a half times Council Tax as they 
have to at the moment. Should the council increase the premium on properties that have been empty and unfurnished for 
2 years or more to 100% of the council tax?

Yes No
0.00%

10.00%
20.00%
30.00%
40.00%
50.00%
60.00%
70.00%
80.00%
90.00%

Percentage response

Q3c. Increasing the Council Tax premium on empty 
properties to 100%

P
age 75



T
his page is intentionally left blank



LCTS (2019-2020) and Empty Homes Survey
Appendix 2 - Survey trends 2018/19 versus 2019/20 schemes

A comparison is made between the results of the consultation run in 2017 for the 2018/19 scheme and that run in 2018 for 
the 2019/20 scheme. A direct correlation of any responses is only reported here where the same question was asked in 
both surveys.

Overall submissions Result (percentage) Result (percentage) Trend

2018/19 scheme 2019/20 scheme and trend
Total number of paper 
submissions:

Total number of web 
submissions: 

Total number of submissions: 

(98.19%)                      

(1.81%)   

                               

(100%)

(99.01%)                      

(0.99%)   

                               
     

     (100%)

P
age 77



Headline question Result counts (percentage)
Q3a The Government has said 
pensioners on low income must 
be given full protection from the 
implications of this scheme. 
Uttlesford’s current scheme also 
protects disabled people on a 
low income and carers on a low 
income.

Do you agree with this?

Yes  (94.66%)

No  (5.34%)

Yes  (94.50%)

No  (5.50%)

Q3b For each 2.5% of increase 
the LCTS recipient(s) will need to 
pay, on average, an additional 
£38 of Council Tax each year.
The cost to the council of 
keeping the rate at 12.5% would 
be approximately £204,000. For 
each 2.5% increase recipients 
have to pay, the cost of the 
scheme for the council would 
reduce by approximately £3,958.
Should the council keep the rate 
at 12.5%?

Yes  (71.6%)

No  (28.1%)

Yes  (68.09%)

No  (31.91%)

P
age 78



Q3c
Should the council increase the 
premium on properties that have 
been empty and unfurnished for 
2 years or more to 100% of the 
council tax?

(This question was not 
included in the Local Council 
Tax Support Scheme Survey 
for 2018-2019)

Yes  (83.59%
  
No  (16.41%) 

P
age 79



T
his page is intentionally left blank



LCTS (2019-20) and Empty Homes Survey
Appendix 3– Profile Data by Postcode

It was hoped that residents from across the district would take part in the survey so all consultees were invited to enter 
their postcode. 1544 post codes were entered. Some participants preferred not to supply any postcode data or not to 
provide the full postcode. The table below shows the general spread of participation across the district. 

CB10 CB11 CB 21 CM1 CM21 CM22 CM23 CM24 CM3 CM6 CM7 SG8
0.00%

5.00%

10.00%

15.00%

20.00%

25.00%

30.00%

35.00%

Percentage of Total

LCTS (2019-20) and Empty Homes Survey
Results Submitted by Postcode

P
age 81



P
age 82



Uttlesford District Council October 2018

Local Council Tax Support (LCTS) and Empty Homes Survey

A summary report on a survey of town and parish councils within the Uttlesford district about 
Local Council Tax Support (LCTS) provision and the Council Tax premium charged for empty 
homes for the financial year 2019-2020.

This survey took the form of an online questionnaire and was sent as a link to the parish and town clerks within the 
Uttlesford district, as well as to Essex County Council and the Police, Fire and Crime Commissioner. A total of four 
submissions were received.

These questions also appeared in the Council Spending questionnaire which was distributed district wide in July 2018 as 
an insert in the Summer Edition of the council’s newsletter Uttlesford Life. Responses from the district residents are 
reported separately.

A total of four responses were received. 

P
age 83



Results 
Questionnaire Responses 

Headline question Result counts (percentage)
Q3a The Government has said pensioners on low income must be given full 
protection from the implications of the Local Council Tax Support (LCTS) scheme. 
Uttlesford’s current scheme also protects disabled people on a low income and 
carers on a low income.
Do you agree with this?

Yes: 4 responses (100%)

No: 0 responses (0.00%)

Q3b In the past few years the level that working age recipients in Uttlesford 
contribute towards their Council Tax bill has been set at 12.5%. This is the lowest 
contribution of any council in Essex.
For each 2.5% of increase the LCTS recipient(s) will need to pay, on average, an 
additional £38 of Council Tax each year.
The cost to the council of keeping the rate at 12.5% would be approximately 
£204,000. For each 2.5% increase recipients have to pay, the cost of the scheme 
for the council would reduce by approximately £3,958.
Should the council keep the rate at 12.5%?

Yes: 0 responses (0.00%)

No: 4 responses (100%)

Q3c Since 1 April 2013, councils have been allowed to charge a 50% premium on 
properties that have been empty and unfurnished for two years or more. The 
purpose of this is to bring empty homes back into use and help address the housing 
shortfall. Uttlesford District Council already charges the maximum premium allowed.

Yes: 1 response (25%)

No: 3 responses (75%)

P
age 84



Headline question Result counts (percentage)
From 1 April 2019, councils will be allowed to increase the premium to 100% – this 
means homeowners will be paying double Council Tax on a property if it is left 
empty after two years rather than one and a half times Council Tax as they have to 
at the moment.
Should the council increase the premium on properties that have been empty and 
unfurnished for 2 years or more to 100% of the council tax?

Saffron Walden Town Council declined to complete the online questionnaire but submitted an emailed comment as shown 
below.

“A response was considered at the Town Council’s Full Council meeting on 10th September 2018 and is recorded under 
Minute Reference FC481-18.  At this meeting it was agreed that the Council was unable to complete the on-line survey 
and the Town Council’s response to this consultation is as follows:

“Resolved: No response to individual questions but to note that UDC retains all of the LCTS monies and no longer 
passes any to town or parish councils” “

P
age 85



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Fast-track equality impact assessment  Jan 2010                                                  1                                                    Uttlesford District Council
It’s Our Community

Uttlesford District Council

Fast-track equality impact 
assessment (EqIA) tool

What is this tool for?

This tool will help you to assess the impact of existing or new strategies, policies, 
projects, contracts or decisions on residents and staff.  It will help you to deliver 
excellent services, by making sure that they reflect the needs of all members of 
the community and workforce.

What should be equality impact assessed?

You only need to equality impact assess strategies, policies, projects, contracts or 
decisions that are relevant to equality.  If you are not sure whether your activity is 
relevant to equality take the ‘relevance test’ on Page 9.

How do I use the tool?

This tool is easy to use and you do not need expert knowledge to complete it.  It 
asks you to make judgments based on evidence.  

The tool uses a system of red flags  to give you an indication of whether or 
not your responses are identifying potential issues.  Getting a red flag does not 
necessarily indicate a problem, but it does mean that your assessment is 
highlighting issues or gaps in data that may require further investigation or action.

If there is insufficient space to answer a question, please use a 
separate sheet.

Page 87



Fast-track equality impact assessment  Jan 2010                                                  2                                                    Uttlesford District Council
It’s Our Community

General information
1 Name of strategy, policy, project, contract or 

decision.
Local Council Tax Support (LCTS) Scheme – 2019/20

2 What is the overall purpose of the strategy, 
policy, project, contract or decision?

To set the proposals for the 2019/20 scheme
I. Set the contribution rate for working age 

unemployed and low income claimants at 12.5%
II. Continue to protect pensioners and the vulnerable 

and disabled
III. Increase the premium from 50% to 100% for 

properties empty longer than 2 years

3 Who may be affected by the strategy, policy, 
project, contract or decision?
       

          

   

4 Directorate. Adrian Webb, Director of Finance and Corporate Services       

5 Are other departments or partners involved in 
delivery of the strategy, policy, project, 
contract or decision?

        

        

Gathering performance data
6 Do you (or do you intend to) collect this 

monitoring data in relation to any of the 
following diverse groups?

 

x Residents

Staff

A specific client group/s e.g. linked by 
geographical location, social economic 
factors, age, disabilities, gender, 
transgender, race, religion or sexual 
orientation (please state)          

No

x Yes

x

x

x

x

x

Age

Sex

Gender 
Reassignment

Religion & 
Belief

Marriage and 
Civil 
Partnerships

x

x

x

x

x

  Disability

  Race

Sexual 
Orientation

Pregnancy and 
Maternity

Rural 
Isolation

Page 88



Fast-track equality impact assessment  Jan 2010                                                  3                                                    Uttlesford District Council
It’s Our Community

7 How do you (or how do you intend to) monitor 
the impact of the strategy, policy, project, 
contract or decision?

        

x

External verification

x

x

x

Performance indicators or targets

User satisfaction

Uptake

Consultation or involvement

Workforce monitoring data

None 

Eligibility criteria

Complaints

Other (please state):

Page 89



Fast-track equality impact assessment  Jan 2010                                                  4                                                    Uttlesford District Council
It’s Our Community

Analysing performance data

8 Consider the impact the strategy, policy, 
project, contract or decision has already 
achieved, measured by the monitoring data 
you collect.  Is the same impact being 
achieved for diverse groups as is being 
achieved across the population or workforce 
as a whole?

*Plea
Please state your evidence for this, including full 
document titles and dates of publication for audit 
purposes.  Where applicable please also state the nature 
of any issues identified:  

No specific groups are referred to in the document and 
none of the information within it will have a differential 
impact on any group.

9 Is uptake of any services, benefits or 
opportunities associated with the strategy, 
policy, project, contract or decision generally 
representative of diverse groups?

*Please state your evidence for this, including full 
document titles and dates of publication for audit 
purposes.  Where applicable please also state the nature 
of any issues identified: 

No specific groups are referred to in the document and 
none of the information within it will have a differential 
impact on any group.

Checking delivery arrangements

10 You now need to check the accessibility of your delivery arrangements against the requirements below.  
Click on the hyperlinks for more detailed guidance about the minimum criteria you should meet.

If assessing a proposed strategy, policy, project, contract or decision, indicate ‘Yes’ if you anticipate 
compliance by launch of implementation.

                                                                                                                             Yes       No    N/A

The premises for delivery are accessible to all.

x Yes *

No*

Insufficient 
evidence
Not applicable 

x Yes *

No*

Insufficient 

Not applicable 

x

Page 90



Fast-track equality impact assessment  Jan 2010                                                  5                                                    Uttlesford District Council
It’s Our Community

Consultation mechanisms are inclusive of all.

Participation mechanisms are inclusive of all.

If you answered ‘No’ to any of the questions above please explain why giving details of any legal 
justification.  

x

x

Page 91



Fast-track equality impact assessment  Jan 2010                                                  6                                                    Uttlesford District Council
It’s Our Community

Checking information and communication arrangements

11 You now need to check the accessiblity of your information and communication arrangements against the 
requirements below.  Click on the hyperlink for more detailed guidance about the minimum criteria you 
should meet.

If assessing a proposed strategy policy, project, contract or decision, indicate ‘Yes’ if you anticipate 
compliance by launch of implementation.

                                                                                                                                     Yes       No    N/A
Customer contact mechanisms are accessible to all.

Electronic, web-based and paper information is accessible to all.

Publicity campaigns are inclusive of all.

Images and text in documentation are representative and inclusive of 

all.
If you answered ‘No’ to any of the questions above please explain why, giving details of any legal 
justification.  

Future Impact

12 Think about what your strategy, policy, project, contract or decision is aiming to achieve over the long term 
and the ways in which it will seek to do this.  This is your opportunity to take a step back and consider the 
practical implementation of your strategy, policy, project, contract or decision in the future.  As well as 
checking that people from diverse groups will not be inadvertently excluded from or disadvantaged by any 
proposed activities, it is also an opportunity to think about how you can maximize your impact, reach as 
many people as possible and really make a difference to the lives of everyone in Uttlesford regardless of 
their background or circumstances.
Is it likely to inadvertently exclude or disadvantage any diverse groups?

       

*Please state any potential issues
Identified.

Improvement actions

13 If your assessment has highlighted any 
potential issues or red flags, can these be 
easily addressed?

       

       

  

     

*If Yes, please describe your proposed action/s, intended 

x

x

x

x

x No

Yes * 

Insufficient evidence

Yes

x

No*

Not applicable

Page 92



Fast-track equality impact assessment  Jan 2010                                                  7                                                    Uttlesford District Council
It’s Our Community

impact, monitoring arrangements implementation date and 
lead officer:  
     

Making a judgement – conclusions and next steps

14 Following this fast-track assessment, please confirm the following:

       There are no inequalities identified that 
cannot be easily addressed or legally 
justified

No further action required.  
Complete this form and implement 
any actions you identified in Q13 
above

       There is insufficient evidence to make a 
robust judgement.

Additional evidence gathering 
required (go to Q17 on Page 7 
below).

       Inequalities have been identified which 
cannot be easily addressed. Action planning required (go to Q18 

on Page 8 below).

15 If you have any additional comments to make, 
please include here.

        

Completion

16 Name and job title Angela Knight
Assistant Director, Resources

Name/s of any assisting officers and people 
consulted during assessment:

Date:

Date of next review:

For new strategies, policies, projects, 
contracts or decisions this should be one year 
from implementation.

CMT, Cabinet Members, Local residents, Businesses and 
all preceptors (including Town and Parish Councils) all 
consulted

4 December 2018

5 December 2019

x    None

x

Page 93



This page is intentionally left blank



Committee: Council

Title: Review of Returning Officer's Fees and 
Expenses

Portfolio 
Holder:
Report 
Author:

Councillor Howell

Rebecca Dobson, Democratic and Electoral 
Services Manager
rdobson@uttlesford.gov.uk

Date:
Tuesday, 4 
December 2018

Summary

1. Members are asked to review and approve the Returning Officer’s scale of 
fees and expenses for use at all relevant local elections and referendums held 
in the Uttlesford district from 1 March 2019.  

Recommendations

2. That the Council: 

a. approves the scale of fees and expenses set out in Appendix 1 to the 
report. 

b. reviews the fees and expenses every four years in the year immediately 
preceding the ordinary election of district and parish councillors.

c. delegates authority to the Director of Finance and Corporate Services 
to increase the scales annually to reflect the local government pay 
award.

Financial Implications

3. The recommendations have costs which are already budgeted. The full cost of 
administering parish elections will be charged directly to those parishes 
concerned, whether or not those elections are contested. 

Background Papers

4. None.

Impact 

5.       

Page 95

Agenda Item 15



Communication/Consultation No specific consultation has been carried 
out, although focused benchmarking has 
taken place.

Community Safety No impact

Equalities No impact

Health and Safety No impact

Human Rights/Legal 
Implications

The Council must pay all of the Returning 
Officer’s expenses as reasonably incurred, 
provided they do not exceed the scale of 
fees, if the scale of fees is adopted

Sustainability No impact

Ward-specific impacts All

Workforce/Workplace No direct impact

Situation

1. The Council is obliged by law to appoint a Returning Officer, who at Uttlesford 
is the Chief Executive.  The Returning Officer’s duties are separate from her 
duties as a local government officer.    

2. The Representation of the People Act 1983 provides that all expenditure 
properly incurred by the Returning Officer in relation to an authority election 
shall be paid by the Council, in so far as such expenditure does not, in cases 
where there is a scale fixed for the purpose by the council for that area, 
exceed that scale.  There are similar provisions for the election of parish 
councillors, although there is discretion as to whether that cost should be 
reclaimed from the parish councils concerned.  

3. The legislation therefore makes provision for a scale of expenses to be fixed 
for the purpose of determining the expenses which are to be met, although it 
does not require such a scale to be adopted.  It also provides that, in cases 
where a scale has been fixed, such scale may not be exceeded.  

4. Where combined polls are held, the legislation requires that election expenses 
be apportioned equally between such polls.  However, not all functions at a 
combined poll are combined.  The Council’s scale of fees will therefore be 
used where costs are attributable to district ward elections, but parish election 
costs will be reclaimed from the parish councils concerned (unless the Council 
were to decide otherwise).  If a contested parish poll does not take place, the 
costs reclaimed will be limited to the work involved in dealing with 
nominations, publishing notices, associated fees and incidental costs such as 
postage.  

Page 96



5. The Council has operated on the basis of an adopted scale of fees and 
expenses.  These fee arrangements are reviewed by the Council every four 
years in the year immediately preceding the ordinary election of district and 
parish councillors.  In all other years, delegated authority is given to the 
Director of Finance and Corporate Services to increase the fees under these 
scales annually in line with the average annual local government pay award in 
the interim period between the four yearly reviews by Council.

6. The above approach is considered the most convenient method of ensuring 
that election expenses are met, and that appropriate staff may be recruited. It 
is proposed to retain the same arrangements during the period until the next 
review in 2022. 

7.  Following the approval of the scale of fees on 18 December 2014, the 
Director of Finance and Corporate Services authorised an increase of 2.2% on 
22 February 2016; an increase of 1% on 3 March 2017 and an increase of 1% 
on 3 April 2018.

8. Focused benchmarking regarding staffing fees has been undertaken to 
compare the fees which are proposed to be payable by two neighbouring 
authorities for electoral staff payments in 2019.  The authorities approached 
for this information are those with which for Parliamentary elections combined 
functions such as staffing of polling stations is likely to be required.  Four 
wards of one authority, Chelmsford City Council, are within the current 
boundary of the Saffron Walden Constituency; the other authority, Braintree 
District Council, is the authority which if the 2018 Parliamentary Boundary 
Review recommendations are approved by both Houses of Parliament, would 
instead have four wards of its area included in the Saffron Walden 
Constituency.  The data obtained is set out in Table 1 below. 

Table 1

CCC BDC UDC (with uplift 
of 2%)

Presiding Officer 
fee

215 205 199.35

Training 50 35 45.50

Poll Clerk fee 140 105 125.20

Training 50 35 45.50

Count

Evening

Day

15.00 per hour 13.50 per hour

9.00 per hour 108 approx

Page 97



9. The above comparative data indicates that whilst the fees payable for polling 
staff at Uttlesford are broadly similar to those payable at other nearby, 
authorities, they are less than those applicable at those authorities.  There is a 
risk that if the fees were to be significantly less than those payable in these 
authorities that it would prove difficult to recruit sufficient polling staff in 
Uttlesford.  If the fees are increased by 2% they will remain slightly less for 
polling staff, but would remain broadly similar to those payable at neighbouring 
authorities.  It is proposed to increase the fees by 2% to reflect the local 
government pay award made in 2018.  The appendix to this report sets out the 
proposed increase in relation to all fees.  

10.

Risk Analysis

11.      

Risk Likelihood Impact Mitigating actions
2 

That fees 
agreed for the 
payment of 
polling and 
other staff 
engaged by 
the returning 
officer become 
progressively 
more 
uncompetitive 
as compared 
with 
neighbouring 
authorities 

2 
Benchmark 
data indicates 
fees may 
diverge if the 
increase of 
2% is not 
adopted

2 
The impact 
would be 
make the 
recruitment of 
election staff 
more difficult 
and potentially 
jeopardise the 
effective 
administration 
of the 
statutory 
functions of 
the returning 
officer

Through 
benchmarking and 
other actions, ensure 
that the rates of 
payment on offer are 
sufficient to recruit 
enough reliable staff 
with the skills required

1 = Little or no risk or impact
2 = Some risk or impact – action may be necessary.
3 = Significant risk or impact – action required
4 = Near certainty of risk occurring, catastrophic effect or failure of project.

Page 98



- 1 -

RETURNING OFFICER’S SCALE OF FEES AND EXPENSES PAYABLE AT ELECTIONS OF 
DISTRICT AND PARISH COUNCILLORS, REFERENDUMS AND PARISH POLLS IN THE 
DISTRICT OF UTTLESFORD EFFECTIVE FROM 1 MARCH 2019 

EXISTING
SCALE FEE

£

PROPOSED 
SCALE FEE

£

1 Returning Officer’s Fees
Fee for conducting the election and generally performing duties which a Returning 
Officer is required to perform under any enactments relating to Local Government 
elections, other than any duties for which separate allowances are prescribed 
herein:-
(a) for each electoral area for which a contest takes place
(b) at a contested election, for every 1,000 electors or part thereof within each 

electoral area
(c) for each uncontested electoral area, countermanded election and elections 

at which there are insufficient valid nominations

71.70

25.20

33.90

73.10

25.70

34.55

2 Clerical Fees and Allowances
For all supervisory and clerical assistance, including the services of one or more 
deputy returning officers (other than at the counting of votes – see separate 
payment), the following fees and allowances are payable:-

(a) for each contested electoral area

(b) for each uncontested electoral area, or countermanded election
94.35

44.10

96.20

45.00

3 Poll Cards
For services in connection with the preparation, issue and delivery of official poll 
cards, the following allowances are payable:-

(a) allowance for every 100 electors or part thereof in the electoral area for the 
employment of persons in connection with the preparation and issue of poll 
cards

(b) allowance for the delivery of poll cards, other than by post, the lower of the 
following:-

(i) 64% of second class postage rate; or
(ii) the net rate at which the Royal Mail or other provider would deliver 

the cards

1.99
2.00

4 Postal Voting
An allowance for the employment of persons in connection with the dispatch and 
receipt of the ballot papers of electors entitled to vote by post:-

(a) for every 50 postal voters in the electoral area, or part thereof 42.70

43.55

5 Polling Staff
(a) for the Presiding Officer at each polling station (to include all expenses, 

other than any travelling expenses recoverable under part 7 of this scale)

(b) for the Poll Clerk at each polling station (to include all expenses, other than 
any travelling expenses recoverable under part 7 of this scale)

(c) for all duly appointed polling staff, for attending an appropriate training 
session, to include all travelling expenses associated with that attendance, 
on the basis that the appointment will be cancelled in the event of a refusal 
to attend.

195.45

122.75

44.65

199.35

125.20

45.50

Page 99



- 2 -

(d) for each person authorised to provide training for all polling staff on the 
basis set out in paragraph (c) above for each such session provided.

83.75 85.40

6 The Count

(a) (i) for performing the duties of a Deputy Returning Officer, a fee 
for each contested district or parish election, or combination thereof, 
for which the counting of votes takes place

(ii) fee for each recount for any electoral area for which a Deputy 
Returning Officer is responsible 

(b) a fixed sum is payable, for each contested ward or parish, for the 
remuneration of all staff engaged in the counting of votes, except for any 
deputy returning officer(s) so appointed; and

(c) a fixed sum is payable, in respect of each separate recount of votes that is 
required to be held, for the remuneration of all staff engaged in that count 
or those counts, except for any deputy returning officer(s) so appointed

50.35

25.20

212.10

106.10

51.35

25.70

216.30

108.20

7 Travelling Expenses

The travelling expenses of the Returning Officer and clerical or other assistants employed by 
him where necessary to make arrangements for the poll or otherwise in connection with the 
conduct of the election; and of each Presiding Officer, Poll Clerk, or count assistant, reasonably 
and properly incurred, shall be reimbursed at the rate of 45 pence per mile.

8 Miscellaneous Disbursements

The actual and necessary costs shall be payable in respect of each of the following items:-

(a) printing and providing ballot papers and official poll cards;

(b) printing and providing notices and other documents required in and about the election or 
poll and costs of publishing the same;

(c) the renting of any building or room for the purpose of the election and for expenses of 
heating, lighting and cleaning any building or room for such purpose;

(d) adapting and fitting-up any building or room for the purpose of the election (including the 
provision of voting compartments and any necessary furniture) and restoring it to fit 
condition for its normal use;

(e) providing ballot boxes, including any repairs, taping, labelling and testing;

(f) conveyance of ballot boxes in those cases where the cost of transport is not included in 
the travelling expenses of Presiding Officers and Poll Clerks under paragraph 7 of this 
Schedule;

(g) general stationery, postage, telephone calls, bank charges, insurance premiums and all 
miscellaneous expenses.

Page 100



- 3 -

9 Local Referendums 

For every poll held under The Local Authorities (Conduct of Referendums) (England) 
Regulations 2012, or equivalent regulations, this scale of fees shall be applied to the expenses 
thereof, in so far as practicable.  The fees listed above shall be applicable, except as follows:

 Returning Officer’s Fees: The sum of £2,421.75
 Clerical Fees and Allowances: The sum of £2,631.85
 The Count: 

a) For the payment of all deputy returning officers and supervisory officers 
appointed to that role for the counting of votes at the referendum, the sum of 
£948.70

b) For the payment of all staff engaged in the counting of votes, other than those 
listed in a) above, the sum of £4,000.80

c) For the payment of deputy returning officers and all other staff engaged in any 
recounting of votes required to be undertaken, the sum of £1,947.40

Proposed
£2,470.20
£2,684.50

£967.70

£4,080.80

£1,986.35

10 Parish Polls

For every poll consequent on a parish meeting, this scale of fees shall be applied to the 
expenses thereof, in so far as it may be applicable.  Fees and allowances are payable not 
exceeding those set out in paragraphs 1, 2 and 6 and costs and expenses as set out in 
paragraphs 7 and 8 of this scale.  In relation to polling staff fees the amounts payable shall not 
exceed 60% of the fees set out in paragraph 5 of this scale.

11        Neighbourhood Planning and Other Parish Referendums

For every neighbourhood or other parish referendum to be held, this scale of fees shall be 
applied to all expenses incurred, in so far as they may be applicable.

12 Parish Election Costs

All costs associated with parish elections will be reclaimed from the parish concerned.

FEE REVIEW ARRANGEMENTS (to be reviewed after May 2022)

The fees will be reviewed every four years in relation to the date of 1 March immediately preceding the 
ordinary election of district and parish councillors.

In all other years, the Director of Finance and Corporate Services is authorised to increase the scales in line 
with the local government salary awards, with an annual commencement date of 1 March.

Page 101



This page is intentionally left blank



Committee: Council

Title: Gambling Policy – Statement of Principles

Report 
Author:

Amanda Turner, Licensing Team Leader
aturner@uttlesford.gov.uk

Date:
Tuesday, 4 
December 2018

Summary

1. The revised Statement of Principles to be applied by the Council in relation to 
its functions under the Gambling Act completed its period of public 
consultation on 13 August 2018.  The outcome of the consultation was 
reported to the Environment and Licensing Committee on 12 September 2018. 

2. The purpose of the report is to recommend that Members adopt the revised 
Statement of Principles to take effect on 31 January 2019. The Gambling 
Commission have requested all authorities review these statements with a 
view to a common adoption date of 31 January 2019.

3. The Licensing & Environmental Health Committee on 12 September 2018 
recommended that the amended Statement of Principles  under the Gambling 
Act be adopted by full Council to come into effect on 31January 2019.

Recommendations

4. That the Council adopts the amended Gambling Act Statement of Principles 
attached to this report, to come into effect on 31January 2019.

Financial Implications

5. None arising from this report

Background Papers

6. The following papers were referred to by the author in the preparation of this 
report and are available for inspection from the author of the report.

7. Revised Statement of Gambling Principles  2018-2021 (showing proposed 
changes)

8. Minutes of the Licensing & Environmental Committee on 12 September 2018.

Impact 

9.       

Page 103

Agenda Item 16



Communication/Consultation Details of consultation are set out in 
paragraphs 10 and 11 of the repot. 

Community Safety The purpose of the Gambling Act 2005 and 
the Council’s Licensing Policy is to ensure 
that gambling takes place in a legal and 
responsible manner.

Equalities None

Health and Safety None

Human Rights/Legal 
Implications

None

Sustainability None

Ward-specific impacts Across all wards in Uttlesford

Workforce/Workplace None

Situation

10.The Gambling Act requires all licensing authorities to prepare and publish a 
statement of licensing principles that they propose to apply in exercising their 
functions under the Act, commonly known as a statement of policy. The Act 
Statement of Principles allows the Council, as Licensing Authority to outline 
the considerations it will make in determination of Gambling Act applications. 
The revised draft Statement of Principles proposes only minor changes (as the 
current Statement was recently revised in 2017). It was therefore subject to a 
6 week consultation period.

11.The public consultation, as approved by the Licensing and Environmental 
Committee on 27 June 2018 was conducted between 2 July and 13 August 
2018. Information was published on the council’s website, and letters or emails 
sent to all statutory consultees, Director of Public Health, all premises & club 
licence holders, local businesses, Gamblers Anonymous, all District 
Councillors and town and parish clerks.

12.One response has been received to the consultation. This was from William 
Hill stating they did not agree with a full variation being required on the 
installation of privacy screens around gaming machines – section 22.4 in the 
draft Statement of Principles (Appendix A). At the meeting on 12 September 
the Licensing and Environment Committee took into account this 
representation alongside Officers comments and agreed to leave the Policy as 
it stood, meaning a full variation would be required. (Minute LIC49.)

13.A copy of the revised Statement of Principles (showing proposed changes) is 
attached as Appendix A. Members are asked to approve the revised 
Statement of Principles. This will then be advertised in local paper(s) covering 

Page 104



the District of Uttlesford and on our website for 4 weeks from 13 December 
2018 to 10 January 2019. The policy will then come into effect on 31 January 
2019.

Risk Analysis

14.      

Risk Likeliho
od

Impact Mitigating actions

The Council is under an 
obligation to review the 
Gambling Act Statement of 
Principles every 3 years and 
ensure that the processes are 
followed in accordance with the 
legislation and guidance. 
Failure to achieve the timescale 
or demonstrate that appropriate 
consideration has been given 
to responses received during 
the consultation process could 
result in Judicial review. 
Although this policy was only 
reviewed in 2017, The 
Gambling Commission has 
requested all authorities review 
them again now to fall in line 
with the date of set date of 31 
January 2019.

1 2 The failure of the 
Council to give 
appropriate 
consultation 
responses could 
result in the 
imposition of 
sanctions upon the 
council.

1 = Little or no risk or impact
2 = Some risk or impact – action may be necessary.
3 = Significant risk or impact – action required
4 = Near certainty of risk occurring, catastrophic effect or failure of project.

Page 105



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 
         APPENDIX A 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

STATEMENT OF PRINCIPLES 
GAMBLING ACT 2005  

 
 

2017 -– 2020 2018-2021 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 107



 

 

If you require this information in any other format or language please contact 
the Licensing Department on 01799 510613 or at licensing@uttlesford.gov.uk  
 
 
 

INDEX 
 

Item Page No. 

PART A  

Introduction  

The Licensing Objectives   

Description of District   

Responsibilities under the Act   

Statement of Principles   

Consultations   

Approval of Statement   

Declaration   

Responsible Authorities   

Interested Parties   

Exchange of Information   

Public Register   

Compliance and Enforcement   

Delegation of Powers   

The Licensing Objectives   

PART B  

General Principles   

Provisional Statement   

Representations and Reviews   

Adult Gaming Centres   

Licensing Family Entertainment Centres   

Casinos   

Bingo Premises   

Betting Premises   

Tracks   

Travelling Fairs   

Publicity for Applications   

General Principles   

PART C  

General   

Unlicensed Family Entertainment Centre   

(Alcohol) Licensed Premises Gaming Machine Permits   

Page 108

mailto:licensing@uttlesford.gov.uk


 

 

Prize Gaming Permits   

Club Gaming and Club Machine Permits   

Temporary Use Notices (T.U.N.s)   

Occasional Use Notices (O.U.N.s)   

Small Society Lotteries   

Annexes   

1. Definitions   

2. Responsible Authorities   

3. Useful Contacts   

Page 109



 

 

PART A 
 

1.  INTRODUCTION   
  

1.1  This Licensing Authority Statement of Principles sets out the principles the 
Uttlesford District Council, as the Licensing Authority under the Gambling 
Act 2005 (referred to in this document as ‘the Act’), proposes to apply in 
discharging its functions to license premises for gambling under the Act as 
well as:-  
  

 designating the body responsible for advising the Authority on the 
protection of children from harm;  

 

 determining whether or not a person is an “Interested Party”;  
 

 exchanging information with the Gambling Commission and others; and  
 

 inspecting premises and instituting court proceedings for offences 
committed under the Act.  

  
2.  THE LICENSING OBJECTIVES  

  
2.1  In exercising most of its functions under the Act, Licensing Authorities 

must have regard to the Licensing Objectives as set out in Section 1 of 
the Act.  The Licensing Objectives are:-  

  

 Preventing gambling from being a source of crime or disorder, being 
associated with crime or disorder or being used to support crime;  

 

 Ensuring that gambling is conducted in a fair and open way; and  
 

 Protecting children and other vulnerable persons from being harmed or 
exploited by gambling.  

 
3.  DESCRIPTION OF THE DISTRICT  
  

3.1  Uttlesford District Council is situated in the County of Essex, which 
comprises twelve District and Borough Councils and two Unitary 
Authorities.  Uttlesford is a rural area in North West Essex and is 
geographically the second largest district in the County. It has a 
population of approx.  83,500 (2014) and over half of these live in one of 
the four main centres of population, Great Dunmow, Saffron Walden, 
Stansted and Thaxted. The remainder live in the numerous villages and 
hamlets which make up the District. In the south of the District is Britain’s 
fourth largest airport, Stansted. A survey published in December 2014 
stated that Uttlesford offered the 23rd best quality of life in England and 
Wales. Its pleasant rural setting attracts many visitors from day trippers to 
those staying for longer periods many of whom will make use of licensed 
facilities within the district.   

 
 

 

Page 110



 

 

4.  RESPONSIBILITIES UNDER THE ACT  
  

4.1  The Act contains a licensing regime for commercial gambling, to be 
conducted by the Gambling Commission and by Licensing Authorities, 
depending on the matter to be licensed.  

  
4.2  The Act establishes each District or Borough Council as the Licensing 

Authority whose responsibilities must be discharged by the Licensing 
Committee created under Section 6 of the Licensing Act 2003.  Uttlesford 
District Council is the Licensing Authority for the Uttlesford District.  

  
4.3  The Gambling Commission is responsible for issuing Operating and 

Personal licences to persons and organisations who:-  
  

 operate a casino;  

 provide facilities for playing bingo or for pool betting;  

 general betting operating licence  

 act as intermediaries for betting;  

 make gaming machines available for use in Adult Gaming Centres and 
Family Entertainment Centres;  

 manufacture, supply, install, adapt, maintain or repair gaming 
machines;  

 manufacture, supply, install or adapt gambling machine software; or  

 promote a lottery.  
 

 4.4 The Licensing Authority is responsible for licensing premises in which 
gambling takes place.  All types of gambling are covered, other than 
spread betting and the National Lottery.  It is also responsible for issuing 
permits for premises with gaming machines and for receiving notices from 
operators wishing to use unlicensed premises for gambling on a 
temporary basis.  It is also responsible for the registration of certain types 
of exempt Small Society Lotteries.  

 
4.5 The Licensing Authority cannot become involved in the moral issues of 

gambling and must aim to permit the use of premises for gambling in so 
far as they think it is:-   

 

 in accordance with any relevant codes of practice under section 24 of 
the  Act;  

 in accordance with any relevant Guidance issued by the Gambling 
Commission under Section 25;  

 reasonably consistent with the Licensing Objectives (subject to the 
above matters), and  

 in accordance with the Licensing Authority’s Statement of Principles 
(subject to the above matters).  

  
Before the Licensing Authority can consider an application for a Premises 
Licence, an Operating and (if required) a Personal Licence must have 
been obtained from the Gambling Commission or applied for. Where an 
applicant for a Premises Licence has applied to the Gambling 

Page 111



 

 

Commission for a licence or licences the Premises Licence may not be 
granted until the Commission has granted the requisite licence(s).   

  
5.  STATEMENT OF PRINCIPLES  
  

5.1  The Licensing Authority is required by the Act to publish a Statement of 
Principles which contains the principles it proposes to apply when 
exercising their functions under the Act.  

  
5.2  In this document this is referred to as ‘the Statement’.  This Statement 

must be published every three years.  The Statement must also be 
reviewed from ’time to time’ and any proposed amendments and/or 
additions must be subject to fresh consultation.  The ‘new’ Statement 
must then be published.  

  
5.3  This Statement takes effect on 26 June 2017. 

  
6.  CONSULTATION  
  

6.1  In producing this Statement, the Licensing Authority consulted widely 
before finalising and publishing it.  In addition to the statutory consultees 
(listed below), the Council chose to consult with additional local groups 
and individuals.  A list of these other groups and persons consulted is also 
provided below.    

  
6.2  The Act requires that the following parties are consulted by the Licensing 

Authority:-  
   

 The chief officer of police for the Authority’s area;  

 One or more persons who appear to the Authority to represent the 
interests of persons carrying on gambling businesses in the Authority’s 
area; and   

 One or more persons who appear to the Authority to represent the 
interests of persons who are likely to be affected by the exercise of the 
Authority’s functions under the Act.  

  
6.3  The other groups and people consulted were:-  

  

  Parish and town councils within the District;  

  Businesses who are, or will be, holders of Premises Licences;  

  Responsible Authorities under the Act. 

  The public  

  Director of Public Health 
 

6.4  The Licensing Authority’s consultation took place between 26 January 
2017 and 16 March 2017.29 June and 11 August 2018 

  
6.5  A full list of comments made and details of the Council’s consideration of 

those comments is available by request to The Licensing Department, 
Council Offices, London Road, Saffron Walden, Essex CB11 4ER   

   

Page 112



 

 

 
 
7. APPROVAL OF THE STATEMENT  
  

7.1  This Statement was approved at a meeting of the full Council on 16 May 
and was published via its website on www.uttlesford.gov.uk/licensing 
Copies are available on request.    

  
7.2  It should be noted that this Statement does not override the right of any 

person to make an application, to make representations about an 
application, or to apply for a review of a licence, as each case will be 
considered on its own merit and according to the requirements of the Act.  

   
8. DECLARATION  
  

8.1  In this Statement the Licensing Authority declares that it has had regard to 
the Licensing Objectives, formal Guidance issued to Licensing Authorities 
and any responses from those consulted during the consultation process.  

  
8.2  Appendices have been attached to this Statement providing further 

information and guidance that is intended only to assist readers and 
should not be interpreted as legal advice or as constituent of the Council’s 
Statement.   Readers are strongly advised to seek their own legal advice if 
they are unsure of the requirements of the Gambling Act 2005, or the 
guidance or regulations should under the Act.  

  

8.3  The Licensing Authority recognises its responsibilities under the Equality 
Act 2010. The impact of this Statement on race relations and disability 
equality will be monitored through the Uttlesford District Council’s equality 
scheme. 

  
 9. RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITIES  
  

9.1  A full list of the Responsible Authorities designated under the Act is given 
in the Definitions Section and their contact details are included.  It should 
be noted that under the Act, the Licensing Authority is designated as a 
Responsible Authority.  

  
9.2  The Licensing Authority is required to designate, in writing, a body that is 

competent to advise it about the protection of children from harm.  In 
making this designation the following principles have been applied:-  

 
 the competency of the body to advise the Licensing Authority;   
 the need for the body to be responsible for an area covering the whole 

of the Licensing Authority’s area; and   
 the need for the body to be answerable to democratically elected 

persons rather than any particular invested interest group etc.  
  

9.3  In accordance with the Gambling Commission’s Guidance to Local 
Authorities, the Licensing Authority designates Essex County Council’s 
Children’s Safeguarding Children’s Board for this purpose.  

Page 113



 

 

  
 
10. INTERESTED PARTIES  
  

10.1  Interested Parties can make representations about licensing applications 
or apply for a review of an existing licence.  An Interested Party is defined 
in the Act as follows:-  

  
’… a person is an interested party in relation to a premises licence or in 
relation to an application for or in respect of a premises if, in the opinion of 
the Licensing Authority which issues the licence or to which the 
application is made, the person:-  

  
a)   lives sufficiently close to the premises to be likely to be affected by 

the authorised activities,    
  
b)  has business interests that might be affected by the authorised 

activities, 
    

or  
  

c)  represents persons who satisfy paragraphs (a) or (b).’  
  

10.2 Interested parties can be persons who are democratically elected such as 
councillors and MP’s. No specific evidence of being asked to represent an 
interested person will be required as long as the councillor / MP 
represents the ward likely to be affected. Likewise, parish councils likely to 
be affected will be considered to be interested parties. Other than these, 
however the Licensing Authority will generally require some form of 
confirmation that a person is authorised to represent an interested party   

 District Councillors who are not members of the Licensing Committee will 
not qualify to act In this way. 

 Other than persons mentioned in 10.2 and 10.3 the Licensing Authority 
will generally require some form of confirmation that a person is 
authorised to represent an interested party. 

  
10.3  The Licensing Authority considers that the Trade Associations, Trade 

Unions and Residents’ and Tenants’ Associations qualify as “Interested 
Parties” where they can demonstrate that they represent persons in (a) or 
(b) above.  

  
10.4  In determining if a person lives sufficiently close to the premises that they 

are likely to be affected by the authorised activities, or has business 
interests that might be affected by authorised activities carried on from 
them  the Licensing Authority will consider the following factors:-  

  

 The size of the premises;  

 The nature of the premises;  

 The distance of the premises from the location of the person making 
the representation;  

 The potential impact of the premises (e.g. number of customers, 

Page 114



 

 

routes likely to be taken by those visiting the establishment);  

 The circumstances of the person making the representation.  This 
does not mean the personal characteristics of that person but his or 
her interest, which may be relevant to the distance from the premises;  

 The catchment area of the premises (i.e. how far people travel to visit); 
and  

 Whether the person making the representation has business interests 
in that catchment area that might be affected.  

  
The Licensing Authority wishes to ensure that interested parties are aware 
of applications for licences and variations. Although Town and Parish 
Councils are not responsible authorities or interested parties in their own 
right when an application is made for a premises licence or a variation to 
such a licence in addition to the publicity given to the application by the 
applicant the Licensing Authority will notify the Town or Parish Council for 
the area within which the premises are situated. The Licensing Authority 
will also notify occupants of residential premises adjoining, opposite and 
to the rear of properties which are the subject of such applications.   

    
11. EXCHANGE OF INFORMATION   
  

11.1 In its exchange of information with parties listed in Schedule 6 of the Act, 
the Licensing Authority will have regard to:-   

  

 the provisions of the Act, which include the provision that the Data 
Protection Act 1998 will not be contravened;   

 the guidance issued by the Gambling Commission;  

 Data Protection Act 1998;  
 Human Rights Act 1998; 

 Freedom of Information 2000;   

 Environmental Information Regulations 2004;   

 the Common Law Duty of Confidence;   

 Electronic Communications Act 2000;  

 Computer Misuse Act 1990;   

 Criminal Procedure and Investigations Act 1996; and   

 Crime and Disorder Act 1998.  
 

11.2 Exchanges of information will be conducted in a timely and accurate 
fashion and confirmed in writing in all cases to form an audit trail.  (Note:  
Written confirmation may include information in electronic form).  An audit 
trail should include:-  

  

 Record of data disclosed;   

 Project chronology; and   

 Notes of meetings with other partners and recent correspondence 
including phone calls.  

  
 12.2  PUBLIC REGISTER  
  

The Licensing Authority is required to keep a public register and share 

Page 115



 

 

information in it with the Gambling Commission and others.  Regulations will 
prescribe what information should be kept in the register.  Copies of the 
register may be obtained on payment of a fee.  

  
 
 
  
13.  COMPLIANCE AND ENFORCEMENT  
  

13.1  In exercising its functions with regard to the inspection of premises and to 
instituting criminal proceedings in respect of offences specified, the 
Licensing Authority follow best practice as promulgated by the Better 
Regulation Executive and the Hampton Review of regulatory inspections 
and enforcement and will endeavour to be:-  

  

 Proportionate – Intervention will only be when necessary.  Remedies 
should be appropriate to the risk posed and costs identified and 
minimised.  

 

 Accountable – Authorities must be able to justify decisions and be 
subject to public scrutiny.  

 

 Consistent – Rules and standards must be joined up and 
implemented fairly.  

 

 Transparent – Enforcement should be open and regulations kept 
simple and user friendly.  

 

 Targeted – Enforcement should be focused on the problems and 
minimise side effects.  

  
13.2  The Licensing Authority will endeavour to avoid duplication with other 

regulatory regimes, so far as is possible, and adopt a risk based 
inspection programme.  

  
13.3  The main enforcement and compliance role of the Licensing Authority in 

terms of the Act will be to ensure compliance with the Premises Licence 
and other permissions which it authorises.  The Gambling Commission 
will be the enforcement body for Operating and Personal Licences.  
Concerns about the manufacturer, supply or repair of gaming machines 
will not be dealt with by the Licensing Authority but will be notified to the 
Gambling Commission.  

 
13.4  The Licensing Authority will keep itself informed of developments as 

regards the work of the Better Regulation Executive in its consideration of 
the regulatory functions of Local Authorities, and will have regard to best 
practice..  

  
13.5  Bearing in mind the principle of transparency, the Licensing Authority’s 

enforcement/compliance protocols, or written agreements, 
willEnforcement Policies be available on request to the Licensing 

Page 116



 

 

Authority.  Details of the risk based approach to inspection will also be 
available upon request.  Details of this information can also be found on 
the Council’s website: www.uttlesford.gov.uk   

 
13.6 Where there is a Primary Authority Scheme in place, the Licensing Authority will 

seek guidance from the Primary Authority before taking any enforcement action 
on matters covered by that scheme. At the 

  
14. DELEGATION OF POWERS  
  

The Council has agreed a scheme of delegation for discharging its functions 
under the Act.  
 

PART B PREMISES LICENSES 
 
15.  GENERAL PRINCIPLES  
  

15.1  Premises Licences will be subject to the permissions/restrictions set out in 
the Act as well as the specific mandatory and default conditions which will 
be detailed in regulations issued by the Secretary of State.  Licensing 
Authorities are able to exclude default conditions and also attach others, 
where it is thought appropriate.  

15.2 In accordance with section 150 of the Act, premises licences can 
authorise the provision of facilities on: 

 Casino premises 

 Bingo 

 Betting premises 

 Adult gaming centre premises (for category B3, B4, C and D machines) 

 Family entertainment centre premises (for category C and D machines) 
(note that separate to this category, the licensing authority may issue a 
family entertainment centre gaming machine permit, which authorises 
the use of category D machines only) 

 
15.3 Each case will be decided on its merits, and will depend upon the tyoe 
of gambling that is proposed, as well as taking into account how the application 
proposes that the Licensing Objective concerns can be overcome. 
  
15.42  Licensing Authorities are required by the Act, in making decisions 

about Premises Licences, to permit the use of premises for gambling so 
far as it thinks fit:-  

  

 in accordance with any relevant codes of practice issued by the 
Gambling Commission under section 24 of the Act 

 

 in accordance with any relevant guidance issued by the Gambling 
Commission under section 25;   

 

 to be reasonably consistent with the Licensing Objectives (subject to 
the above matters); and  

 

 in accordance with the Authority’s Statement (subject to the above 

Formatted: Bulleted + Level: 1 +
Aligned at:  1.75 cm + Indent at:  2.38
cm

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0 cm, First
line:  0 cm

Formatted: Indent: Left:  1 cm, First
line:  0 cm

Page 117



 

 

matters).  
  

15.53 Definition of Premises:   
 

Premises is defined in the Act as “any place”.  It is for the Licensing 
Authority to decide whether different parts of a building can be properly 
regarded as being separate premises although this will always be 
considered in the light of guidance issued by the Gambling Commission.  
It will always be a question of fact in each circumstance.  The Gambling 
Commission does not, however, consider that areas of a building that are 
artificially or temporarily separate can be properly regarded as different 
premises.  
  
The Licensing Authority will pay particular attention to applications where 
access to the licensed premises is through other premises (which 
themselves may be licensed or unlicensed).  

  
15.46 Demand:   
  
 Demand is a commercial consideration and is not an issue for the 

Licensing Authority.  
 

A. The Act is clear that demand issues (e.g. the likely demand or need for gambling facilities 
in an area) cannot be considered with regard to the location of premises but that 
considerations in terms of the licensing objectives can. The Licensing Authority will pay 
particular attention to the objectives of protection of children and vulnerable persons from 
being harmed or exploited by gambling, as well as issues of crime and disorder. 
B. In order for location to be considered, the Licensing Authority will need to be satisfied that 
there is sufficient evidence that the particular location of the premises would be harmful to 
the licensing objectives. From 6th April 2016, it is a requirement of the Gambling 
Commission’s Licence Conditions and Codes of Practice (LCCP), under section 10, that 
licensees assess the local risks to the licensing objectives posed by the provision of 
gambling facilities at their premises and have policies, procedures and control measures to 
mitigate those risks. In making risk assessments, licensees must take into account relevant 
matters identified in this policy. 
C. The LCCP also states that licensees must review (and update as necessary) their local 
risk assessments: 
a) to take account of significant changes in local circumstance, including those 
identified in this policy; 
b) when there are significant changes at a licensee’s premises that may affect their 
mitigation of local risks; 
c) when applying for a variation of a premises licence; and 
d) in any case, undertake a local risk assessment when applying for a new premises 
licence. 
D The Licensing Authority expects the local risk assessment to consider as a minimum: 

whether the premises is in an area of deprivation 

whether the premises is in an area subject to high levels of crime and/or disorder 

the ethnic profile of residents in the area, and how game rules, self-exclusion 
leaflets etc. are communicated to those groups 

the demographics of the area in relation to vulnerable groups 

the location of services for children such as schools, playgrounds, toy shops, leisure 
centres and other areas where children will gather 

Page 118



 

 

Any premises where children congregate including bus stops, café’s, shops and any other 
place where children are attracted 
Areas that are prone to issues of youths participating in anti-social behaviour, including such 
activities as graffiti/tagging, underage drinking etc 
Recorded incidents of attempted underage gambling  
E In every case the local risk assessment should show how vulnerable people, including 
people with gambling dependencies, are protected. 
F Other matters that the assessment may include: 

The training of staff in brief intervention when customers show signs of excessive 
gambling, the ability of staff to offer brief intervention and how the manning of 
premises affects this. 

Details as to the location and coverage of working CCTV cameras, and how the 
system will be monitored. 

The layout of the premises so that staff have an unobstructed view of persons using 
the premises. 

The number of staff that will be available on the premises at any one time. If at any 
time that number is one, confirm the supervisory and monitoring arrangements 
when that person is absent from the licensed area or distracted from supervising the 
premises and observing those persons using the premises. 

Arrangements for monitoring and dealing with under age persons and vulnerable 
persons, which may include dedicated and trained personnel, leaflets, posters, selfexclusion 
schemes, window displays and advertisements not to entice passers-by 
etc. 

The provision of signage and documents relating to games rules, gambling care 
providers and other relevant information be provided in both English and the other 
prominent first language for that locality. 

Where the application is for a betting premises licence, other than in respect of a 
track, the location and extent of any part of the premises which will be used to 
provide betting machines. 
G Such information may be used to inform the decision the council makes about whether to 
grant the licence, to grant the licence with special conditions or to refuse the application. 
H This policy does not preclude any application being made and each application will be 
decided on its merits, with the onus being upon the applicant to show how the concerns can 
be overcome. 
 
The Licensing Authority expects all licensed premises’ to have their local area risk 
assessment available on site for inspection by an authorised officer at all times when they 
are trading. 

 
  
15.75 Location:  
   
 Location will only be material consideration in the context of the Licensing 

Objectives.  
 

15.8 Local Area Profile 
Each locality has its own character and challenges. In order to assist applicants, 
where there is an issue in a local area which impacts on how the applicant should 
complete their risk assessment, the Licensing Authority is looking to publish a local 
area profile (LAP). The LAP will be published as a separate document to this policy 
and does not form part of it. The LAP may be reviewed by the Licensing Authority at 
any time. Such a review would not constitute a review of this policy. 

 
15.9 The LAP once produced should be given careful consideration when making an 

application. Applicants may be asked to attend a meeting with licensing officers to 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0 cm

Page 119



 

 

discuss the LAP and assessment, appropriate measures to mitigate risk in the area 
and how they might be relevant to their application. The local area profile will be 
presented to any subsequent licensing committees  when they determine an 
application that has received representations. The LAP should not be taken as the 
definitive overview of a particular area and applicants are encouraged to use their 
own local knowledge in addition to the content of the LAP to inform their local risk 
assessments. 

 
15.10 The Licensing Authority recognises that it cannot insist on applicants using the local 

area profiles when completing their risk assessments. However, an applicant who 
decides to disregard the LAP should be alert to the risk that they may face additional 
representations and the expense of a hearing as a result.  

 
  

15.6 11 Duplication with other Regulatory Regimes:  
 
  Duplication with other statutory/regulatory regimes will be avoided where 

possible.  This Authority will not consider whether a licence application is 
likely to be awarded Planning Permission or Building Control consent.   

   
15.127  Licensing Objectives:   
  
 In considering whether applications are reasonably consistent with the 

Licensing Objectives, the Licensing Authority will take into account the 
following:   

  
Preventing gambling from being a source of crime or disorder, being 
associated with crime or disorder, or being used to support crime –    
Whilst the Licensing Authority is aware that the Gambling Commission will 
be taking a leading role in preventing gambling from being a source of 
crime, it will pay attention to the proposed location of gambling premises 
in terms of this licensing objective.  
  
Where an area has known high levels of organised crime, this Authority 
will consider carefully whether gambling premises are suitable to be 
located there and the need for conditions, such as the provision of door 
supervisors.  
  
The Licensing Authority is aware that there is a distinction between 
disorder and nuisance and that the prevention of nuisance is not a 
Licensing Objective under the Act.  
  
Ensuring that gambling is conducted in a fair and open way –  
The Gambling Commission does not generally expect Licensing   
Authorities to be concerned with ensuring that gambling is conducted in a 
fair and open way.  The Licensing Authority notes that in relation to the 
licensing of tracks, its role will be different from other premises in that 
track operators will not necessarily have an Operating Licence.  In those 
circumstances, the Premises Licence may need to contain conditions to 
ensure that the environment in which betting takes place is suitable.  
  
Protecting children and other vulnerable persons from being harmed 

Page 120



 

 

or exploited by gambling –  
In practice, the Objective of protecting children from being harmed or 
exploited by gambling often means preventing them from taking part in, or 
being in close proximity to, gambling.  
  
The Council will pay attention to the proposed location of gambling 
premises in terms of the proximity of gambling premises to schools and 
vulnerable adult centres, or residential areas where there may be a high 
concentration of families with children. 
 
There is no definition of the term ‘vulnerable person’ in the Act, but this 
could include people who are gambling beyond their means and people 
who may not be able to make informed or balanced decisions about 
gambling due to a mental impairment, alcohol or drugs.  

  
15.8 13 Conditions & Plans:  

  
The Authority is aware that the mandatory and default conditions imposed 
by the Act will normally be sufficient to regulate gambling premises. In 
exceptional cases where there are specific risks or problems associated 
with a particular locality, specific premise or class of premises the 
authority may consider attaching individual conditions related to the 
licensing objectives.  Any conditions attached to Licences will be 
proportionate and will be:-  

  
 relevant to the need to make the proposed premises suitable as a 

gambling facility;   
 

 directly related to the premises and the type of licence applied for;  
   

 fairly and reasonably related to the scale and type of premises; and  
   

 reasonable in all other respects.  
  

In addition, the Licensing Authority will examine how applicants propose 
to address the licensing objectives.  In considering applications the 
Licensing Authority will particularly take into account the following, if 
deemed appropriate:  

  
 Proof of age schemes  
  
 CCTV  
 
 Door Supervisors  
 
 Supervision of entrances/machine areas;  
  
 Physical separation of areas;  
 
 Location of entry;  
 

Page 121



 

 

 Notices and signage;  
 
 Specific opening hours; and   
  
 With particular regard to vulnerable persons, measures such as the use 

of self- barring schemes, provision of information, leaflets, helpline 
numbers for organisations such as GamCare.  

  
15.9 14 Decisions upon individual conditions will be made on a case by case 

basis.  Consideration will be given to using control measures, should there 
be a perceived need, such as the use of door supervisors, supervision of 
adult gaming machines, appropriate signage for adult only areas, etc.  
Applicants will also be expected to offer their own suggestions as to the 
way in which the Licensing Objectives can be effectively met.  

  
15.10 15 It is noted that there are conditions which the Licensing Authority 

cannot attach to Premises Licences.  These are:-  
  

 any conditions on the Premises Licence which make it impossible to 
comply with an Operating Licence condition;  

 

 conditions relating to gaming machine categories, numbers, or method 
of operation;  

 

 conditions which provide that membership of a club or body be required 
(the Act specifically removes the membership requirement for casino 
and bingo clubs and this provision prevents it being reinstated);  

 

 conditions in relation to stakes, fees, and the winning of prizes.  
 

15.11 16 Door Supervisors:  
  
 The Licensing Authority may consider whether there is a need for door 

supervisors in terms of the Licensing Objectives of protecting of children 
and vulnerable persons from being harmed or exploited by gambling and 
also in terms of preventing premises becoming a source of crime.   As the 
Act has amended the Security Industry Act 2001, door supervisors at 
casinos or bingo premises will not normally need to be licensed by the 
Security Industry Authority.  

 
 The Authority will make a door supervisory requirement only if there is 

clear evidence from the history of trading at the premises that the 
premises cannot be adequately supervised from the counter and that door 
supervision is both necessary and proportionate. 

  
 15.12 17 Credit:  

  
Credit facilities are prohibited from being provided in casinos and bingo 
licensed premises.  Cash machines (ATM’s) may be installed in such 
premises but the licensing authority may apply conditions as to where 
they are sited.  

Page 122



 

 

  
15.13 18 Betting Machines: (See Definitions)  

  
  In relation to Casinos, Betting Premises and Tracks, the Licensing 

Authority can restrict the number of betting machines, their nature and the 
circumstances in which they are made available by attaching a licence 
condition to a Betting Premises Licence or to a Casino Premises Licence 
(where betting is permitted in the Casino).    

  
15.1419 When considering whether to impose a condition to restrict the number 

of betting machines in particular premises, the Licensing Authority, among 
other things, shall take into account:-  

  
 the size of the premises;  
  
 the number of counter positions available for person to person 

transactions; and  
 
 the ability of staff to monitor the use of the machines by children and 

young persons or by vulnerable persons.    
 

  
15.1520 In deciding whether to impose conditions to limit the number of betting 

machines, each application will be considered on its own merit and 
account will be taken of codes of practice or guidance issued under the 
Act.  

 15.21  In all applications where a plan is required to be submitted, The Licensing 

Authority expectation is that, it will be in a scale of 1:100 unless otherwise 
agreed in writing and that, as a minimum, it will show the following (as 
appropriate to the type of application): 

 The extent of the proposed licensed area 

 All entry and exit points (including fire exits) 

 CCTV camera positions 

 Positions of betting terminals, high pay out machines (including fixed odds 
betting terminals) and ATM’s 

 Any fixed or permanent structures including counters 

 Privacy screens (see also section 21 of this policy) 

 All unlicensed areas under the control of the licensee including any ‘sterile 
area’s’ and toilet and kitchen facilities be they for staff or public use. 

 
   
16. PROVISIONAL STATEMENTS  
  

The Guidance states that a licence to use premises for gambling should only be 
issued in relation to premises that the licensing authority can be satisfied are 
going to be ready to be used for gambling in the reasonably near future, 
consistent with the scale of building or alterations required before the premises 
are brought into use.   
  
If the construction of a premises is not yet complete, or if they need alteration, 
or if the applicant does not yet have a right to occupy them, or does not have 
an operators licence, then an application for a provisional statement should be 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0 cm,
Hanging:  2.54 cm

Page 123



 

 

made instead.   
  
In deciding whether a premises licence can be granted where there are 
outstanding construction or alteration works at a premises, this authority will 
determine applications on their merits, and in accordance with the Gambling 
Commission guidance.  

 
17.  REPRESENTATIONS AND REVIEWS  
  

17.1  Representations and Applications for Review of Premises Licence may be 
made by Rresponsible aAuthorities and Iinterested Pparties.  

  
17.2  The Licensing Authority can make a representation or apply for a review 

of the Premises Licence on the basis of any reason that it thinks is 
appropriate.  For the purpose of exercising its discretion in these matters, 
the Authority has designated officers in accordance with the Scheme of 
Delegation as being the proper persons to act on its behalf.  

  
17.3  The Licensing Authority will decide if a representation or application for a 

review is to be carried out on the basis of whether or not the request is:  
  

 Frivolous or vexatious.  
  
 Will certainly not cause the Authority to wish to /revoke/suspend the 

Licence or remove, amend or attach conditions to the Licence  
 
 Substantially the same as previous representations or requests for a 

review.  
 
 In accordance with any relevant codes of practice issued by the 

Gambling Commission.  
 
 In accordance with any relevant guidance issued by the Gambling 

Commission.  
 

 Reasonably consistent with the licensing objectives.  
  

17.4  There is no appeal against the Authority’s determination of the relevance 
of an application for review but such determination may be the subject of 
an application for judicial review.  

  
18.  ADULT GAMING CENTRES   
  

18.1  An Adult Gaming Centre is defined in the Definitions.  Entry to these 
premises is age restricted.  

  
18.2  The Licensing Authority will take account of any conditions applied to an 

Operating Licence in respect of such premises.  
  

 19.  (LICENSED) FAMILY ENTERTAINMENT CENTRES  
  

Page 124



 

 

19.1  A Licensed Family Entertainment Centre is defined in Definitions.  Entry to 
these premises is not generally age restricted although entry to certain 
areas may be restricted, dependent on the category of machines available 
for use.  

  
19.2  The Licensing Authority will take account of any conditions applied to an 

Operating Licence in respect of such premises.  
 

20.  CASINOS  
  

20.1  The Licensing Authority has made no decision on casinos but each 
application will be considered on its own merit. In making this decision the 
Licensing Authority consulted widely on this specific issue.  

  
20.2 Casinos and Competitive Bidding:  
  
  The Licensing Authority is aware that where a Licensing Authority’s area 

is enabled to grant a Premises Licence for a new style casino, there are 
likely to be a number of operators which will want to run a casino.  In such 
situations the Council will run a competition in line with Regulations and 
Codes of Practice issued under the Act by the Secretary of State. It 
should be noted that at the time this Statement was adopted this 
Licensing Authority’s area had not been so enabled.  

  
20.3 Betting Machines:  
  
  The Licensing Authority can restrict the number of betting machines, their 

nature and the circumstances in which they are made available by 
attaching a licence condition to a Betting Premises Licence or to a Casino 
Premises Licence (where betting is permitted in the casino).  When 
considering whether to impose a condition to restrict the number of betting 
machines in particular premises, the Licensing Authority, amongst other 
things should take into account:-  

  
 the size of the premises;  

 
 the number of counter positions available for person to person 

transactions; and 
  

 the ability of staff to monitor the use of the machines by children and 
young persons or by vulnerable persons.  

  
20.4  In deciding whether to impose conditions to limit the number of betting 

machines, each application will be on its own merits and account will be 
taken of Codes of Practice or Guidance issued under the Act.  

  
20.5 Credit:  
  
  Credit facilities are prohibited in casinos; however, this does not prevent 

the installation of cash dispensers (ATMs) on the premises, although the 
Licensing Authority may attach conditions as to the siting of such 

Page 125



 

 

machines.  
  
21.  BINGO PREMISES    
  

21.1  A Bingo premises is defined in the Definitions. Entry to these premises is 
not generally age restricted although entry to certain areas may be 
restricted, dependent on the category of machines available for use.  

  
21.2  The Licensing Authority will take account of any conditions applied to an 

Operating Licence in respect of such premises.  
  
21.3 Credit:    

 
Credit facilities are prohibited in premises licensed for Bingo, however, 
this does not prevent the installation of cash dispensers (ATMs) on the 
premises, although the Licensing Authority may attach conditions as to 
the siting of such machines.  

  
 22.  BETTING PREMISES  
  

22.1  Betting Premises are defined in the Definitions.   
  
22.2  The Licensing Authority will take account of any conditions applied to an 

Operating Licence in respect of such premises.  
 

22.3 Fixed Odds Betting Terminals (FOBT’s) 
 In respect to nationally expressed concerns that exist in relation to the potentially 

adverse impact FOBT’s may have on vulnerable groups of adults, The Licensing 
Authority will give due consideration to the need to apply conditions to betting shop 
premises licences including, but not limited to, setting out minimum staffing levels to 
ensure sufficient staff are on the premises to enable staff to comprehensively 
promote responsible gambling, adequately protect players, particularly in relation to 
players who are deemed to be vulnerable  and to prevent under 18 year olds 
accessing gambling facilities.  

 
22.4 The Licensing Authority expects FOBT’s to be positioned in such a way that they can 

be appropriately monitored by staff particularly where those staff are positioned at a 
counter away from the machines. In general the Authority is of the view that ‘privacy 
screens’ will hamper this and will expect the local area risk assessment to take this 
into account where applicants intend to construct such screens. Particular attention 
should be paid to the Gambling Commission’s Social Responsibility Codes in this 
regard, especially code 9.11.1. Where an existing licensee adds ‘privacy screens’ a 
variation application will be required 

 
 

23.  TRACKS  
  
 A Track is defined in the Definitions.  Entry to parts of these premises is 

generally age restricted.  On race days, specific areas within the Track may  be 
age restricted dependent on the licensable activities taking place.  

   
24.  TRAVELLING FAIRS  
  

Page 126



 

 

The Licensing Authority will determine whether the statutory requirement that 
the facilities for gambling amount to no more than an ancillary amusement at a 
travelling fair is met, where Category D machines and/or equal chance prize 
gaming without a permit are to be made available for use.  

  
25.   PUBLICITY FOR APPLICATIONS  
 

The Licensing Authority wishes to ensure that interested parties are aware of 
applications for licences and variations. When an application is made for a 
premises licence or a variation to such a licence in addition to the publicity 
given to the application by the applicant the Licensing Authority will notify the 
Town or Parish Council for the area within which the premises are situated. The 
Licensing Authority will also notify occupants of residential premises adjoining, 
opposite and to the rear of properties which are the subject of such 
applications.   

Page 127



 

 

PART C PERMITS/TEMPORARY OR OCCASIONAL USE 
NOTICES/REGISTRATIONS  
  
26.   GENERAL  
  

The Act introduced a range of permits for gambling which are granted by 
Licensing Authorities. Permits are required when premises provide a 
gambling facility but either the stakes and prizes are very low or gambling is 
not the main function of the premises. The permits regulate gambling and the 
use of gaming machines in a specific premises. With the exception of limiting 
machine numbers on Licensed Premises Gaming Machine permits, the 
Licensing Authority may only grant or reject an application for a permit. No 
conditions may be added. 

Forms and Method of Application and any additional information or documents 
required for permits covered by this section can be obtained from the Licensing 
Authority.  

   
27. UNLICENSED FAMILY ENTERTAINMENT CENTRE GAMING MACHINE 

PERMITS  
  

27.1 Where a premises does not hold a Premises Licence but wishes to 
provide Gaming machines, it may apply to the Licensing Authority for a 
Permit.  It should be noted that the applicant must show that the premises 
will be wholly or mainly used for making gaming machines available for 
use.  

 
27.2 The Licensing Authority requires the applicant to submit a scale plan of the 

premises showing the areas which the permit will cover together with any other 
areas under the control of the licensee. Generally, this will be at a scale of 1:100 
but other scales may be submitted with prior agreement from the Licensing 
Authority. Full details can be found in section 15.13 

   
27.32 Statement of Licensing Principles  

  
The Licensing Authority will expect the applicant to show that there are 
written policies and procedures in place to protect children from harm.  
Harm in this context is not limited to harm from gambling but includes 
wider child protection considerations.  The suitability of such policies and 
procedures will be considered on their merits, however where children 
and young persons are permitted, they may include:-  

    

 A basic DBS CRB or equivalent criminal record check for the applicant 
and the person having day to day control at the premises  

 

 How the applicant proposed to ensure that children will be protected 
from harm whilst on the premises  

  

 Proof of age schemes 
 

 Training covering how staff would deal with:-  
 
o unsupervised, very young children being on the premises, or  

Formatted: Indent: First line:  0 cm

Formatted: List Paragraph,  No bullets
or numbering, Tab stops: Not at  2.5
cm

Page 128



 

 

o children causing perceived problems on/around the premises.  
o Suspected truant children  
o Safeguarding awareness training 

   
28.  (ALCOHOL) LICENSED PREMISES GAMING MACHINE PERMITS  
  

28.1  There is provision in the Act for premises licensed to sell alcohol for 
consumption on the premises to automatically have two gaming 
machines, of Categories C and/or D.  The Premises Licence holder needs 
to notify the Licensing Authority at least two months prior to the date of 
expiry of the current permit.  

  
28.2  Gaming machines can only be located on licensed premises that have a 

bar for serving customers.  
  
28.3  Premises restricted to selling alcohol only with food, will not be able to 

apply for a Permit, unless they have a separate bar area  
  

28.4  Where an application for more than two gaming machines is received, the 
Licensing Authority will specifically have regard to the need to protect 
children and vulnerable persons from harm, or being exploited by 
gambling and will expect the applicant to satisfy the Authority that there 
will be sufficient measures to ensure that under 18 year olds do not have 
access to the adult only machines.  Measures will cover such issues as:-  

   

 Adult machines being in sight of the bar;  

 Adult machines being in sight of staff who will monitor that the 
machines are not being used by those under 18;  

 Appropriate notices and signage; and 

 As regards the protection of vulnerable persons, the Licensing Authority 
will consider measures such as the use of self-barring schemes, 
provision of information, and leaflets/help line numbers for 
organisations such as GamCare.  

  
The Licensing Authority can decide to grant an application with a smaller 
number of machines and/or a different category of machines than that 
applied for but conditions other than these cannot be attached.  

   
29.  PRIZE GAMING PERMITS  

  
29.1  Where premises do not hold a premises licence but wish to provide prize 

gaming, an application for a prize gaming permit may be made to the 
Licensing Authority. The applicant must specify the nature of the gaming 
for which the permit is sought.  The applicant should be able to 
demonstrate that:  

  

 They understand the limits to stakes and prizes that are set out in the 
Regulations; and  

 

 That the gaming offered is within the law  
 

Page 129



 

 

 29.2 Statement of Licensing Principles  
  

The Licensing Authority will expect the applicant to show that there are 
written policies and procedures in place to protect children from harm.  
Harm in this context is not limited to harm from gambling but includes 
wider child protection considerations.  The suitability of such policies and 
procedures will be considered on their merits, however, they may include:-  
  

 A basic CRB or equivalent criminal record check for the applicant and 
the person having day to day control at the premises  

 Proof of age schemes 
 

 How the applicant proposed to ensure that children will be protected 
from harm whilst on the premises  

  

 Training covering how staff would deal with:-  
 
o unsupervised, very young children being on the premises, or  
o children causing perceived problems on/around the premises.  
o Suspected truant children  
o Safeguarding awareness training 

 
   In making its decision on an application for a Permit, the Licensing 

Authority does not need to have regard to the Licensing Objectives but 
must have regard to any Gambling Commission guidance.  

   
30.  CLUB GAMING AND CLUB MACHINE PERMITS  
  

30.1  Members’ clubs and miners’ welfare institutes may apply for a Club 
Gaming Permit and/or a Club Gaming Machine Permit, but are restricted 
by category and number of machines and to equal chance gaming and 
games of chance.  

  
30.2   Commercial clubs may apply for a club machine permit, subject to 

restrictions. 
30.3 The gambling provided under the authority of a club gaming permit must 

also meet the following conditions. 
(a) in respect of gaming machines 
No child or young person may use a category B or C machine on the premises. 
That the holder must comply with any relevant provision of a code of practice 

about the location and operation of gaming machines. 
(b) the public, children, and young persons must be excluded from any area 

of the premises where the gaming is taking place. 
30.4 Section 273 of the Act sets out the conditions that will apply to the club 

machine permit, including that in respect of gaming machines no child or 
young person uses a category B or C machine on the premises and that 
the holder complies with any relevant provision of a code of practice about 
the location and operation of gaming machines..    

   
31.  TEMPORARY USE NOTICES (TUN)  
  

Page 130



 

 

31.1 The persons designated to receive TUNs and to issue objections are 
specified in the Scheme of Delegation available from the Authority.  

  
31.2  A TUN may only be granted to a person or company holding an operating 

licence relevant to the temporary use of the premises.  Regulations will be 
issued by the Secretary of State prescribing the activities to be covered. 
Under current regulations a Temporary Use Notice can only be issued for 
equal chance gaming.  

   
31.3  For the purpose of a TUN, a set of premises is the subject of a TUN if any 

part of the premises is the subject of the Notice.  This prevents one large 
premises from having a TUN in effect for more than 21 days per year by 
giving a Notice in respect of different parts.  

  
31.4  The definition of “a set of premises” will be a question of fact in the 

particular circumstances of each Notice that is given.  In considering 
whether a place falls within the definition of “a set of premises” the 
Licensing Authority will consider, amongst other things, the 
ownership/occupation and control of the premises.  

  
31.5  The Licensing Authority will object to Notices where it appears that there 

effect would be to permit regular gambling in a place that could be 
described as one set of premises.  

   
32.  OCCASIONAL USE NOTICES  
  

32.1  Occasional Use Notices, apply only to tracks, which are described as 
being premises on any part of which a race or other sporting events take 
place, or is intended to take place.  Tracks need not be a permanent 
fixture.  

  
32.2  OUN’s are intended to permit licensed betting operators who have the 

appropriate permission of the Gambling Commission to use tracks for 
short periods for conducting betting.  The OUN dispenses with the need 
for a Betting Premises Licence for the track.  

  
32.3  The Licensing Authority has very little discretion as regards these Notices, 

aside from ensuring that a statutory limit of 8 days in a calendar year is 
not exceeded.  

  
32.4  The Licensing Authority will, however, consider the definition of a track 

and whether the applicant is permitted to avail him/herself of the Notice.  
  
32.5  The person designated to receive the OUN’s and assess validity is 

specified in the scheme of delegation   
  

 33. SMALL SOCIETY LOTTERIES  
  
The definition of a Small Society Lottery is contained in the Definitions and these 
require registration with the Licensing Authority. 

Page 131



 

 

ANNEXES 
  

ANNEX 1 - DEFINITIONS  
   
Adult Gaming Centres – premises for gaming machines; entitles them to make 
category B, C and D gaming machines available  
  
Betting – making or accepting a bet on:-  
 

 the outcome of a race, competition or other event  

 likelihood of anything occurring or  

 anything is or is not true    
 

Betting Premises – Premises licensed to accept bets  
  
Bingo – no statutory definition; have its ordinary and natural meaning. Can include 
cash bingo where the stakes paid are make up the cash prizes, or prize bingo, where 
form of prize is not directly related to the stakes paid  
  
Family Entertainment Centre – premises which provides gaming machines in 
categories C and D.  
  
Gambling – includes gaming, betting or lottery  
  
Gaming Machines – machine designed or adapted for use by individuals to gamble 
(excludes betting machines or machines that enable the playing of bingo); Secretary 
of State by regulations can define four classes of gaming machine with regards to 
stake, value of prize, nature of prize and nature of gambling (A-D).  
  
Interested Party - For the purposes of this Act, a person is an interested party in 
relation to a premises licence if, in the opinion of the Licensing Authority which 
issues the licence or to which the application is made, the person:-  
 

a)  Lives sufficiently close to the premises to be likely to be affected by the  
 authorised activities;  
b)  Has business interests that might be affected by the authorised  
 activities;  
c)  Represents persons who satisfy a) or b) above  

  
Prize Gaming – gaming where nature and size of the prize is not determined by the 
number of people playing or the amount paid for or raised by gaming; the prize is 
determined by the operator before the play commences  
  
Responsible Authority - For the purposes of this Act, the following are responsible 
authorities in relation to premises: 
  

1.  The Licensing Authority in whose area the premises are wholly or  
 mainly situated (“Uttlesford District Council”)  
2.  The Gambling Commission;  
3.  Essex Police;  
4.  Essex Fire and Rescue Service;  

Page 132



 

 

5.  Planning Services Manager, Uttlesford District Council;  
6.  Environmental Health Manager, Uttlesford District Council;  
7.  Local Safeguarding Children’s Board for Essex;  
8.  HM Customs and Excise  

  
Small Society Lotteries – lottery run by non-commercial societies (established and 
conducted for charitable purposed, for the purpose of enabling participation in, or of 
supporting, sport, athletics or a cultural activity; or for any other non-commercial 
purpose other than private gain.)  
 
Tracks – site where races or other sporting events take place; no special class of 
betting premises licences for tracks  
  
 
  
  
  

Page 133



 

 

ANNEX 2 – RESPONSBILE AUTHORITIES  
  
  
LICENSING AUTHORITY:  The Licensing Department, Uttlesford District Council,   
Council Offices, London Road, Saffron Walden, Essex CB11 4ER  
  
GAMBLING COMMISSION: Victoria Square House, Victoria Square, Birmingham 
B2 4BP  
  
ESSEX POLICE :  The Licensing Department (Alcohol), Essex Police, PO Box 
12306, Police Station, Newland Street, Witham. CM8 2AS. 
  
ESSEX FIRE AND RESCUE SERVICE  : Uttlesford & Braintree Community 
Command, Essex Fire and Rescue Service, Fire Station, Railway Street, Braintree, 
Essex CM7 3JD  
  
PLANNING SERVICES:  The Planning Department, Uttlesford District Council, 
Council Offices, London Road, Saffron Walden, Essex CB11 4ER  
  
ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH:  Environmental Health Department, Uttlesford District 
Council, Council Offices, London Road, Saffron Walden, Essex CB11 4ER  
   
ESSEX COUNTY COUNCIL CHILDREN’S SAFEGUARDING SERVICE: Head of 
Child Protection, Licensing Applications, 70 Duke Street, County Hall, Chelmsford, 
Essex CM1 1JP 
  
HM CUSTOMS AND EXCISE:  The National Registration Unit, HMRC, National 
Registration Unit, Betting & Gaming, Cotton House, 7 Cochrane Street, Glasgow. G1 
1HY   
  
  
  
   
  
  
  

Page 134



 

 

 
ANNEX 3 - USEFUL CONTACTS  
  
The Gambling Commission maintains a list of useful contacts on organisations 
involved in gambling and their contact details can be found on the Commission’s 
website www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk  Some of these organisations provide 
codes of practice on their particular interest area.  
 
 

Page 135

http://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/


This page is intentionally left blank



Committee: Council

Title: Walden Place, Saffron Walden

Report 
Author:

Roz Millership, Assistant Director - Housing, 
Health and Communities
rmillership@uttlesford.gov.uk

Date:
Tuesday, 4 
December 2018

Summary

1. This report provides detail relating to the proposed redevelopment of the 
existing sheltered housing scheme at Walden Place, Saffron Walden and 
explores the preferred mechanism for undertaking this redevelopment that will 
maximise the return to the Council from this valuable asset

2. Options to progress the scheme have been considered by the Tenant Forum, 
Housing Board and Cabinet with the preferred way forward being a council 
funded and managed project.

Recommendations

3. That Council:

 notes the options detailed in the report to progress the proposed 
redevelopment of Walden Place in Saffron Walden

 Endorses Cabinet decision that the redevelopment of Walden Place is 
progressed as a council funded and managed project (Option 2) subject 
to budget availability

 Approves additional short term borrowing of £1m to finance the 
redevelopment of Walden Place

Financial Implications

4. Financial provision of £800k for the development of Walden Place new 
Council owned homes is included within the Housing Revenue Account. 
Under Option 1 the development partner will also contribute considerably to 
the cost of this redevelopment, as detailed in the report. Under Option 2 the 
council will be required to enter into short term borrowing of £1m which will be 
repaid once the main house is sold. This would need to be the subject of a 
separate report to Full Council to agree the budget implications.

Background Papers

5. The following papers were referred to by the author in the preparation of this 
report and are available for inspection from the author of the report:

Page 137

Agenda Item 17



a. None

6.
 
Communication/Consultation

Existing tenants, local residents, Town 
Council and external agencies

Community Safety Appropriate precautions would be taken 
during works

Equalities Equality and diversity is a key issue for the 
Council with regards to older persons 
housing provision

Health and Safety During the management of the project all 
risks will be constantly reviewed, revised 
and managed

Human Rights/Legal 
Implications

Legal team have been consulted

Sustainability An opportunity to construct new thermally 
efficient homes, and communal facilities for 
older people 

Ward-specific impacts Saffron Walden 

Workforce/Workplace There are sufficient resources in the 
housing team to manage the project

Situation

7. Walden Place sheltered housing scheme consists of a four storey Grade II 
listed Georgian town house that currently contains 3 sheltered flats and 
communal facilities. Attached to this house is a court of 26 purpose-built 
sheltered housing flats that were constructed in the 1980’s.

8. The Georgian town house element of this sheltered scheme currently 
provides reasonable communal facilities, although not to modern standards or 
specification. Furthermore, this building is a considerable financial burden on 
the Housing Revenue Account due to high ongoing maintenance costs – in 
excess of £23,000 per annum. Also, with the building being Grade II Listed, 
this can cause delay and extra cost when needing to undertake larger 
maintenance works.

9. Attached to this report (Appendix A) are the concept designs for the 
redevelopment of this scheme. The thrust of this proposal is to separate the 
Georgian house from the 1980’s sheltered scheme, to construct a new 
purpose built communal facility, three new sheltered flats/bungalows and 
associated plant room. Parking and landscaping will also form an important 

Page 138



part of this project, in order to meet the needs of the sheltered scheme and 
any future use of the Georgian house.

10.Apart from the re-provision of as much sheltered housing accommodation as 
possible, the other key driver for this redevelopment project is to provide a 
modern, fit for purpose replacement communal facility that can be used by the 
residents and the community. 

11.The size of the facility that can be achieved will be determined through the 
planning process. Walden Place is located in the Conservation Area, so scale, 
design and materials will be of key importance to both Development Control and 
the Conservation Officer. The Conservation Officer is supportive of the general 
principle, as there is a desire to see the Georgian House separated from the 
1980’s sheltered scheme. Partnership working with both the Conservation 
Officer and the Planning Team is therefore key to maximising the outcomes for 
this proposal.

 
12.The concept designs have been considered by the council’s Quantity 

Surveyor who has estimated the separation/new build costs to be in the 
region of £1.7 million. This figure does not include costs for the 
redevelopment of the Georgian house.

13.The key element to the financial viability of the whole project is to maximise 
the future value of the Georgian house and the council has been working with 
advisors from Savills who have considered this element on behalf of the 
Council. They do not believe that there will be a market for it to be converted 
into a single residential dwelling, given its size compared to the grounds that 
can be offered, its proximity to the sheltered housing scheme and the right of 
way from Myddleton Place to Park Lane. They believe that the most optimum 
utilisation of the floor space would be to convert the building into six apartments, 
of two and three bedrooms. 

14. In light of the unique nature and central location of the building, combined with a 
high specification of refurbishment, Savills would expect values and demand to 
easily exceed those currently being achieved in Saffron Walden. They have 
estimated that they would expect a sale of the house, once separated from the 
newer sheltered scheme and before refurbishment to achieve £1.1 million, or 
above. 

15. In terms of a development/disposal strategy two options have been explored. 
The first being a Joint Venture (JV), and second being a straight disposal on a 
subject to planning basis.

OPTION 1 – JOINT VENTURE

16.Under a JV arrangement, the partner developer would obtain detailed planning 
permission and undertake the entire redevelopment project. The benefit of this 
approach would be that the delivery of the replacement accommodation, plant 
room and communal facility would be efficiently managed by one party 
throughout the construction period. 

Page 139



17.On the negative side the JV partner would however expect vacant possession 
of the Georgian house from the outset, so that the works to the sheltered 
scheme and also the refurbishment of the Georgian house can run concurrently. 
This would leave the sheltered scheme without a communal facility for a period 
of time.

18.There are also financial complexities and risks in establishing a joint venture 
which also need to be considered. 

19.Savills were appointed to undertake the marketing of this JV opportunity. Savills 
were chosen as the ideal agent in this instance due to their detailed knowledge 
of the market place for a development of this nature. This is an opportunity that 
would only suit a specific number of developers with a proven track record of 
working on listed buildings in Conservation Areas.

20.Bids were received from three interested parties. Of these bids two of the 
development partner submissions were financially of interest to the Council, 
albeit that the figures were calculated on estimated basis using the minimal 
information available. 

21.To proceed with one of these partners on a Joint Venture basis the Council 
would need to consider the higher risk profile associated with a joint venture, 
such as the impact on the Council’s Standing Orders, tax liability and the 
requirement for the partners to obtain an interest in the property in order to 
attract development funding. There would be considerable legal fees to finalise 
the agreement, along with upfront expenditure to enable the costings for the 
project to be finalised and fixed.

OPTION 2 – COUNCIL CONTROLLED PROGRAMME

22.An alternative option explored was for the council to carry out all the necessary 
separation works and dispose of the Georgian house, subject to obtaining listed 
building and planning consents, as a project discrete from the works to the 
adjacent sheltered housing scheme. 

23.The benefit of this option is that the complex and potentially costly financial 
models imposed by a JV can be avoided.  In addition a sale of a 100% private 
scheme may attract a premium from the market due to the more straight forward 
conversion opportunity on offer, thereby potentially appealing to a wider range 
of developers. 

24.The other benefit is that the council will have total control of the planning 
process associated with the sheltered housing scheme, and depending on the 
timing of the sale, it could enable the continued provision of a communal facility.

25.On the downside the work required is complex and will require the council to 
find budget for the construction works (estimated at £1.7 million on the current 
scheme) before any return from the sale is forthcoming. As the scheme is 
progressed, the risk elements will either be firmed up or eliminated. 

Page 140



Furthermore, the detailed design process will include value management 
processes to ensure that the Council achieves value for money.

26.There is currently £800k in the budget for this project so the council would need 
to consider a short term loan of approximately £1m to progress this option. The 
intention is for the loan to be repaid in full once the house is sold. This is 
dependent on the council achieving the current estimated sale price of £1.1m for 
the house.

27.There is sufficient HRA Headroom available to progress the project. The 
available headroom as at the 1 April 2018 is £3.125m. 

28.Whilst there is no certainty that profits under Option 2 will be any greater than 
those assumed under the JV venture model, Option 2 is the preferred option as 
it gives the council more control and poses less risk than a complex JV model. 

29.Subject to Members decision to progress with the re-development of Walden 
Place and the preferred mechanism for undertaking this, the project is ready to 
progress. Tenants have been relocated from the part of the building where the 
separation works will be made and the last remaining tenant in the Georgian 
House will be relocated in January. 

Risk Analysis

30.      

Risk Likelihood Impact Mitigating actions
Insufficient 
budget to take 
forward the 
scheme

2 - there are 
sufficient 
identified 
resources and 
borrowing 
headroom in 
the HRA to 
meet the 
estimated cost 
of 
redevelopment

3 – significant 
risk to project

A detailed 
design/development/ 
disposal strategy will 
include value 
management 
processes to ensure 
that the Council 
achieves value for 
money

Not achieving 
planning 
permission

1 Planners 
supportive

4 separation 
of house and 
development 
not possible

Pre-planning 
discussions with 
planners

1 = Little or no risk or impact
2 = Some risk or impact – action may be necessary.
3 = Significant risk or impact – action required
4 = Near certainty of risk occurring, catastrophic effect or failure of project.

Page 141



This page is intentionally left blank



BUSH

BUSH

BUSH

BUSH

BUSH

BUSH

BUSH

BUSH

BUSH

BUSH

CHERRY

MAPLE

CHERRY

OAK

BEECH

BEECH

CHERRY

BEECH

CHERRY

BIRCH

ASH

HOLLY
HOLLY

HOLLY

CHERRY

BOL

BOL
BOL

BOL

BOL

BOL

BT

BT

BT

BT

C
A

N
O

P
Y C

H
A

N
N

E
L

C
H

A
N

N
E

L

DPC

DPC

DPC
DPC

DPC

DPC

EAVES

EAVES

EAVES

EAVES

EAVES

EAVES

EAVES

EAVES

EAVES

EAVES

EAVES

EAVES

EAVES
EAVES

SOFFIT

EAVES

ER

ER

ER

ER

ERG

G

G

G

G

LP

RIDGE

RIDGE

RIDGE

RIDGE

RIDGE

RIDGE

RIDGE

RIDGE

RIDGE

RIDGE

RIDGE

RIDGE

RIDGE

RIDGE

RIDGE

RIDGE

RIDGE

RIDGE

RIDGE

RIDGE

RE

RE

RE

RE
RE

RE

RE

RERE

RE

RE

RE

RE

ROOF

SOFFIT

SOFFIT

ROOF

ROOF

RS

RS

RS

RWP

RWP

RWP

RWP

RWP

RWP

RWP

RWP

RWP

RWP

RWP

RWP

RWP

RWP

SVP

THL

THL

THL

THL

THL

THL

TILES

TILES

TILES

TILES

TILES

TILES

TP

TP

TP

CONIFER

HT 21.0

CONIFER

CONIFER

HT 12.5

CONIFER

CONIFER

CONIFER

HT 11.0

CONIFER

CONIFER

CONIFER

CONIFER

CONIFER

CONIFER
CONIFER

CONIFERCONIFER

HT 14.0

CONIFERCONIFER

CONIFER

CONIFER

CONIFER

HT 10.0

HT 15.0

HT 11.5

HT 21.0

HT 19.0

HT 23.5

HT 17.5

HT 9.5

HT 11.0

HT 11.5

SAPLING

SAPLING

WM

S1

S2

S3

S4

S5

S6

S7

S8

S9

S10

47.59

47.87

48.13

48.6148.57

48.53

51.05

51.06

51.35

47.38

47.42

47.54

47.72

47.95

47.52

47.35

47.27

47.22

47.19

47.14

47.13

48.75

48.77

48.62

48.86

51.72

49.55

51.65
51.65

48.68

48.73

51.64

48.60

51.47

49.82

53.14

53.00

52.95

52.15

54.88

52.62

51.63

48.80

48.81

49.72
48.82

48.82

48.81

53.46

53.48

53.47

53.45

53.47

53.47

54.35

54.36

53.45

53.44

55.17

53.46

53.45
54.34

54.36

48.72

48.69

48.72

49.59

49.80

50.05

50.11

50.17

51.29

51.24

50.49

50.93

51.08

51.43

51.64

48.65

48.67

48.62

48.75

50.56

50.10

48.71

57.52

57.51

57.51

57.51

58.43

65.20

56.91

56.47

55.25

55.23

54.88

53.08

56.95

56.17

56.81

56.76

62.48

59.48

58.03

57.68

48.70

48.68

48.73

48.74

48.64

48.67

49.60

48.66

49.89

50.08

50.84

50.94

50.81

50.71

63.88

50.92

50.93

63.90

63.89

50.45

52.79

48.66

52.67

52.43

52.45

48.81

48.56

48.20

48.12
48.05

47.74

47.3547.31

47.21

47.31
47.42

47.90

47.97

48.09

48.36
48.56

48.85

49.01

49.41
49.19

48.88
48.10

48.02

47.98
47.89

47.33

47.50

47.66

47.91

48.02

48.02
48.40

49.00

49.30

49.67

49.87

49.5348.64

48.39

48.17

48.12

47.99

48.73

48.99

49.36

49.76

50.39

51.2250.6650.25

50.95

50.90

51.58

51.86

47.85

49.73

49.21

49.15

49.14

49.50

50.83

49.44

48.85

48.74

48.7248.77

48.77

48.76

48.28

47.91

48.08

48.80

49.74

51.62

51.58

51.64
51.90

52.18

51.93

52.45

53.18

52.94

53.14

52.63

48.86

48.65

48.68

50.32

49.81

48.73

51.67

52.67

48.76

48.69

48.70 48.71

48.72

48.68

48.50

48.26

48.18

48.05

47.90

47.73

47.73

47.81

47.85

47.92

47.82

49.92

49.68

49.29

48.94

48.43

48.25

51.08

50.92

50.87 50.97

51.15

51.32

51.28

51.17

51.7551.6851.61

51.37

51.02

50.60

50.40

50.37

50.47

50.47

50.54

50.97

51.23

51.41

51.62

52.04

52.00

52.02

51.97

51.87
51.86

51.62

51.74

51.50

51.12

50.84

50.53

50.22

50.09

49.94

49.8049.47
49.15

48.92

48.93
49.39

49.66
49.81

49.98

50.24

50.16

49.94

50.33

50.49

51.28

49.51

49.64
49.18

48.85

48.78
48.79

48.79

48.76

48.71

48.71

48.68

48.66

48.66

48.71

48.65

48.79

48.84

48.87
48.90 48.93

49.24

49.37

48.89

48.81

48.67

48.68

48.68

48.71

48.68

48.68

48.70

48.71

48.73

48.74

48.74

48.74

48.77

48.66

48.69

48.80

48.79

48.77

48.73

48.79

48.79

48.7448.77

48.80

48.78

48.76

48.89

48.85

48.64

48.75
48.33

49.70

48.81

48.81
48.80

48.8048.83

48.83

48.83 48.81

48.81

49.6949.67

49.67

48.76
48.75

48.76

48.83
48.82

49.01

51.68

51.66
51.66

51.65

51.48

51.81

52.10

52.49

52.79

53.0252.74

52.62

52.58

52.77

52.74

52.65

52.63

52.29

52.16

52.10

51.99

51.78

51.43

51.53

51.72

51.89

51.96

51.99
52.00

52.00

51.91

52.62

52.80

52.7752.68

52.71 52.74

52.85

48.75

51.20

51.25

51.80

52.45

52.89

48.86

49.86

49.75

48.84

52.84

52.57

51.25

60.17

55.20

56.51

60.20

53.15

48.83

50.02

50.16

50.70

50.39

50.29

51.55

51.77

51.77

52.03

51.3951.30

51.4351.70

51.96

52.38

52.38

51.89

47.55

47.45

47.54

47.51

48.88

49.33

49.69

48.90

48.50

52.14

51.36

51.85

52.81

52.92

52.93

52.69

52.55

52.02

52.13

49.91

49.79

52.72

52.56

50.92

51.00

51.11

48.4248.59

48.65

48.66

48.60
48.67

48.62

49.21

48.93

48.79

49.53

49.00

48.95

48.88

48.77

48.78

49.55
49.55

48.6748.66

48.67

48.68

48.62

48.67

48.65

48.66

48.77

48.78

48.75

48.80

48.78

49.02

49.68

51.69

48.99

48.95

49.71
49.70

52.37

52.51

52.39

48.67

49.71

51.64

52.86

52.38

FLOWERBED

GRASS

B
R
 

W
A

L
L
 

H
T
 
1
.8

0
m

SHRUBS

GRAVEL

TARMAC

GRASS

B
R
 

W
A

L
L
 

H
T
 
2
.9

0
m

P
R
 FEN

C
E

H
T 0
.5

0
m

S
LA

B
S

FLOWERBED

FLOWERBED FLOWERBED

U
P

BUSH

TARMAC

GRAVEL

GRASS

T
R
E
LLIS

H
T
 
1.9

0
m

P
R
 

F
E

N
C

E
 

H
T
 
0
.6

0
m

H
E

D
G

E
 

H
T
 
2
.1

0
m

TACTILE

PAVING

GRASS

GRASS

U
P

U
P

R
A
 
F
E

N
C

E
 

H
T
 
0
.9

0
m

FLOWERBED

CONCRETE

R
E

T
A
IN
IN

G
 

W
A

L
L
 

H
T
 
0
.5

0
m

CONCRETE

RAMP UP

GRASSF
L

O
W

E
R

B
E

D

SLABS

C
H

A
N

N
E

L

CONCRETE

SLABS

T
A
R

M
A
C

GRASS

UP

BR WALL
HT 0.25m

CONCRETE WALL
HT 0.30m

RA FENCE
HT 0.90mBR WALL

HT 0.50m

BR WALL
HT 0.50m

BR WALL
HT 0.50m

BR WALL
HT 0.50m

U
P

SLABS
FLOWERBED

FLOWERBED

FLOWERBEDU
P

U
P

FLOWERBED RWP

RWP

SLABS

B
R
 

W
A

L
L
 

H
T
 
1
.3

0
m

B
R
 

W
A

L
L
 

H
T
 
2
.4

0
m

BR WALL
HT 0.11m

PR FENCE
HT 1.90m

B
R
 

W
A

L
L
 

H
T
 
1
.9

5
m

G
R

A
V

E
L

UP

GRAVEL

TARMAC

CONCRETE

CONCRETE

GRAVEL
GRAVEL

CONCRETE

TARMAC

GRASS

GRASS

GRASS

GRASS

GRASS

BR 
W

A
LL
 H

T 
1.
60

m

C
O

N
C

R
E
T
E

PR FENCE
HT 1.00m

U
P

SLABS

FLOWERBED

FLOWERBED

GRAVEL

R
A

M
P
 

U
P

UP

GRASS

C
O

N
C

R
E

T
E

GRASS

BR WALL
HT 0.50m

BR WALL
HT 0.50m BR WALL

HT 0.50mC
O

N
C

R
E

T
E

SLABS

SLABS

BR WALL
HT 0.50m

BED

U
P

TARMAC

CONCRETE

UP

GRASS

BR WALL
HT 0.50m

BR WALL
HT 0.50m

F
L

O
W

E
R

B
E

D
S

L
A

B
S

CONCRETE

GRASS

S
L

A
B

S

CONCRETE

BR WALL
HT 0.50m

F
L

O
W

E
R

B
E

D

F
L

O
W

E
R

B
E

D

S
L

A
B

S

BR WALL
HT 0.35m

F
L

O
W

E
R

B
E

D

CONCRETE

S
L

A
B

S

GRASS

BR WALL
HT 0.50m B

E
D

S
L

A
B

S

CONCRETE

GRAVELC
O

N
C

R
E

T
E

SLABS

SLABS

FLOWERBED

FLOWERBED

C
O

N
C

R
E

T
E

FLOWERBED

FLOWERBED

FLOWERBED

FLOWERBED

SLABS

FLOWERBED

FLOWERBED

B
R
 

W
A

L
L
 

H
T
 
2
.6

0
m

UP

FLOWERBED

FLOWERBED

SLABS

BR WALL
HT 2.70m

GRASS

UP

RAMP UP

GRAVEL

F
L

O
W

E
R

B
E

D

C
O

N
C

R
E

T
E

FLOWERBED

BR WALL
HT 0.65m

B
R
 

W
A

L
L

H
T
 
2
.7

0
m

FL
OWERBED

CONCRETE

BR WALLHT 1.95m U
P

F
L

O
W

E
R

B
E

D

UP F
L

O
W

E
R

B
E

D

BR WALL HT 2.85m

B
R
 

W
A

L
L

H
T
 
2
.6

0
m

SLABS

CONCRETE

PLINTH

CONCRETE

F
L

O
W

E
R

B
E

D

F
L

O
W

E
R

B
E

D

UP

BR WALL
HT 1.25m

BR WALL
HT 0.30m

GRAVEL
GRAVEL

BR WALLHT 2.85m

B
R
 

W
A

L
L

H
T
 
2
.8

0
m

UP

FLOWERBED

BR WALL
HT 1.00m

BR WALL
HT 3.40m

CONCRETE
CONCRETE

B
R
 

W
A

L
L

H
T
 
3
.5

0
m

SHED

BR WALL
HT 2.40m

BR WALL
HT 2.30m

FLOWERBED

UP

BR WALL
HT 1.20m

COL B
R
 

W
A

L
L

H
T
 
2
.7

5
mC

O
B
B
LE

S

CONCRETE

SHRUBS

O
V
E
R

H
E
A

D
 
LIN

E
S

GARAGE

BR WALL
HT 1.85m

BR W
ALL

HT 2.00m

TARMAC

BR WALL

HT 2.20m

SHRUBS

GRAVEL

B
R
 

W
A
L
L

H
T
 
2
.2

0
m

GRAVEL

POST

RETAINING WALL

HT 0.30m

SHRUBS

MYDDYLTON

HOUSE

5M
 Y
 D
 D
 Y
 L T O

 N
    P

 L A
 C
 E

WALDEN

PLACE

POST

POST

POST

POST

POST

POST

POST

POST

POST

POST

POST

POST

POST

POST

POST

  553480 E

  238480 N

  553480 E

  238500 N

  553480 E

  238520 N

  553480 E

  238540 N

  553480 E

  238560 N

  553480 E

  238580 N

  553500 E

  238580 N

  553520 E

  238580 N

  553540 E

  238580 N

  553560 E

  238580 N

  553580 E

  238580 N

  553600 E

  238580 N

ARE RELATED TO OS DATUM NEWLYN (OSGM02) USING GPS.

TO OS BRITISH NATIONAL GRID (OSTN02) USING GPS.  ALL HEIGHTS

ALL EASTINGS AND NORTHINGS SHOWN ON THIS DRAWING ARE RELATED

STN         E             N            H        REMARKS

SURVEY STATION CO-ORDINATE LIST

S1     553553.041     238478.277     48.131     PEG

S2     553530.269     238519.945     48.751     HILTI

S3     553571.027     238550.782     52.515     HILTI

S4     553514.801     238499.807     47.913     PEG

S5     553502.001     238520.035     48.693     HILTI

S6     553506.076     238554.484     48.822     PEG

S7     553510.914     238563.828     48.797     HILTI

S8     553538.628     238562.374     49.688     HILTI

S9     553554.386     238559.284     52.615     HILTI

S10    553564.525     238557.908     52.829     HILTI

T
A

R
M

A
C

T
A
R

M
A
C

RWP

RWP

RWP

RWP

RWP

RWP

RWP

O
V
E
R

H
E

A
D
 
L
IN

E
S

OVERHEAD LINES

OVERHEAD LINES

O
V

E
R

H
E

A
D
 
L
IN

E
S

O
V

E
R

H
E

A
D
 

L
IN

E
S

BEECH

BEECH

BEECH

BEECH

IC

CL

WL

52.48

51.66

IC

CL

IL

49.52

48.46

IC

CL

IL

48.67

48.24

IC

CL

IL

48.87

UTL

IC

CL

IL

48.48

47.20

IC

CL

IL

48.76

48.28

IC

CL

IL

48.76

47.50

IC

CL

IL

48.78

48.11

IC

CL

IL

48.81

47.62

IC

CL

IL

48.78

47.97

IC

CL

IL

48.76

47.70

IC

CL

IL

48.76

47.55

IC

CL

IL

48.77

47.47

IC

CL

IL

48.77

47.34

IC

CL

IL

48.78

47.23

IC

CL

IL

48.79

48.24

IC

CL

IL

48.81

46.95 IC

CL

IL

52.94

51.62

IC

CL

IL

48.93

47.47

IC

CL

IL

48.78

47.76 IC

CL

IL

48.82

48.09

IC

CL

IL

49.69

48.41

IC

CL

IL

49.69

49.19

IC

CL

IL

51.65

49.06

IC

CL

IL

51.62

49.42 IC

CL

IL

51.67

51.10

POSTS

LINE OF

PLEASE NOTE THAT IT HAS NOT

BEEN POSSIBLE TO ASCERTAIN

AN ACCURATE WALL WIDTH

AN ACCURATE WALL WIDTH

BEEN POSSIBLE TO ASCERTAIN

PLEASE NOTE THAT IT HAS NOT

AN ACCURATE WALL WIDTH

BEEN POSSIBLE TO ASCERTAIN

PLEASE NOTE THAT IT HAS NOT

AN ACCURATE WALL WIDTH

BEEN POSSIBLE TO ASCERTAIN

PLEASE NOTE THAT IT HAS NOT

AN ACCURATE WALL WIDTH

BEEN POSSIBLE TO ASCERTAIN

PLEASE NOTE THAT IT HAS NOT

O
V
E
R

H
E

A
D
 
L
IN

E
S

T
A

R
M

A
C

IC

CL

IL

52.66

51.23

F
L

O
W

E
R

B
E

D

F
L

O
W

E
R

P
L
IN

T
H

P
L
IN

T
H

GRAVEL

GRAVEL

GRAVEL

GRAVEL

GRAVEL

FLOWER

PLINTH

PLINTH

GRAVEL GRAVEL

APPROXIMATE SIZE AND POSITION OF OVERHANGING TREES

GRAVEL

PLINTH

Project

Drawing Title

Project Number Drawing Number RevisionStatus Date Revision NotesScale @ A3

All dimensions to be checked on site prior to commencement of work

Discrepancies between drawings and information to be referred to CA without delay
534

Walden Place

HONEYLANDS . RADWINTER . SAFFRON WALDEN . ESSEX . CB10 2TJ

AY PILSBURY THOMAS ARCHITECTS

TEL 01799 599208            FAX: 01799 599965

www.kpt.co.uk 	

Myddylton Place, Saffron Walden, Essex CB10 United Kingdom

COPYRIGHT   C

EXISTING SITE PLAN

010 1 : 500 Information / 11.11.14
-

-

NORTH

10 m0 m 20 m 30 m 40 m 50 m

Page 143



BUSH

BUSH

BUSH

BUSH

Project

Drawing Title

Project Number Drawing Number RevisionStatus Date Revision NotesScale @ A3

All dimensions to be checked on site prior to commencement of work

Discrepancies between drawings and information to be referred to CA without delay
534

Walden Place

HONEYLANDS . RADWINTER . SAFFRON WALDEN . ESSEX . CB10 2TJ

AY PILSBURY THOMAS ARCHITECTS

TEL 01799 599208            FAX: 01799 599965

www.kpt.co.uk 	

Myddylton Place, Saffron Walden, Essex CB10 United Kingdom

COPYRIGHT   C

NORTH

PROPOSED SITE PLAN

020 1 : 500 Information / 11.11.14
-

-

10 m0 m 20 m 30 m 40 m 50 m

Georgian House

Georgian House

Entrance to

Boundary

Georgian House

Planted Bank

Parking

Sheltered Housing

Walden Place

Garden

Cloister

Myddylton Place

from

Walden Place

Entrance to

Freshwell Street

from

Walden Place

Entrance to

Recycling

Waste

New Building

to

Entrance

Road

New

Page 144



Project

Drawing Title

Project Number Drawing Number RevisionStatus Date Revision NotesScale @ A3

All dimensions to be checked on site prior to commencement of work

Discrepancies between drawings and information to be referred to CA without delay
534

Walden Place

HONEYLANDS . RADWINTER . SAFFRON WALDEN . ESSEX . CB10 2TJ

AY PILSBURY THOMAS ARCHITECTS

TEL 01799 599208            FAX: 01799 599965

www.kpt.co.uk 	

Myddylton Place, Saffron Walden, Essex CB10 United Kingdom

COPYRIGHT   C

NORTH

PROPOSED GROUND FLOOR PLAN

025 1 : 200 Information / 11.11.14
-

-

10 m0 m 20 m 30 m 40 m 50 m

Library
Lift

Room

Common

Flat 1

Cloister

Flat 26

Cloister

Garden

Cloister

Hall

Entrance

Kitchen

Warden Laundry

Terrace

Store

Cleaners'

Plant Room

Recycling

Waste

Page 145



Project

Drawing Title

Project Number Drawing Number RevisionStatus Date Revision NotesScale @ A3

All dimensions to be checked on site prior to commencement of work

Discrepancies between drawings and information to be referred to CA without delay
534

Walden Place

HONEYLANDS . RADWINTER . SAFFRON WALDEN . ESSEX . CB10 2TJ

AY PILSBURY THOMAS ARCHITECTS

TEL 01799 599208            FAX: 01799 599965

www.kpt.co.uk 	

Myddylton Place, Saffron Walden, Essex CB10 United Kingdom

COPYRIGHT   C

NORTH

PROPOSED FIRST FLOOR PLAN

026 1 : 200 Information / 11.11.14
-

-

10 m0 m 20 m 30 m 40 m 50 m10 m0 m 20 m 30 m 40 m 50 m

Lift

Flat 27

Access to Walden Place First Floor

Office

Store / 

Roof

Cloister

Wall

Garden

Page 146



Project

Drawing Title

Project Number Drawing Number RevisionStatus Date Revision NotesScale @ A3

All dimensions to be checked on site prior to commencement of work

Discrepancies between drawings and information to be referred to CA without delay
534

Walden Place

HONEYLANDS . RADWINTER . SAFFRON WALDEN . ESSEX . CB10 2TJ

AY PILSBURY THOMAS ARCHITECTS

TEL 01799 599208            FAX: 01799 599965

www.kpt.co.uk 	

Myddylton Place, Saffron Walden, Essex CB10 United Kingdom

COPYRIGHT   C

NORTH

PROPOSED ROOF PLAN

029 1 : 200 Information / 11.11.14
-

-

10 m0 m 20 m 30 m 40 m 50 m10 m0 m 20 m 30 m 40 m 50 m

Page 147



FFL 51.350

FFL 54.200

ridge 57.510

ridge 65.200

ridge 58.430

ridge 59.220
ridge 59.700

FFL 48.500

P
r
o
je

c
t

D
r
a

w
in

g
 T
it
le

P
r
o
je

c
t 

N
u

m
b
e
r

D
r
a

w
in

g
 N

u
m

b
e
r

R
e
v
is
io

n
S
ta
tu

s
D
a
te

R
e
v
is
io

n
 N

o
te

s
S
c
a
le
 @
 A

3

A
ll
 d
im

e
n
s
io

n
s
 t

o
 b

e
 c

h
e
c
k
e
d
 o

n
 s
it
e
 p
r
io
r
 t

o
 c

o
m

m
e
n
c
e

m
e
n
t 

o
f 

w
o
r
k

D
is
c
r
e
p
a
n
c
ie
s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 d
r
a

w
in

g
s
 a

n
d
 i
n
fo
r
m

a
ti
o
n
 t

o
 b

e
 r
e
fe
r
r
e
d
 t

o
 C

A
 w
it
h
o
u
t 

d
e
la

y
5
3
4

W
a
ld

e
n
 P
la

c
e

H
O

N
E

Y
L

A
N

D
S
 .
 R

A
D

W
IN

T
E

R
 .
 S

A
F
F

R
O

N
 W

A
L

D
E

N
 .
 E

S
S

E
X
 .
 C

B
1
0
 2

T
J

A
Y
 P
IL

S
B

U
R

Y
 T

H
O

M
A

S
 A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

T
S

T
E

L
 0

1
7
9
9
 5

9
9
2
0
8
  
  
  
  
  
  
F

A
X
: 
0
1
7
9
9
 5

9
9
9
6
5

w
w

w
.k

p
t.
c
o
.u

k
 	

M
y
d
d
y
lt
o
n
 P
la

c
e
, 

S
a
ff
r
o
n
 W

a
ld

e
n
, 

E
s
s
e
x
 C

B
1
0
 U

n
it
e
d
 K
in

g
d
o

m

C
O

P
Y

R
I
G

H
T
  
 C

10 m0 m 20 m 30 m 40 m 50 m

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D
 E

A
S

T
 S

E
C

T
I

O
N
 /
 E

L
E

V
A

T
I

O
N

0
5
0

1
 :
 2

0
0

I
n
f
o
r

m
a
t
io

n
-

1
1
.1

1
.1

4
--

SECTION

EAST ELEVATION

P
age 148



P
r
o
je

c
t

D
r
a

w
in

g
 T
it
le

P
r
o
je

c
t 

N
u

m
b
e
r

D
r
a

w
in

g
 N

u
m

b
e
r

R
e
v
is
io

n
S
ta
tu

s
D
a
te

R
e
v
is
io

n
 N

o
te

s
S
c
a
le
 @
 A

3

A
ll
 d
im

e
n
s
io

n
s
 t

o
 b

e
 c

h
e
c
k
e
d
 o

n
 s
it
e
 p
r
io
r
 t

o
 c

o
m

m
e
n
c
e

m
e
n
t 

o
f 

w
o
r
k

D
is
c
r
e
p
a
n
c
ie
s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 d
r
a

w
in

g
s
 a

n
d
 i
n
fo
r
m

a
ti
o
n
 t

o
 b

e
 r
e
fe
r
r
e
d
 t

o
 C

A
 w
it
h
o
u
t 

d
e
la

y
5
3
4

W
a
ld

e
n
 P
la

c
e

H
O

N
E

Y
L

A
N

D
S
 .
 R

A
D

W
IN

T
E

R
 .
 S

A
F
F

R
O

N
 W

A
L

D
E

N
 .
 E

S
S

E
X
 .
 C

B
1
0
 2

T
J

A
Y
 P
IL

S
B

U
R

Y
 T

H
O

M
A

S
 A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

T
S

T
E

L
 0

1
7
9
9
 5

9
9
2
0
8
  
  
  
  
  
  
F

A
X
: 
0
1
7
9
9
 5

9
9
9
6
5

w
w

w
.k

p
t.
c
o
.u

k
 	

M
y
d
d
y
lt
o
n
 P
la

c
e
, 

S
a
ff
r
o
n
 W

a
ld

e
n
, 

E
s
s
e
x
 C

B
1
0
 U

n
it
e
d
 K
in

g
d
o

m

C
O

P
Y

R
I
G

H
T
  
 C

10 m0 m 20 m 30 m 40 m 50 m

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D
 S

O
U

T
H
 S

E
C

T
I

O
N
 /
 E

L
E

V
A

T
I

O
N

0
5
1

1
 :
 2

0
0

I
n
f
o
r

m
a
t
io

n
/

1
1
.1

1
.1

4
--

SECTION

SOUTH ELEVATION

P
age 149



Project

Drawing Title

Project Number Drawing Number RevisionStatus Date Revision NotesScale @ A3

All dimensions to be checked on site prior to commencement of work

Discrepancies between drawings and information to be referred to CA without delay
534

Walden Place

HONEYLANDS . RADWINTER . SAFFRON WALDEN . ESSEX . CB10 2TJ

AY PILSBURY THOMAS ARCHITECTS

TEL 01799 599208            FAX: 01799 599965

www.kpt.co.uk 	

Myddylton Place, Saffron Walden, Essex CB10 United Kingdom

COPYRIGHT   C

PROPOSED MODEL VIEWS

101 NTS Information / 11.11.14
-

-

Page 150



Project

Drawing Title

Project Number Drawing Number RevisionStatus Date Revision NotesScale @ A3

All dimensions to be checked on site prior to commencement of work

Discrepancies between drawings and information to be referred to CA without delay
534

Walden Place

HONEYLANDS . RADWINTER . SAFFRON WALDEN . ESSEX . CB10 2TJ

AY PILSBURY THOMAS ARCHITECTS

TEL 01799 599208            FAX: 01799 599965

www.kpt.co.uk 	

Myddylton Place, Saffron Walden, Essex CB10 United Kingdom

COPYRIGHT   C

PROPOSED MODEL VIEWS

100 NTS Information / 11.11.14
-

-

Page 151



P
r
o

je
c
t

D
ra

w
in

g
 T

it
le

P
r
o

je
c
t 

N
u

m
b

e
r

D
r
a
w

in
g
 N

u
m

b
e
r

R
e
v

is
io

n
S

ta
tu

s
D

a
te

R
e
v
is

io
n
 N

o
te

s
S

c
a
le

 @
 A

3

A
ll

 d
im

e
n
s
io

n
s
 t

o
 b

e
 c

h
e
c
k
e
d
 o

n
 s

it
e
 p

r
io

r
 t

o
 c

o
m

m
e
n
c
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f
 w

o
r
k

D
is

c
r
e
p

a
n

c
ie

s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n

 d
r
a
w

in
g

s
 a

n
d

 i
n

f
o

r
m

a
ti

o
n

 t
o

 b
e
 r

e
f
e
r
r
e
d

 t
o

 C
A

 w
it

h
o

u
t 

d
e
la

y
5

3
4

W
a
ld

e
n
 P

la
c
e

H
O

N
E

Y
L

A
N

D
S

 .
 R

A
D

W
IN

T
E

R
 .

 S
A

F
F

R
O

N
 W

A
L

D
E

N
 .

 E
S

S
E

X
 .

 C
B

1
0

 2
T

J

A
Y

 P
IL

S
B

U
R

Y
 T

H
O

M
A

S
 A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

T
S

T
E

L
 0

1
7

9
9

 5
9

9
2

0
8

  
  

  
  

  
  

F
A

X
: 

0
1

7
9

9
 5

9
9

9
6

5

w
w

w
.k

p
t.

co
.u

k
 	

M
y

d
d

y
lt

o
n

 P
la

c
e
, 

S
a
ff

ro
n

 W
a
ld

e
n

, 
E

s
s
e
x

 C
B

1
0

 U
n

it
e
d

 K
in

g
d

o
m

C
O

P
Y

R
IG

H
T

  
 C

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 M
O

D
E

L
 V

IE
W

S

1
0

2
N

T
S

I
n
f
o
r
m

a
ti

o
n

/
1
1
.1

1
.1

4
--

P
age 152



Uttlesford District Council 

LAQM Annual Status Report 2018 

 
 

 
2018 Air Quality Annual Status Report 
(ASR) 
 
In fulfilment of Part IV of the 
Environment Act 1995 
Local Air Quality Management 
 
July 2018  

Page 153

Agenda Item 21



Uttlesford District Council 

LAQM Annual Status Report 2018 

 

Local Authority 
Officer 

Ann Lee-Moore 

Department Environmental Health 

Address 

Council Offices 
London Road 
Saffron Walden 
CB11 4ER 

Telephone 01799 510588 

E-mail aleemoore@uttlesford.gov.uk 

Report Reference 
number 

UTT/ASR2018 

Date 5th July 2018 

Written by Tim Savage 

Scientific Team 
Public Health & 
Protection Services 
Chelmsford City 
Council 
Duke Street 
Chelmsford 
Essex Cm1 1JE 

 

 

Page 154

mailto:aleemoore@uttlesford.gov.uk


Uttlesford District Council 

i 
LAQM Annual Status Report 2018 

Executive Summary: Air Quality in Our Area 
The 2018 Annual Status Report is designed to provide the public with information 

relating to local air quality in Uttlesford, to fulfil Uttlesford District Council’s statutory 

duty to review and assess air quality within its area, and to determine whether or not 

the air quality objectives are likely to be achieved. 

In 2017, no monitoring locations in Uttlesford exceeded the Air Quality Objectives for 

nitrogen dioxide or particulate matter. 

Air Quality in Uttlesford 

Air pollution is associated with a number of adverse health impacts. It is recognised as 

a contributing factor in the onset of heart disease and cancer. Additionally, air pollution 

particularly affects the most vulnerable in society: children and older people, and those 

with heart and lung conditions. There is also often a strong correlation with equalities 

issues, because areas with poor air quality are also often the less affluent areas1,2. 

The annual health cost to society of the impacts of particulate matter alone in the UK 

is estimated to be around £16 billion3.  

Uttlesford is considered to be rural in nature and has the principal town of Saffron 

Walden as its administrative centre. Uttlesford is dissected by the M11 motorway and 

A120 trunk road which support Stansted International Airport in the south of the district. 

Traffic emissions are the most significant source of air pollution within the district and 

within Saffron Walden, the historic layout of the town results in problems with traffic 

flow and congestion particularly at peak times. 

Uttlesford has one Air Quality Management Area (AQMA) within the Saffron Walden 

town centre, declared for Nitrogen Dioxide (NO2) exceedances. 

In 2017 the Council adopted a new Air Quality Action Plan designed to achieve 

compliance with the Air Quality Objectives. 

 

                                                      
1 Environmental equity, air quality, socioeconomic status and respiratory health, 2010 
2 Air quality and social deprivation in the UK: an environmental inequalities analysis, 2006 
3 Defra. Abatement cost guidance for valuing changes in air quality, May 2013 

Page 155



Uttlesford District Council 

ii 
LAQM Annual Status Report 2018 

Conclusions and Priorities 

In 2017, Uttlesford District Council did not measure any exceedances of Nitrogen 

Dioxide (NO2) or Particulate Matter (PM10) for Air Quality Objective. 

Air quality monitoring identified that the National Air Quality Objectives for fine 

particulate matter (PM2.5) were below the target value. 

It is important to view air quality over the long term as bias adjustment and 

meteorological variation can significantly influence pollutant concentrations.  

Uttlesford District Council priorities for air quality over the forthcoming year are: 

• Implementing measures contained within the newly adopted Air Quality Action 

Plan 

• Renewal of equipment within the UTT1 air quality monitoring station 

• Relocation of UTT2 monitoring station 

There is no need to consider amendment of the Air Quality Management Area or the 

Action Plan at this time. 

Page 156



Uttlesford District Council 

iii 
LAQM Annual Status Report 2018 

Local Engagement and How to get Involved 

Uttlesford District Council is a member of the Essex Air Quality consortium. The 

purpose of the Essex Air is to promote improvements in air quality related issues. The 

Essex Air web site provides a daily forecast of air pollution. Also, the @EssexAir twitter 

feed provides localised weekly air pollution forecasts.  

Figure i.1 - Essex Air Twitter Air Quality Notifications  

 

Links to Defra recommended actions and health advice are provided when air pollution 

is likely to be moderate or higher. This will enable those with heart or lung conditions, 

or other breathing problems to make informed judgements about their levels of activity 

or exposure. 

 

 

Page 157

http://www.essexair.org.uk/Default.aspx
https://twitter.com/EssexAir
https://twitter.com/EssexAir/status/823444781741260800


Uttlesford District Council 

iv 
LAQM Annual Status Report 2018 

Table of Contents 

Executive Summary: Air Quality in Our Area .......................................................... i 

Air Quality in Uttlesford ....................................................................................................... i 

Conclusions and Priorities ................................................................................................. ii 

Local Engagement and How to get Involved ..................................................................... iii 

1 Local Air Quality Management ........................................................................ 1 

2 Actions to Improve Air Quality ........................................................................ 2 

2.1 Air Quality Management Areas .............................................................................. 2 

2.2 Progress and Impact of Measures to address Air Quality in Uttlesford .................. 4 

2.3 PM2.5 – Local Authority Approach to Reducing Emissions and/or 

Concentrations.................................................................................................................12 

2.4 Development Control ............................................................................................13 

2.5 Partnership working ..............................................................................................16 

3 Air Quality Monitoring Data and Comparison with Air Quality 

Objectives and National Compliance .................................................................... 17 

3.1 Summary of Monitoring Undertaken .....................................................................17 

3.1.1 Automatic Monitoring Sites .......................................................................................... 17 

3.1.2 Non-Automatic Monitoring Sites................................................................................... 17 

3.2 Individual Pollutants .............................................................................................18 

3.2.1 Nitrogen Dioxide (NO2)................................................................................................. 18 

3.2.2 Particulate Matter (PM10) .............................................................................................. 18 

3.2.3 Particulate Matter (PM2.5) ............................................................................................. 18 

Appendix A: Monitoring Results ........................................................................... 19 

Appendix B: Full Monthly Diffusion Tube Results for 2017 ................................ 28 

Appendix C: Supporting Technical Information / Air Quality Monitoring 

Data QA/QC ............................................................................................................. 30 

Appendix D: Maps of Monitoring Locations and AQMA ..................................... 32 

Appendix E: Summary of Air Quality Objectives in England .............................. 35 

Glossary of Terms .................................................................................................. 36 

References .............................................................................................................. 37 

 

Page 158



Uttlesford District Council 

v 
LAQM Annual Status Report 2018 

List of Tables 

Table 2.1 – Declared Air Quality Management Areas .................................................. 3 

Table 2.2 – Progress on Measures to Improve Air Quality .......................................... 4 

Table A.1 – Details of Automatic Monitoring Sites ..................................................... 19 

Table A.2 – Details of Non-Automatic Monitoring Sites ............................................. 20 

Table A.3 – Annual Mean NO2 Monitoring Results .................................................... 22 

Table A.4 – 1-Hour Mean NO2 Monitoring Results .................................................... 25 

Table A.5 – Annual Mean PM10 Monitoring Results................................................... 25 

Table A.6 – 24-Hour Mean PM10 Monitoring Results ................................................. 26 

Table A.7 – PM2.5 Monitoring Results ........................................................................ 26 

Table B.1 – NO2 Monthly Diffusion Tube Results – 2017 .......................................... 28 

Table C.1 – AIR PT Results 2017 .............................................................................. 31 

Table E.1 – Air Quality Objectives in England ........................................................... 35 

 

List of Figures 

Figure i.1 - Essex Air Twitter Air Quality Notifications  ................................................ iii 

Figure 2.1 - Public Health Indicator 3.01 - Fraction of mortality attributable to 

particulate air pollution .............................................................................. 12 

Figure A.1 – Trends in Annual Mean NO2 Concentrations  ....................................... 24 

Figure A.2 – Trends in Annual Mean PM2.5 Concentrations  ...................................... 27 

Figure D.1 – Saffron Walden AQMA and Monitoring Locations ................................. 32 

Figure D.2 – Newport Monitoring Locations............................................................... 33 

Figure D.3 – Other Monitoring Locations ................................................................... 34 

 

Page 159

javascript:goToMetadataPage(0);
javascript:goToMetadataPage(0);


Uttlesford District Council 

1 
LAQM Annual Status Report 2018 

1 Local Air Quality Management 

This report provides an overview of air quality in Uttlesford during 2017. It fulfils the 

requirements of Local Air Quality Management (LAQM) as set out in Part IV of the 

Environment Act (1995) and the relevant Policy and Technical Guidance documents. 

The LAQM process places an obligation on all local authorities to regularly review and 

assess air quality in their areas, and to determine whether or not the air quality 

objectives are likely to be achieved. Where an exceedance is considered likely the 

local authority must declare an Air Quality Management Area (AQMA) and prepare an 

Air Quality Action Plan (AQAP) setting out the measures it intends to put in place in 

pursuit of the objectives. This Annual Status Report (ASR) is an annual requirement 

showing the strategies employed by Uttlesford District Council to improve air quality 

and any progress that has been made. 

The statutory air quality objectives applicable to LAQM in England can be found in 

Table E. in Appendix E. 

Page 160



Uttlesford District Council 

2 
LAQM Annual Status Report 2018 

2 Actions to Improve Air Quality 

2.1 Air Quality Management Areas 

Air Quality Management Areas (AQMAs) are declared when there is an exceedance 

or likely exceedance of an air quality objective. After declaration, the authority must 

prepare an Air Quality Action Plan (AQAP) within 12-18 months setting out measures 

it intends to put in place in pursuit of compliance with the objectives. 

A summary of the AQMA declared by Uttlesford District Council can be found Table 

2.1. Further information related to AQMAs in Uttlesford, including the AQMA order and 

maps of AQMA boundaries are available online at https://uk-

air.defra.gov.uk/aqma/details?aqma_ref=1520. 

Alternatively, see Appendix D: Maps of Monitoring Locations and AQMA, which 

provides for a map of air quality monitoring locations in relation to the AQMA. 

 

Page 161

https://uk-air.defra.gov.uk/aqma/details?aqma_ref=1520
https://uk-air.defra.gov.uk/aqma/details?aqma_ref=1520


Uttlesford District Council 

3 
LAQM Annual Status Report 2018 

Table 2.1 – Declared Air Quality Management Areas 

AQMA 
Name 

Date of 
Declaration 

Pollutants 
and Air 
Quality 

Objectives 

City / 
Town 

One Line 
Description 

Is air 
quality in 
the AQMA 
influenced 
by roads 

controlled 
by 

Highways 
England? 

Level of Exceedance 
(maximum 

monitored/modelled 
concentration at a location 

of relevant exposure) 

Action Plan 

At 
Declaration 

Now Name 
Date of 

Publication 
Link 

Saffron 
Walden 
AQMA 

Declared 
01/08/2007 
Amended 

12/09/2012 

NO2 
Annual 
Mean 

Saffron 
Walden 

Circle of 
radius 
1400m 
radius 

centred on 
Elm Grove 
in Saffron 
Walden 
Town 

Centre. 
Revokes 

and 
replaces 3 
previous 
Uttlesford 
AQMAs 

NO 42.9 µg/m3 35.27 µg/m3 

Air 
Quality 
Action 
Plan 

2017-
2022 

Oct-17 

h
tt
p
s
:/
/w

w
w

.u
tt

le
s
fo

rd
.g

o
v
.u

k
/C

H
tt
p
H

a

n
d
le

r.
a
s
h
x
?
id

=
7
3
4

6
&

p
=

0
  

☒ Uttlesford District Council confirms the information on UK-Air regarding their AQMA(s) is up to date 

P
age 162

https://www.uttlesford.gov.uk/CHttpHandler.ashx?id=7346&p=0
https://www.uttlesford.gov.uk/CHttpHandler.ashx?id=7346&p=0


Uttlesford District Council 

4 
LAQM Annual Status Report 2018 

2.2 Progress and Impact of Measures to address Air Quality in Uttlesford 

In 2017, compliance with the Air Quality Objectives has been achieved within the Saffron Walden AQMA. In 2017 the Council adopted 

a new 5-year Air Quality Action Plan which sets out local measures proportionate to the level of previous exceedances at key junctions 

within Saffron Walden AQMA which Uttlesford will deliver with the aim of maintaining good air quality and preventing further 

exceedances of the relevant objective at residential properties or other sensitive receptors. 

 

Progress on delivering the measures is set out in Table 2.2 and a priority for the coming year will be to continue to deliver measures set 

out within the Action Plan.  

Table 2.2 – Progress on Measures to Improve Air Quality 

Measure 
No. 

Measure 
EU 

Category 
EU 

Classification 

Organisations 
involved and 

Funding 
Source 

Planning 
Phase 

Implementation 
Phase 

Key 
Performance 

Indicator 

Reduction 
in 

Pollutant / 
Emission 

from 
Measure 

Progress to Date 

Estimated / 
Actual 

Completion 
Date 

Comments / 
Barriers to 

implementation  

1 

To revise 
planning 

policies which 
will ensure the 
impact on air 
quality in the 

AQMA is given 
adequate 

consideration 
and weight in 
the decision 

making 
process. 

Policy 
Guidance 

and 
Development 

Control 

Air Quality 
Policies 

UDC 2017 
Concurrent with 

adoption of 
Local Plan 

Policies 
contained in 

the Local 
Plan once 

adopted. Use 
of sec 106 
funds to 

implement 
action plan 

Low, but  
potential to 

mitigate 
against 

emission 
increases 
associated 
with future 

growth. 

Policies have been 
included in the 

Regulation 19 Pre-
submission Local 

Plan for public 
consultation until 

August 2018 Cost : 
within existing 

resources. 

    

P
age 163



Uttlesford District Council 

5 
LAQM Annual Status Report 2018 

2 

To produce a 
planning 
Technical 
Guidance 

document for air 
quality, to 
ensure the 

impacts of new 
development on 
the AQMA, new 
receptors in the 
AQMA, and the 

level of 
mitigation are 

fully considered 
in all 

applications.  

Policy 
Guidance 

and 
Development 

Control 

Air Quality 
Technical 
Guidance 

UDC Early 2017 Late 2017 

Publicly 
available by 
December 

2017 

Low, but  
potential to 

mitigate 
against 

emission 
increases 
associated 
with future 

growth. 

Technical 
Guidance 

document has 
been completed 

and included in the 
Regulation 19 Pre-
submission Local 

Plan for public 
consultation until 
August 2018 Cost 

:within existing 
resources 

    

3 

To work with 
ECC to facilitate 
the provision of 

new 
cycle/pedestrian 

routes and 
cycle storage, 
and promote 

the routes 
available. 

Transport 
Planning and 
Infrastructure 

Cycle Network ECC & UDC 2017 2017-2022 

Number of 
new routes 
provided,  

increase in no 
of storage 

facilities per 
annum and 

users of 
facilities year 

on year 

Low, 
dependant 

on 
reduction in 
number.of 
vehicles on 

road 
network 

UDC is  engaging 
with ECC  to 

review existing 
provisions and 

work with ECC on 
an on-going basis 

to achieve 
outcomes.  

  

Outcomes 
dependent on 

priorities & 
developer 

contributions, 
which the plan 

cannot 
timescale.  

4 

UDC to 
increase cycle 

storage on 
Council owned 
sites in Saffron 
Walden where 
practical to do 

so. 

Transport 
Planning and 
Infrastructure 

Cycle Network UDC 2017 2018 

Increase in no 
of storage 

facilities and 
users of 

facilities from 
baseline 

Low, 
dependant 

on 
reduction in 
number of 
vehicles on 

road 
network   

To link in with the 
Travel plan. 
Engage with 

property services 
& apply for funding 
where appropriate 
where need has 
been identified. 

Feasibility study by 
March 2019. 

    

P
age 164



Uttlesford District Council 

6 
LAQM Annual Status Report 2018 

5 

To assist ECC 
in working  with 
local schools 

and businesses 
in the review 

and upgrading 
of existing travel 

plans  or to 
assist individual 

schools or 
businesses to  
develop and 

promote  plans   

Promoting 
Travel 

Alternatives 

School and 
workplace 

travel planning 
ECC & UDC 

Engage with 
ECC and 

other 
stakeholders 
by mid 2017 

2018-2022 

Number of 
new or 

upgraded 
TPs. Increase 
in walking or 

cycling to 
school or 
workplace 

from baseline  

Low, 
dependant 

on 
reduction in 
number of 
vehicles on 

road 
network   

Cost  within 
existing resources 

  

Reliance on joint 
working with 

ECC and other 
stakeholders to 

develop new 
travel plans.  

6 

To support the 
extension of 
phone signal 
coverage and 

superfast 
broadband 

service to all 
parts of the 

district.  

Promoting 
Travel 

Alternatives 

Facilitating 
home working 

ECC & UDC 2017 To be confirmed 

Number of 
businesses 
and homes 
enabled to 

access 
superfast 

broadband by 
2019. 

Increase in no 
of people 
regularly 

working from 
home 

Low, 
dependant 

on 
reduction in 
number of 
vehicles on 

road 
network   

UDC investment of 
£500k towards 

inclusion in 
Superfast Essex 

broadband 
procurement to be 
implemented by 

end of 2019. 

    

7 

To work with 
ECC Highways 

to develop a 
scheme of 
measures 
aimed at 
improving  
junction 

capacity within 
the AQMA 

identified to be 
necessary as 

part of the Local 
Plan once 
adopted. 

Traffic 
Management 

Congestion 
management 

ECC 2019 To be confirmed 

Junction 
capacity 

improvements 
at the four key 

junctions 
identified in 
the action 

plan. 
Reduction in 

queue lengths 
from identified 

baseline. 

Medium, 
dependant 
on reduced 
congestion 

Some funding 
available from sec 
106 agreements. 

  

Reliant on ECC 
work programme 

following 
approval of the 
Local Plan and 

developer 
contributions 

once 
commenced. 

Timescale 
beyond control 

of UDC. 

P
age 165



Uttlesford District Council 

7 
LAQM Annual Status Report 2018 

8 

To work with 
ECC to assess 

whether 
changes to 

junction 
configurations 

and signal 
controls, control 

of parking 
measures on 
main routes 
through the 
town and 

access to the 
centre by HGVs 

which will 
demonstrably 

reduce 
congestion can 

be identified 
and  

implemented 
ahead of 

adoption of the 
local plan  

Traffic 
Management 

Congestion 
management 

ECC 2017-18 To be confirmed 

Improvements 
to junctions 
carried out, 
improved 

parking on 
main routes, 
restrictions to 

HGVs. 
Reduction in 

queue lengths 

Medium, 
dependant 
on reduced 
congestion 

    

Reliant on ECC 
and North Essex 

Parking 
Partnership 

(NEEP) to be in 
agreement with 

any changes. No 
realistic target 
date can be 

applied 

9 

To support 
targeted 

enforcement  of 
parking 

restrictions 
where identified 
to be an issue, 
on main routes 

through the 
town  

Traffic 
Management 

Parking 
enforcement 
on highway 

UDC 2017 2018 

No of parking 
penalty 

notices issued 
on main 
routes 

Low, 
dependant 
on reduced 
congestion 

To survey 
compliance with 

parking restrictions 
using data 

collected by North 
Essex Parking 

Partnership(NEEP) 
by October 2018. 

Cost :within 
existing resources.  

    

10 

To provide clear 
informative 
signage to 

Swan Meadow 
car park, new 

amenities, 
leisure centre, 
food stores, 
Audley End .  

Transport 
Planning and 
Infrastructure 

Other UDC 2017 2018 
No of new 

signs 
provided 

Low, 
dependant 
on reduced 
congestion 

To liaise with ECC 
highways to design 

and provide 
appropriate 
signage on 

approaches to 
facilities, by 

December 2018 
and thereafter 

    

P
age 166



Uttlesford District Council 

8 
LAQM Annual Status Report 2018 

11 

To review UDC  
travel plan and 

review 
opportunities for 
a shared travel 

plan with 
partner 

organisations 
using UDC 

facilities  

Promoting 
Travel 

Alternatives 

Workplace 
Travel Plans 

UDC 2017 2019 

Revised UDC 
TP by end of 

2017. 
Reduction in 
car travel to 

work as 
measured by 

survey 
&occupied car 

spaces, 
reduction in 

business 
mileage of 5% 

pa 

Low, 
dependant 
on reduced 
congestion 

Conduct a UDC 
workplace travel 

survey – July 
2018. Measure 

outcome of travel 
plan (July 2019). 

Cost :within 
existing resources  

    

12 

To pursue 
options to install 

renewable 
energy 

technologies at 
suitable sites 
within Saffron 

Walden,to 
review UDC 

fleet 
procurement 

and implement 
changes where 

identified as 
practicable, and 
likely emission 

reductions 
justify the 

capital 
expenditure  

Promoting 
Low 

Emission 
Plant and 
transport 

Low emission 
fuels for 

stationary 
sources, 
company 
vehicle 

procurement, 
prioritising 

uptake of low 
emission fuels 

UDC 2017 2017-2022 

No kW 
renewable 

energy within 
SW, review of 

fuel usage 
and type, no 
of UDC LEVs 

Medium 

To develop 
working group by 

December 2018 to 
consider options 
for replacement 

energy provision, 
fleet procurement 
and conversion of 
existing fleet to low 
emission fuel, and 
cost benefit. Cost : 
capital investment 

and staff time 

    

P
age 167



Uttlesford District Council 

9 
LAQM Annual Status Report 2018 

13 

To encourage 
ECC to procure 

bus services 
with integrated 
timetables, high 
quality facilities, 
and a frequent 

and reliable 
service linked to 
the rail service 
at Audley End. 
Information on 

Public 
Transport 

services to be 
readily available 

in UDC 
buildings and 

via the website. 

Transport 
Planning and 
Infrastructure 

Public 
transport 
service 

improvements 

ECC & UDC Mid 2017 2018-19 

No of new or 
improved 
services 
available, 

information 
available in 

UDC 
buildings. 

Increase in 
bus usage of 

5% 

Low 

Engage with ECC 
procurement 

services by  Sept 
2018 Engage with 

in house 
communications 
team to promote 

and provide 
effective 

information on 
public transport 
services at UDC 

access points and 
website, linked to 
ECC information, 
by March 2019 

    

14 

To identify 
opportunities to 

raise public 
awareness of 

air quality 
issues through 

education 
initiatives and 

publicity 
campaigns 

Public 
Information 

Via leaflets 
Via the 
internet 

UDC 2017-2022 2017-2022 

No of 
campaigns, 

target one per 
annum. 

Low, 
dependant 

on 
behavioural 

changes 

Targeted 
campaign 

delivered to 
schools & the 

general public , 
coincided with 

National Clean Air 
Day in June 2017 
and June 2018. 

Delivery of 
presentations to 

schools throughout  
2018 . Cost :within 
existing resources 

    

P
age 168



Uttlesford District Council 

10 
LAQM Annual Status Report 2018 

15 

To provide 
advice and 

raise 
awareness of 

car sharing and 
associated 
database 
software 

available to 
employers 

Alternatives 
to private 

vehicle use 

Car and lift 
sharing 

schemes 
UDC 2017 2018 

No of new car 
sharing 

schemes set 
up, target one 
per annum. 

Reduction of 
1-5% of 

private car 
commuter 
journeys 

Low 
dependant 
on reduced 
congestion 

Cost :within 
existing resources 

  

Scheme uptake 
outside control of 
UDC. However, 

district wide 
promotion of 

schemes to take 
place on an 

annual basis as 
part of other 
awareness 
linked to 

measure 14.  

16 

To consider the 
provision of 
preferential 
charging for 

UDC controlled 
parking spaces 

for vehicles 
meeting low 

emission 
standards  

Traffic 
Management 

Emission 
based parking 

or permit 
schemes 

UDC 2019 2020 
Review of 
charging 

policy 

Low, 
dependant 
on raised 
uptake of 

LEVs 

To carry out a 
feasibility study of 

permit style 
scheme by March 
2020 incorporating 
capital costs and 
take up of LEV’s 

    

17 

To engage with 
the Uttlesford 

licensed 
operators with 

the aim of 
introducing 
emission 

controls for 
licensed taxis 

operating within 
the AQMA. 

Promoting 
low emission 

transport 

Taxi licence 
conditions 

UDC 2017 2018 
Review of 
licensing 

policy 
Low 

To be linked to 
annual review of 

taxi licensing 
policy. Feasibility 

determined by 
March 2019 

    

18 

To encourage 
ECC to set 
emission 

standards for 
new and 

existing buses 
under contract 

operating within 
the AQMA 

Vehicle fleet 
efficiency 

Promoting low 
emission 

public 
transport 

ECC 2017-18 To be confirmed 
Review of 
contractual 

arrangements 
Low 

Discussions with 
ECC to achieve 

outcome by 
December 2018 

    

19 

To work with 
the operators of 

fleet vehicles 
within the town 
to facilitate the 
introduction of 

LEV’s 

Promoting 
low emission 

transport 

Company 
Vehicle 

Procurement -
Prioritising 

uptake of low 
emission 
vehicles 

UDC 2018 To be confirmed 

No of LEV 
fleet vehicles 
on town road 

network.  

Potentially 
medium, 

dependant 
on uptake 

of vehicles. 

Discussions with 
largest fleet 
operators by 

December 2018 

  

Reliance on 
engagement with 
fleet operators to 

achieve 
outcome.  

P
age 169



Uttlesford District Council 

11 
LAQM Annual Status Report 2018 

20 

Provide electric 
charging points 
on UDC owned 
parking spaces 

in the town 
where practical 

and 
economically 
feasible to do 

so, and 
encourage the 

provision of 
points at 
suitable 

privately owned 
sites 

Promoting 
low emission 

transport 

Procuring 
alternative 
refuelling 

infrastructure 
to promote 

Low Emission 
Vehicles, EV 
recharging 

UDC 2018 2019-2022 

No of points 
installed per 

annum, target 
4 

Potentially 
medium, 

dependant 
on uptake 

of vehicles.  

Existing provision 
two points on UDC 

sites. Feasibility 
study of increasing 

provision to be 
carried out in 

conjunction with 
point operators, by 
March 2019 . Cost 

of each point 
approx. £3000, 

grant funding from 
central 

government  
schemes to be 

sought.  

    

21 

To work with 
ECC on 

introducing 
delivery time 
restrictions to  

High Street SW 

Freight and 
delivery 

management 

Off peak 
hours 

deliveries 
ECC 2017 To be confirmed 

Restrictions in 
place, 

reductions in 
HGV parking 

Low 

Reliance on ECC 
to deliver outcome, 
discussions to be 
held by December 

2018 

    

22 

To carry out 
additional 

monitoring of 
NO2 within 

Saffron Walden 
to inform basis 

for decision 
making. 

Public 
Information 

Other UDC 2017 2017-2022 

Provision of 
localised data 

for 
incorporation 
into air quality 

modelling 

Low, 
provides 
evidence 
base for 
actions 

Automatic 
monitoring station 

at Thaxted 
Rd/Radwinter Rd 

junction,  
commissioned  
January 2018. 

Review of diffusion 
tube locations 
completed with 

new sites 
operational from 

January 2018 
replacing some 

sites.  

    

 

P
age 170



Uttlesford District Council 

12 
LAQM Annual Status Report 2018 

2.3 PM2.5 – Local Authority Approach to Reducing 
Emissions and/or Concentrations 

As detailed in Policy Guidance LAQM.PG16 (Chapter 7), local authorities are expected 

to work towards reducing emissions and/or concentrations of PM2.5 (particulate matter 

with an aerodynamic diameter of 2.5µm or less). There is clear evidence that PM2.5 

has a significant impact on human health, including premature mortality, allergic 

reactions, and cardiovascular diseases. 

Uttlesford District Council monitors PM2.5 concentrations within Saffron Walden town 

centre. Monitored levels (annual mean) are below 20µg/m3 and are likely to be 

representative of the local area. 

The Council notes the Public Health Outcomes Framework indicator 3.01 – Fraction of 

mortality attributable to particulate (PM2.5) air pollution which for 2016 gave a value of 

5.2% which despite yearly fluctuation has reduced from 5.5% in 2011. These values 

are broadly similar to other authorities within the region. 

Figure 2.1 - Public Health Indicator 3.01 - Fraction of mortality attributable to 

particulate air pollution 

 

Uttlesford District Council is taking the following measures to address PM2.5: 

• Regular inspections of industrial processes permitted by Uttlesford District 

Council where combustion and non-combustion processes could lead to 

anthropogenic emissions of PM2.5  

• Working with Essex County Council (highway authority) to deliver Major 

improvement schemes. In addition to reduced exhaust emissions, these 

schemes will reduce non-exhaust emissions from brake and tyre wear by 

making traffic flows smoother  

Page 171

javascript:goToMetadataPage(0);
javascript:goToMetadataPage(0);


Uttlesford District Council 

13 
LAQM Annual Status Report 2018 

2.4 Development Control 

New Local Plan 

Air quality issues are routinely considered in response to planning consultations within 

the existing policy framework. Where appropriate planning conditions are added to 

developments to mitigate the potential for increased air pollution. The Air Quality Action 

Plan for the Saffron Walden AQMA identifies the need to develop a new Air Quality 

Technical Planning Guidance document to support this process. 

The guidance has been prepared to inform and support the policies set out by 

Uttlesford District Council relating to air quality within the existing Local Plan and has 

been included as part of the consultation process for the emerging Local Plan. It is 

designed to take account of National Planning Practice Guidance, National Policy and 

relevant local information to ensure that good air quality is maintained and where 

possible improved through the development control process. The guidance determines 

when air quality assessments are required, sets out measures for on-site mitigation 

and provide guidance on offsetting the impact of development. In addition to traffic 

pollution, biomass, CHP and STOR installations are also considered. 

Policies aimed at improving air quality have been included in the Uttlesford Regulation 

19 pre-submission Local Plan. It is proposed to implement the following policies: 

Policy TA1: Accessible development 

Development and transport planning will be co-ordinated to reduce the need to travel 

by car, increase public transport use, cycling and walking.  

Policy TA2: Sustainable Transport 

Sustainable modes of transport should be facilitated through new developments to 

promote accessibility and integration into the wider community and existing networks. 

Priority should be given to cycle and pedestrian movements and access to public 

transport.  

Page 172



Uttlesford District Council 

14 
LAQM Annual Status Report 2018 

Policy TA3: Provision of Electric Charging points for Vehicles in new 

developments: 

A standard for the rate of provision is provided in the policy. 

Policy TA5: New Transport Infrastructure or Measures: 

The provision of new or enhanced transport infrastructure and initiatives will be 

pursued and implemented in partnership with the relevant transport providers. 

Developer funding for or provision of highway and transportation works and measures 

will be sought, including for walking and cycling routes, and improvements to 

Cambridge to Stansted railway and stations. 

Policy EN14: Pollutants 

Permission will not be granted where the development and uses would cause adverse 

impact to occupiers of surrounding land uses or the historic and natural environment, 

unless the need for development is judged to outweigh the effects caused and the 

development includes mitigation measures to minimise the adverse effects. 

Developments sensitive to pollutants will be permitted where the occupants would not 

experience adverse impact, or the impact can be overcome by mitigation measures. 

Policy EN15 Air Quality 

Development will be permitted where: 

1. It can be demonstrated that it does not lead to significant adverse effects on 

health, the environment or amenity from emissions to air; or 

2. Where a development is a sensitive end-use, that there will not be any 

significant adverse effects on health, the environment or amenity arising from 

existing poor air quality. 

Applicants must demonstrate that: 

1. There is no adverse effect on air quality in an Air Quality Management 

Area (AQMA) from the development; 

2. Pollution levels within the AQMA will not have a significant adverse effect 

on the proposed use/users; 

Page 173



Uttlesford District Council 

15 
LAQM Annual Status Report 2018 

3. Development has regard to relevant UDC Air Quality Technical Guidance; 

4. Development within or affecting an Air Quality Management Area (AQMA) will 

also be expected to contribute to a reduction in levels of air pollutants within the 

AQMA; 

5. Development will not lead to an increase in emissions, degradation of air quality 

or increase in exposure to pollutants at or above the health based air quality 

objective; 

6. Any impacts on the proposed use from existing poor air quality are appropriately 

mitigated; 

7. The development promotes sustainable transport measures and use of low 

emission vehicles in order to reduce air quality impacts of vehicles. 

8. Applicants shall, where appropriate prepare and submit with their application a 

relevant assessment, taking into account guidance current at the time of 

application. 

9. Where development proposals would be subject to unacceptable air quality 

standards or would have an unacceptable impact on air quality standards they 

will be refused. 

10. Where emissions from the proposed development approach EU Limit values or 

national objectives the applicant will need to assess the impact on local air 

quality by undertaking an appropriate air quality assessment. The assessment 

shall have regard to guidance current at the time of the application to show that 

the national objectives will still be achieved. 

11. Larger development proposals that require a Travel Plan and Transport 

Assessments/Statements will be required to produce a site based Low Emission 

Strategy. This will be a condition on any planning permission given for any 

proposed development which may result in the deterioration of local air quality 

and will be required to ensure the implementation of suitable mitigation 

measures. 

Page 174



Uttlesford District Council 

16 
LAQM Annual Status Report 2018 

2.5 Partnership working  

Uttlesford District Council continues to engage with Essex County Council (the 

Highway Authority) to ensure options for appropriate traffic infrastructure alterations 

are developed to reduce congestion and support the emerging Local Plan.  

 

The inclusion of air quality by the Department of Health and Social Care as an indicator 

for public health is intended to encourage action to improve air quality nationally and 

to raise awareness of its effects on how well people live at all stages of life. Public 

Health colleagues have been involved with development of draft local plan policies 

aimed to ensure the health impact of development is fully considered, and with 

promoting non-car travel. Increasing the number of walking and cycling journeys to 

access school, workplaces or amenities would have wider benefits for an individual’s 

health and wellbeing associated with increased activity. 

 

Page 175



Uttlesford District Council 

17 
LAQM Annual Status Report 2018 

3 Air Quality Monitoring Data and Comparison 
with Air Quality Objectives and National Compliance 

3.1 Summary of Monitoring Undertaken 

3.1.1 Automatic Monitoring Sites 

This section sets out what monitoring has taken place and how it compares with 

objectives. 

Uttlesford District Council undertook automatic (continuous) monitoring at 2 sites 

during 2017. 

• Site UTT1 measured NO2 and PM2.5 

• Site UTT3 measured NO2 and PM10 

The data ratification process identified serious errors in the dataset measured by the 

NO2 analyser at the automatic monitoring site of UTT1. A small leak was identified 

where air was drawn into the analyser from the enclosure which continued to be 

problematical and affected a large part of the years dataset. The decision has therefore 

been made to not report any data from this analyser. The analyser is 21 years old and 

the Council is looking to renew to prevent further data loss. 

  

Table A.1 in Appendix A provides detail of the sites. 

Details on how the monitors are calibrated and how the data has been adjusted are 

included in Appendix C. 

Maps showing the location of the monitoring sites are provided in Appendix D. 

3.1.2 Non-Automatic Monitoring Sites 

Uttlesford District Council undertook non-automatic (passive) monitoring of NO2 at 27 

sites during 2017. 

Table A.2 in Appendix A provides detail of the sites. 

Details on Quality Assurance/Quality Control (QA/QC) for the diffusion tubes, including 

bias adjustments and any other adjustments applied (e.g. “annualisation” and/or 

distance correction), are included in Appendix C. 

Maps showing the location of the monitoring sites are provided in Appendix D. 

Page 176



Uttlesford District Council 

18 
LAQM Annual Status Report 2018 

3.2 Individual Pollutants 

The air quality monitoring results presented in this section are, where relevant, 

adjusted for bias, “annualisation” and distance correction. Further details on 

adjustments are provided in Appendix C. 

3.2.1 Nitrogen Dioxide (NO2) 

Table A.3 in Appendix A compares the ratified and adjusted monitored NO2 annual 

mean concentrations for the past 5 years with the air quality objective of 40µg/m3. 

For diffusion tubes, the full 2017 dataset of monthly mean values is provided in 

Appendix B. 

Table A.4 in Appendix A compares the ratified continuous monitored NO2 hourly mean 

concentrations for the past 5 years with the air quality objective of 200µg/m3, not to be 

exceeded more than 18 times per year. 

In 2017, Uttlesford District Council did not measure any exceedances of the annual 

mean or 1-Hr mean Air Quality Objective for Nitrogen Dioxide (NO2). 

3.2.2 Particulate Matter (PM10) 

Table A.5 in Appendix A compares the ratified and adjusted monitored PM10 annual 

mean concentrations for the past 5 years with the air quality objective of 40µg/m3. 

Table A.6 in Appendix A compares the ratified continuous monitored PM10 daily mean 

concentrations for the past 5 years with the air quality objective of 50µg/m3, not to be 

exceeded more than 35 times per year. 

In 2017, Uttlesford District Council did not measure any exceedances of the annual 

mean or 24-Hr mean Air Quality Objective for Particulate Matter (PM10). 

3.2.3 Particulate Matter (PM2.5) 

Table A.7 in Appendix A presents the ratified and adjusted monitored PM2.5 annual 

mean concentrations for the past 5 years. 

Air quality monitoring identified that fine particulate matter (PM2.5) was below the target 

values set for the National Air Quality Objectives. 

Page 177



Uttlesford District Council 

19 
LAQM Annual Status Report 2018 

Appendix A: Monitoring Results  

 
Table A.1 – Details of Automatic Monitoring Sites 

Site ID Site Name Site Type 
X OS 

Grid Ref 
Y OS 

Grid Ref 
Pollutants 
Monitored 

In 
AQMA? 

Monitoring 
Technique 

Distance to 
Relevant 
Exposure 

(m) (1) 

Distance 
to kerb of 
nearest 

road (m) (2) 

Inlet 
Height 

(m) 

UTT1 
Hill St, 
Saffron 
Walden 

Roadside 553825 238409 
NOx, NO, 

NO2; 
PM2.5 

Y 
Chemiluminescent; 
BAM (with Smart 

Heater) 
25 4.1 2 

UTT3 

Mobile Unit 
London 
Road, 

Saffron 
Walden 

Roadside 553570 237908 
NOx, NO, 

NO2; 
PM10 

N 
Chemiluminescent, 

BAM 
6 3 2.8 

 

Notes: 

(1) 0m if the monitoring site is at a location of exposure (e.g. installed on the façade of a residential property). 

(2) N/A if not applicable. 

  

P
age 178



Uttlesford District Council 

20 
LAQM Annual Status Report 2018 

Table A.2 – Details of Non-Automatic Monitoring Sites 

Site ID Site Name Site Type 
X OS 

Grid Ref 
Y OS 

Grid Ref 
Pollutants 
Monitored 

In 
AQMA? 

Distance 
to 

Relevant 
Exposure 

(m) (1) 

Distance 
to kerb of 
nearest 
road (m) 

(2) 

Tube 
collocated 

with a 
Continuous 
Analyser? 

Height 
(m) 

UT001 High Street 
Urban 
Centre 

553709 238417 NO2 Yes 15 1.5 NO 2 

UT002 
Airport 1 
Thatched 
Cottage 

Roadside 552706 221403 NO2 No 1 10 NO 2 

UT003 
Gibson 

Gardens 
Urban 

Background 
553554 238218 NO2 Yes 5.1 1.5 NO 2 

UT004 YHA Kerbside 553598 238595 NO2 Yes 0.8 0.4 NO 2 

UT005 
Thaxted 

Road 
Kerbside 554336 238454 NO2 Yes 2.4 0.5 NO 2 

UT006 
Stansted, 

Norman Ct 
Urban 

Background 
551358 225452 NO2 No 0 3.9 NO 2 

UT007 
Airport 2 

Rose Cottage 
Roadside 556186 223724 NO2 No 0 7.5 NO 2 

UT008 Hallingbury Roadside 551189 217438 NO2 No 69 20 NO 2 

UT009 Burton End Roadside 552403 223965 NO2 No 17 27 NO 2 

UT010 Newport Kerbside 551246 233649 NO2 No 40 0.1 NO 2 

UT011 
33 High 
Street 

Urban 
Centre 

553697 238452 NO2 Yes 0 2.7 NO 2 

UT012 Town Hall 
Urban 

Background 
553879 238510 NO2 Yes 20 0.1 NO 2 

UT013/UTT014/UTT027 
Fire Station 
Co-Located 

Roadside 553825 238409 NO2 Yes 25 4.1 YES 2 

UT024 Takeley Hill  Rural 554671 221010 NO2 No N/A 118 NO 2 

UT025 
Elman's 
Green   

Rural 553271 221072 NO2 No N/A 271 NO 2 

P
age 179



Uttlesford District Council 

21 
LAQM Annual Status Report 2018 

UT026 South Gate   Rural 553141 218694 NO2 No N/A 139 NO 2 

UT028 London Rd Roadside 553755 238092 NO2 Yes 0.8 2 NO 2 

UT029 Debden Road Roadside 553770 238076 NO2 Yes 0.5 0.5 NO 2 

UT030 
Friends 
School 

Kerbside 553875 237764 NO2 Yes 10 0.5 NO 2 

UT031 
Mount 

Pleasant 
Road 

Roadside 554178 237767 NO2 Yes 2 1.5 NO 2 

UT032 
Borough 

Lane 
Roadside 553625 237856 NO2 Yes 0 7 NO 2 

UT033 Chapel Hill Roadside 551377 224913 NO2 No 0 3 NO 2 

UT034 Four Ashes Roadside 556101 221243 NO2 No 8 1.5 NO 2 

UT036 Church Street 
Urban 
Centre 

553718 238530 NO2 Yes 0 1 NO 2 

UT037 Castle Street Kerbside 553923 238770 NO2 Yes 1 1 NO 2 

UT038 
Oak Cottage 

HBO 
Kerbside 554691 216558 NO2 No 0 1 NO 2 

UT039 
Newport High 

Street 
Roadside 552156 234034 NO2 No 0 1.2 NO 2 

 

Notes: 

(1) 0m if the monitoring site is at a location of exposure (e.g. installed on/adjacent to the façade of a residential property). 

(2) N/A if not applicable. 

  

P
age 180



Uttlesford District Council 

22 
LAQM Annual Status Report 2018 

Table A.3 – Annual Mean NO2 Monitoring Results 

Site ID Site Name Site Type 
Monitoring 

Type 

Valid Data 
Capture 

for 
Monitoring 
Period (%) 

(1) 

Valid 
Data 

Capture 
2017 (%) 

(2) 

NO2 Annual Mean Concentration (µg/m3) (3) 

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 

UTT1 
Hill St, 
Saffron 
Walden 

Roadside Automatic 0 0 23.70 22.90 22.13 25.66 N/A 

UTT3 

Mobile Unit 
London 
Road, 

Saffron 
Walden 

Roadside Automatic 89 89 N/A N/A N/A 23.95 18.34 

UT001 High Street 
Urban 
Centre 

Diffusion Tube 83 83 38.94 33.06 36.35 40.04 33.96 

UT002 
Airport 1 
Thatched 
Cottage 

Roadside Diffusion Tube 75 75 23.82 20.69 21.41 26.69 21.29 

UT003 
Gibson 

Gardens 
Urban 

Background 
Diffusion Tube 92 92 16.04 13.66 12.26 16.22 13.43 

UT004 YHA Kerbside Diffusion Tube 100 100 42.74 37.34 42.17 46.90 38.00 

UT005 
Thaxted 

Road 
Kerbside Diffusion Tube 92 92 36.24 38.59 41.17 47.52 37.98 

UT006 
Stansted, 

Norman Ct 
Urban 

Background 
Diffusion Tube 100 100 15.94 15.06 14.13 16.68 13.46 

UT007 
Airport 2 

Rose 
Cottage 

Roadside Diffusion Tube 100 100 24.84 19.99 22.69 27.08 23.38 

UT008 Hallingbury Roadside Diffusion Tube 92 92 29.71 26.22 25.15 29.88 22.79 

UT009 Burton End Roadside Diffusion Tube 100 100 38.73 33.61 35.51 43.04 36.82 

UT010 Newport Kerbside Diffusion Tube 100 100 25.96 23.80 25.10 31.02 25.02 

UT011 
33 High 
Street 

Urban 
Centre 

Diffusion Tube 100 100 34.35 30.63 32.90 38.57 30.97 

UT012 Town Hall 
Urban 

Background 
Diffusion Tube 100 100 20.99 19.01 18.52 20.48 16.20 

P
age 181



Uttlesford District Council 

23 
LAQM Annual Status Report 2018 

UT013/UT014/UT027 
Fire Station 
Co-Located 

Roadside Diffusion Tube 100 100 23.77 22.10 21.44 25.84 21.32 

UT024 Takeley Hill  Rural Diffusion Tube 58 58 15.73 13.49 14.73 17.01 15.49 

UT025 
Elman's 
Green   

Rural Diffusion Tube 100 100 15.80 13.62 13.55 17.84 13.30 

UT026 South Gate   Rural Diffusion Tube 83 83 13.28 11.86 12.29 13.52 11.34 

UT028 London Rd Roadside Diffusion Tube 92 92 41.33 35.01 37.96 44.76 37.44 

UT029 
Debden 
Road 

Roadside Diffusion Tube 100 100 26.51 25.04 21.58 26.50 21.41 

UT030 
Friends 
School 

Kerbside Diffusion Tube 92 92 29.75 27.16 29.01 35.27 26.10 

UT031 
Mount 

Pleasant 
Road 

Roadside Diffusion Tube 100 100 23.79 22.03 22.00 26.22 21.38 

UT032 
Borough 

Lane 
Roadside Diffusion Tube 100 100 19.51 16.92 16.79 19.71 17.36 

UT033 Chapel Hill Roadside Diffusion Tube 100 100 29.79 26.91 27.61 36.18 26.99 

UT034 Four Ashes Roadside Diffusion Tube 100 100 N/A 26.41 26.08 35.15 29.79 

UT036 
Church 
Street 

Urban 
Centre 

Diffusion Tube 100 100 N/A 22.24 21.63 27.09 20.87 

UT037 
Castle 
Street 

Kerbside Diffusion Tube 100 100 N/A 25.73 24.19 29.08 23.97 

UT038 
Oak 

Cottage 
HBO 

Kerbside Diffusion Tube 100 100 N/A N/A 21.25 25.80 22.44 

UT039 
Newport 

High Street 
Roadside Diffusion Tube 100 33 N/A N/A N/A N/A 31.35 

☒ Diffusion tube data has been bias corrected 

☒ Annualisation has been conducted where data capture is <75% 

Notes: 

Exceedances of the NO2 annual mean objective of 40µg/m3 are shown in bold. 

NO2 annual means exceeding 60µg/m3, indicating a potential exceedance of the NO2 1-hour mean objective are shown in bold and underlined. 

(1) Data capture for the monitoring period, in cases where monitoring was only carried out for part of the year. 

(2) Data capture for the full calendar year (e.g. if monitoring was carried out for 6 months, the maximum data capture for the full calendar year is 50%). 

(3) Means for diffusion tubes have been corrected for bias. All means have been “annualised” as per Boxes 7.9 and 7.10 in LAQM.TG16 if valid data capture for 
the full calendar year is less than 75%. See Appendix C for details.  

P
age 182



Uttlesford District Council 

24 
LAQM Annual Status Report 2018 

Figure A.1 – Trends in Annual Mean NO2 Concentrations  

  

Air Quality Objective 40µg/m3

10.00

15.00

20.00

25.00

30.00

35.00

40.00

45.00

50.00

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

N
O

2
C

o
n

ce
n

tr
at

io
n

 (
µ

g/
m

3
)

UT001

UT002

UT003

UT004

UT005

UT006

UT007

UT008

UT009

UT010

UT011

UT012

UT013/014/027*

UT024

UT025

UT026

UT028

UT029

UT030

UT031

P
age 183



Uttlesford District Council 

25 
LAQM Annual Status Report 2018 

Table A.4 – 1-Hour Mean NO2 Monitoring Results 

 

Site ID Site Type 
Monitoring 

Type 

Valid Data 
Capture for 

Monitoring Period 
(%) (1) 

Valid Data 
Capture 2017 

(%) (2) 

NO2 1-Hour Means > 200µg/m3 (3) 

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 

UTT1 Roadside Automatic 0 0 0 0 0 (78.91) 1 N/A 

UTT3 Roadside Automatic 89.16 89.16 N/A N/A N/A 0 (133.57) 1 

 

Notes: 

Exceedances of the NO2 1-hour mean objective (200µg/m3 not to be exceeded more than 18 times/year) are shown in bold. 

(1) Data capture for the monitoring period, in cases where monitoring was only carried out for part of the year. 

(2) Data capture for the full calendar year (e.g. if monitoring was carried out for 6 months, the maximum data capture for the full calendar year is 50%). 

(3) If the period of valid data is less than 85%, the 99.8th percentile of 1-hour means is provided in brackets. 

Table A.5 – Annual Mean PM10 Monitoring Results 

Site ID Site Type 

Valid Data 
Capture for 
Monitoring 

Period (%) (1) 

Valid Data 
Capture 2017 

(%) (2) 

PM10 Annual Mean Concentration (µg/m3) (3) 

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 

UTT3 Roadside 96.71 96.71 N/A N/A N/A 24.5 24.18 

 

Notes: 

Exceedances of the PM10 annual mean objective of 40µg/m3 are shown in bold. 

(1) Data capture for the monitoring period, in cases where monitoring was only carried out for part of the year. 

(2) Data capture for the full calendar year (e.g. if monitoring was carried out for 6 months, the maximum data capture for the full calendar year is 50%). 

(3) All means have been “annualised” as per Boxes 7.9 and 7.10 in LAQM.TG16, valid data capture for the full calendar year is less than 75%. See Appendix C 
for details. 

 

P
age 184



Uttlesford District Council 

26 
LAQM Annual Status Report 2018 

Table A.6 – 24-Hour Mean PM10 Monitoring Results 

Site ID Site Type 
Valid Data Capture for 

Monitoring Period (%) (1) 

Valid Data 
Capture 2017 

(%) (2) 

PM10 24-Hour Means > 50µg/m3 (3) 

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 

UTT3 Roadside 96.71 96.71 N/A N/A N/A 6 (43.47) 19 

 

Notes: 

Exceedances of the PM10 24-hour mean objective (50µg/m3 not to be exceeded more than 35 times/year) are shown in bold. 

(1) Data capture for the monitoring period, in cases where monitoring was only carried out for part of the year. 

(2) Data capture for the full calendar year (e.g. if monitoring was carried out for 6 months, the maximum data capture for the full calendar year is 50%). 

(3) If the period of valid data is less than 85%, the 90.4th percentile of 24-hour means is provided in brackets. 

 

Table A.7 – PM2.5 Monitoring Results 

Site ID Site Type 
Valid Data Capture for Monitoring 

Period (%) (1) 
Valid Data Capture 

2017 (%) (2) 

PM2.5 Annual Mean Concentration (µg/m3) (3) 

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 

UTT1 Roadside   N/A 19.6 19.3 17.27 18.45 

☐ Annualisation has been conducted where data capture is <75%  

 

Notes: 

(1) Data capture for the monitoring period, in cases where monitoring was only carried out for part of the year. 

(2) Data capture for the full calendar year (e.g. if monitoring was carried out for 6 months, the maximum data capture for the full calendar year is 50%). 

(3) All means have been “annualised” as per Boxes 7.9 and 7.10 in LAQM.TG16, valid data capture for the full calendar year is less than 75%. See Appendix C 
for details. 

  

P
age 185



Uttlesford District Council 

27 
LAQM Annual Status Report 2018 

Figure A.2 – Trends in Annual Mean PM2.5 Concentrations  

   

16

16.5

17

17.5

18

18.5

19

19.5

20

2014 2015 2016 2017

P
M

2.
5

C
o

n
ce

n
tr

at
io

n
 (

µ
g/

m
3 )P

age 186



Uttlesford District Council 

28 
LAQM Annual Status Report 2018 

Appendix B: Full Monthly Diffusion Tube Results for 2017 
Table B.1 – NO2 Monthly Diffusion Tube Results - 2017 

Site ID 

NO2 Mean Concentrations (µg/m3) 

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec 

Annual Mean 

Raw 
Data 

Bias 
Adjusted 
(0.77) and 

Annualised 
(1) 

Distance 
Corrected 

to 
Nearest 

Exposure 
(2) 

UT001 67.7 Missing Missing 42.8 39.6 36.5 35.8 36.6 42.1 43.0 54.4 42.6 44.11 33.96 21.31 

UT002 40.9 30.2 29.5 25.6 20.0 Missing Missing Missing 15.3 24.0 34.6 28.7 27.64 21.29 21.11 

UT003 31.1 24.7 20.5 12.8 12 Missing 9 9.8 13.7 16.5 22.8 19 17.45 13.43 12.29 

UT004 63.4 52.1 49.6 46.6 45.1 44.2 38.3 41.4 49.7 51.5 58.4 51.9 49.35 38.00 32.75 

UT005 Missing 51.5 55.2 50 46.4 45.3 43 41.8 43.7 52.3 59.6 53.8 49.33 37.98 29.66 

UT006 33.8 22.7 19.7 13.9 12.9 11.4 8.7 13.4 14.3 17.9 21.1 20 17.48 13.46 13.46 

UT007 45.6 32.1 30.1 28.4 22.3 23.3 22.6 26.6 27.4 30.1 40.1 35.7 30.36 23.38 23.38 

UT008 55.3 30.3 33.1 24.6 31.2 25.1 23.5 24 25.7 24.2 Damaged 28.5 29.59 22.79 17.31 

UT009 63.4 51.4 48.8 50.9 42.1 37 38.5 45.4 41.1 48.2 51.8 55.2 47.82 36.82 30.59 

UT010 45.3 25.3 41.1 36.4 26.9 27 26.6 28.5 29.6 34.6 39.5 29.1 32.49 25.02 15.83 

UT011 55.5 37.1 44.3 45.6 34.5 33.6 36.3 33.6 35.6 35.8 46.3 44.5 40.23 30.97 30.97 

UT012 38.3 22.3 22.1 17.8 17.1 14.3 15 16.8 19.4 21.4 26.1 21.9 21.04 16.20 11.62 

UT013 50.7 36.6 35.3 27.2 23.3 17.8 18.2 16.8 21.5 26.3 34.1 33.6 28.45 21.91 15.29 

UT014 50.4 37.2 34.4 26.2 23.4 17.2 18.4 16.5 21.1 25.1 32.4 30.1 27.70 21.33 15.03 

UT024 Missing 21.9 36.5 14.5 Missing Missing 10.8 Missing Missing 17.4 22.9 16.8 20.11 15.49 15.49 

UT025 30.7 21.7 19.9 14.9 13.9 8.9 11.1 12.8 14.4 16.7 23 19.2 17.27 13.30 13.30 

P
age 187



Uttlesford District Council 

29 
LAQM Annual Status Report 2018 

UT026 Damaged 19.5 18.1 11.9 10.2 Damaged 9.1 13.9 12.9 17.2 17 17.5 14.73 11.34 11.34 

UT027 47.4 34.9 34.3 23.2 22.2 16.8 18 18.1 22 25.4 27.8 32.8 26.91 20.72 14.76 

UT028 70.5 53.8 51.7 46.2 39.1 38.9 40.6 40.3 43.5 49.1 61.1 Missing 48.62 37.44 35.27 

UT029 48.8 31 29.9 27.3 24.1 20.1 18.5 20.4 27.1 29.1 33 24.3 27.80 21.41 20.00 

UT030 56.2 Missing 39.7 29.2 35.5 26.8 23.8 27.2 30.9 30.5 40.4 32.7 33.90 26.10 17.26 

UT031 48.8 23.7 32.9 21.7 24.6 19.6 20.1 20.6 25.9 28.6 35 31.7 27.77 21.38 19.15 

UT032 63.8 23.8 27.1 17.1 15.9 11.3 12.8 13.4 16.2 19 25.7 24.5 22.55 17.36 17.36 

UT033 46.8 38.8 40 36.8 33.6 28.8 28.6 30.2 31.6 32.6 41.5 31.3 35.05 26.99 26.99 

UT034 64.6 42.8 42.7 31.8 31.3 31.8 28.4 33.8 35 39.1 48.2 34.7 38.68 29.79 22.04 

UT036 45.7 29.5 32.8 24.5 21.1 19.3 22 21.4 25.1 28.2 28.4 27.2 27.10 20.87 20.87 

UT037 53.3 37.7 34.9 24.6 26.6 22.8 22.7 20.9 27 27.6 38.9 36.6 31.13 23.97 22.01 

UT038 49.7 33.7 32.4 26.2 24.5 20.4 20.6 25.2 27.6 28.2 30.6 30.6 29.14 22.44 22.44 

UT039 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 36.3 35.4 40 40.5 38.05 31.35 31.35 

☒ National bias adjustment factor used 

☒ Annualisation has been conducted where data capture is <75% 

☒ Where applicable, data has been distance corrected for relevant exposure 

 

Notes:  

Exceedances of the NO2 annual mean objective of 40µg/m3 are shown in bold. 

NO2 annual means exceeding 60µg/m3, indicating a potential exceedance of the NO2 1-hour mean objective are shown in bold and underlined. 

(1) See Appendix C for details on bias adjustment and annualisation. 

(2) Distance corrected to nearest relevant public exposure. 

 

P
age 188



Uttlesford District Council 

30 
LAQM Annual Status Report 2018 

Appendix C: Supporting Technical Information / Air 
Quality Monitoring Data QA/QC 

In 2017, Uttlesford District Council operated two automatic monitoring stations and 

monitored for NO2, PM10 and PM2.5. 

The monitoring assets consist of two chemiluminescence (NO/NO2/NOx) gas analysers, 

one Met One BAM PM10 analyser and one Met One Smart Heated BAM PM2.5 analyser. 

Analysers are serviced in-line with manufacturer guidelines biannually. NO2 analysers 

have a LSO calibration fortnightly to check against a certified calibration gas bottle.  

Data has been ratified according to LAQM TG16 procedures to identify erroneous data 

and to account for instrument drift. 

For Nitrogen Dioxide, the calibration and ratification process corrected the raw dataset 

for any drift in the zero baseline and upper range of the instrument. This was carried 

out using a Enviman Reporter software based process that incorporates zero and span 

check information from the calibration visits. 

The Met One PM10 measurements are corrected for slope by dividing the data by 1.2. 

The Met One PM2.5 measurements are not adjusted due to the presence of the smart 

heater. 

Diffusion Tubes QA/QC 

In 2017, Uttlesford District Council undertook monitoring with 29 nitrogen dioxide 

diffusion tubes at 27 sites. 

The diffusion tubes were supplied by Environmental Scientifics Group (ESG Didcot) 

(UKAS Testing Laboratory number 1015) with a preparation method of 50% 

triethanolamine (TEA) in Acetone. 

The AIR NO2 proficiency testing scheme found that the laboratory achieved the 

following percentage of results determined as satisfactory for 2017: 

Page 189



Uttlesford District Council 

31 
LAQM Annual Status Report 2018 

Table C.1 – AIR PT Results 2017 

AIR PT 

Round 

AIR PT 

AR018 

AIR PT AR019 AIR PT AR021 AIR PT AR022 

Round 

conducted 

in the period 

January – 

February 

2017 

April – May 

2017 

July – August 

2017 

September – 

October 2017 

ESG Didcot 100% 100% 100% 100% 

 
Diffusion Tube Bias Adjustment Factors 

Due to issues with the data quality at the Hill Street, Saffron Walden monitoring site, 

no results are being reported for 2017 so it is not possible to generate a local bias 

adjustment factor for Saffron Walden. 

Using the Diffusion Tube Bias Adjustment Factors Spreadsheet 03/18 identified that 

for ESG (Didcot) 50% TEA in acetone diffusion tubes in 2017, a bias adjustment factor 

of 0.77 should be used. This was derived from orthogonal regression analysis of 27 

studies. 

Point Sources 

No significant new point sources of emissions have been identified. 

NO2 Fall Off Estimation 

Diffusion tube monitoring shown in Table B.1 in Appendix B has been adjusted for NO2 

falloff between the monitoring location and the point of relevant exposure. 

Using the equation from the Air Quality Consultants ‘NO2 Concentrations and Distance 

from Roads (2008)’ report a custom Excel spreadsheet has been developed to derive 

the NO2 concentrations at relevant exposure from the measured annual mean 

concentrations and using 2017 NO2 background maps.  

Estimated Annual Mean at Relevant Exposure: 

Cz = ((Cy-Cb) / (-0.5476 x Ln(Dy) + 2.7171)) x (-0.5476*Ln(Dz)+2.7171) + Cb 

Where: 

Cz is the total predicted concentration (μg/m3) at distance Dz; 

Cy is the total measured concentration (μg/m3) at distance Dy; 

Cb is the background concentration (μg/m3); 

Dy is the distance from the kerb at which concentrations were measured; 

Dz is the distance from the kerb (m) at which concentrations are to be predicted; and 

Ln(D) is the natural log of the number D 

Page 190



Uttlesford District Council 

32 
LAQM Annual Status Report 2018 

Appendix D: Maps of Monitoring Locations and 
AQMA 
Figure D.1 – Saffron Walden AQMA and Monitoring Locations 

 

Page 191



Uttlesford District Council 

33 
LAQM Annual Status Report 2018 

Figure D.2 – Newport Monitoring Locations 

 

Page 192



Uttlesford District Council 

34 
LAQM Annual Status Report 2018 

Figure D.3 – Other Monitoring Locations 

 

Page 193



Uttlesford District Council 

35 
LAQM Annual Status Report 2018 

Appendix E: Summary of Air Quality Objectives in 
England 
Table E.1 – Air Quality Objectives in England 

Pollutant 
Air Quality Objective4 

Concentration Measured as 

Nitrogen Dioxide 
(NO2) 

200 µg/m3 not to be exceeded more 
than 18 times a year 

1-hour mean 

40 µg/m3 Annual mean 

Particulate Matter 
(PM10) 

50 µg/m3, not to be exceeded more 
than 35 times a year 

24-hour mean 

40 µg/m3 Annual mean 

Sulphur Dioxide 
(SO2) 

350 µg/m3, not to be exceeded more 
than 24 times a year 

1-hour mean 

125 µg/m3, not to be exceeded more 
than 3 times a year 

24-hour mean 

266 µg/m3, not to be exceeded more 
than 35 times a year 

15-minute mean 

 

 

                                                      
4 The units are in microgrammes of pollutant per cubic metre of air (µg/m3). 

Page 194



Uttlesford District Council 

36 
LAQM Annual Status Report 2018 

Glossary of Terms 

Abbreviation Description 

µg/m3 Micrograms per cubic metre 

AQAP Air Quality Action Plan - A detailed description of measures, 
outcomes, achievement dates and implementation methods, 
showing how the local authority intends to achieve air quality limit 
values’ 

AQMA Air Quality Management Area – An area where air pollutant 
concentrations exceed / are likely to exceed the relevant air quality 
objectives. AQMAs are declared for specific pollutants and 
objectives 

ASR Air Quality Annual Status Report 

BAM Beta Attenuation Monitors 

Biomass Biomass is an industry term for getting energy by burning wood, and 
other organic matter 

CHP Combined Heat and Power 

Defra Department for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs 

EU European Union 

LAQM Local Air Quality Management 

NO2 Nitrogen Dioxide 

NOx Nitrogen Oxides 

PM10 Airborne particulate matter with an aerodynamic diameter of 10µm 
(micrometres or microns) or less 

PM2.5 Airborne particulate matter with an aerodynamic diameter of 2.5µm 
or less 

STOR Short Term Operating Reserve 

QA/QC Quality Assurance and Quality Control 

 

 

Page 195

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Organic_matter


Uttlesford District Council 

37 
LAQM Annual Status Report 2018 

References 
Air Quality Consultants (AQC) NO2 Concentrations and Distance from Roads (2008) 

available at; https://laqm.defra.gov.uk/documents/FallOffWithDistanceReptJuly08.pdf 

Defra Diffusion Tube Bias Adjustment Factors Spreadsheet available at; 

https://laqm.defra.gov.uk/assets/Database_Diffusion_Tube_Bias_Factors_v03_18%2

0FINAL.xls 

Defra PG.16 Air Quality Policy Guidance available at; 

https://laqm.defra.gov.uk/documents/LAQM-PG16-April-16-v1.pdf  

Defra TG.16 Air Quality Technical Guidance available at; 

https://laqm.defra.gov.uk/documents/LAQM-TG16-February-18-v1.pdf  

Essex Air Twitter Feed available at; https://twitter.com/essexair 

EssexCarShare.com available at; https://essex.liftshare.com/ 

Essex County Council Local Transport Plan available at; 

http://www.essexhighways.org/Transport-and-Roads/Highway-Schemes-and-

Developments/Local-Transport-Plan.aspx  

Essex County Council Major Schemes available at; 

http://www.essexhighways.org/highway-schemes-and-developments/major-

schemes.aspx  

National Air Quality Objectives and European Directive Limit and Target Values for 

the Protection of Human Health available at; https://uk-

air.defra.gov.uk/assets/documents/Air_Quality_Objectives_Update.pdf  

Public Health Outcomes Framework Indicator 3.01 available at; 

http://www.phoutcomes.info/ 

UK-AIR Background Mapping Data for Local Authorities available at; https://uk-

air.defra.gov.uk/data/laqm-background-maps?year=2015  

Uttlesford District Council Air Quality Technical Planning Guidance available at; 

http://www.uttlesford.gov.uk/CHttpHandler.ashx?id=8250&p=0  

Uttlesford District Council Regulation 19 Local Plan available at; 

https://www.uttlesford.gov.uk/CHttpHandler.ashx?id=8248&p=0  

Page 196

https://laqm.defra.gov.uk/documents/FallOffWithDistanceReptJuly08.pdf
https://laqm.defra.gov.uk/assets/Database_Diffusion_Tube_Bias_Factors_v03_18%20FINAL.xls
https://laqm.defra.gov.uk/assets/Database_Diffusion_Tube_Bias_Factors_v03_18%20FINAL.xls
https://laqm.defra.gov.uk/documents/LAQM-PG16-April-16-v1.pdf
https://laqm.defra.gov.uk/documents/LAQM-TG16-February-18-v1.pdf
https://twitter.com/essexair
https://essex.liftshare.com/
http://www.essexhighways.org/Transport-and-Roads/Highway-Schemes-and-Developments/Local-Transport-Plan.aspx
http://www.essexhighways.org/Transport-and-Roads/Highway-Schemes-and-Developments/Local-Transport-Plan.aspx
http://www.essexhighways.org/highway-schemes-and-developments/major-schemes.aspx
http://www.essexhighways.org/highway-schemes-and-developments/major-schemes.aspx
https://uk-air.defra.gov.uk/assets/documents/Air_Quality_Objectives_Update.pdf
https://uk-air.defra.gov.uk/assets/documents/Air_Quality_Objectives_Update.pdf
http://www.phoutcomes.info/
https://uk-air.defra.gov.uk/data/laqm-background-maps?year=2015
https://uk-air.defra.gov.uk/data/laqm-background-maps?year=2015
http://www.uttlesford.gov.uk/CHttpHandler.ashx?id=8250&p=0
https://www.uttlesford.gov.uk/CHttpHandler.ashx?id=8248&p=0


Local Authority: Uttlesford District Council

Reference: ASR18-171

Date of issue August 2018

ASR Appraisal Report 1

  Annual Status Report 
The Report sets out the Annual Status Report (ASR), which forms part of the Review & 

Assessment process required under the Environment Act 1995 and subsequent 

Regulations.

    
(From Uttlesford DC ASR 2018)

The Local Authority has one AQMA in Saffron Walden Town Centre that was declared in 

2012 for exceedence of the annual mean objective for Nitrogen Dioxide. 

Air quality in Uttlesford is monitored by 2 automatic monitors (measuring NOx, NO, NO2, 

PM10 and PM2.5) and a network of 27 diffusion tubes. One automatic monitoring site (UT1) 

is due to be replaced and recent data not reported due to unreliability.

Current monitoring shows that, after distance correction, there are no exceedances of the 

annual mean objective within the Saffron Walden AQMA and no exceedances outside the 

AQMA.  The highest recorded result at a position of relevant exposure is now 35.3µg/m3, 

which is now more than 10% below the annual mean objective.

The revised Air Quality Action Plan was adopted in 2017. 

On the basis of the evidence provided by the local authority the conclusions reached are 

acceptable for all sources and pollutants, with the provisos listed in the commentary 

below.

Following the completion of this report, Uttlesford District Council should submit an Annual 

Status Report in 2019.

Page 197



Local Authority: Uttlesford District Council

Reference: ASR18-171

Date of issue August 2018

ASR Appraisal Report 2

Commentary

The report is well structured, and provides the information specified in the Guidance. The 

following commentary is designed to assist in the development of future reports.

1. The report highlights that, after distance correction, there are now no exceedances 

of the annual mean objective for Nitrogen Dioxide within the Saffron Walden 

AQMA, or any results within 10% of objective levels at positions of relevant 

exposure.

2. The recent Action Plan has provided a strong foundation for the continued 

development of local measures that can be expected to contribute towards vehicle 

emissions reductions.

3. The Action Plan provided an assessment that traffic emissions were required to 

reduce by the order of 6% in order to meet the objectives.

4. Recent monitoring results within the AQMA are showing a marked improvement, 

across all previous locations showing exceedances for 2016. 

5. It would be helpful, if the Council are able to consider in subsequent reports of 

what local measures may have given rise to these reductions.

6. The recent monitoring results are extremely encouraging, and the Council should 

maintain the strategy outlined within the Action Plan.

7.  Monitoring should continue at locations in and around the AQMA at locations 

where there are known areas of traffic congestion, to ensure air quality is 

assessed at pollution hotspots.

8. The current assessment suggests that if the current pollution concentrations are 

maintained and continue to fall, that the status of the AQMA can be reviewed once 

pollution levels are established below objective levels.

This commentary is not designed to deal with every aspect of the report.  It highlights a number of issues that 
should help the local authority in completing future Review & Assessment work.

Issues specifically related to this appraisal can be followed up by returning the attached comment 
form to Defra, Welsh Assembly Government, Scottish Government or DOE, as appropriate. 

For any other queries please contact the Local Air Quality Management Helpdesk:
Telephone: 0800 0327 953
Email: LAQMHelpdesk@uk.bureauveritas.com

Page 198



Local Authority: Uttlesford District Council

Reference: ASR18-171

Date of issue August 2018

ASR Appraisal Report 3

Appraisal Response Comment Form

Contact Name: 

Contact Telephone number:

Contact email address:

Comments on appraisal/Further information:

Page 199



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Proposals for Members’ Scheme of Allowances 2019/20
	Enc. 1 for Proposals for Members’ Scheme of Allowances 2019/20
	Enc. 2 for Proposals for Members’ Scheme of Allowances 2019/20

	3 Minutes of the previous meeting
	5 Report of the Leader of the Council
	6 Report of the Portfolio Holder for Environmental Services
	7 Report of the Portfolio Holder for Communities and Partnerships
	8 Report of the Portfolio Holder for Economic Development
	9 Report of the Portfolio Holder for Finance & Administration
	10 Report of the Portfolio Holder for Housing
	14 LCTS Scheme Proposals - 2019/20
	Enc. 1 for LCTS Scheme proposals - 2019/20
	Enc. 2 for LCTS Scheme proposals - 2019/20
	Enc. 3 for LCTS Scheme proposals - 2019/20
	Enc. 4 for LCTS Scheme proposals - 2019/20
	Enc. 5 for LCTS Scheme proposals - 2019/20
	Enc. 6 for LCTS Scheme proposals - 2019/20

	15 Review of Returning Officer's Fees and Expenses
	Enc. 1 for Review of Returning Officer's Fees and Expenses

	16 Gambling Policy – Statement of Principles
	Enc. 1 for Gambling Policy  u2013 Statement of Principles

	17 Walden Place, Saffron Walden
	Enc. 1 for Walden Place, Saffron Walden

	21 Notice of Motion Received from Councillor Ranger: DEFRA's response to Uttlesford District Council's Air Quality Annual Status report
	DEFRA response to ASR


